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SECTION 1 IMNTRODBUCTION

In December 1993 the Virginia Department of Historic Resources (VDHR) contracted with
Traceries to conduct a comprehensive survey of Cumberland County and fo document 2 total of
420" Wistoric resources within the county. Traceries, a consulting finm concerned with architectural
history and preservation conducted the survey effort. As such, Traceries provided overall
management of the survey, conducted research into the history of Cumberland County, conducts
reconnaissance-lovel and intensive-level on-site survey work, conducted data entry, and prepared the
final survey report.

The survey for the Virginia Department of Historic Resources was undertaken in collaboration with
the Cumberland County Office of Community Development and the Cumberland County Historical
Society. The Office of Community Development was instrumental in the organizational stages of
the survey and provided Traceriex with access to the public by sponsoring public meatings, and by
contacting owners of historic properties regarding the survey of the county. Members of thi
Cumberland County Historical Society provided the impetus for the survey project as a whole, and
were indispensable in helping Traceries identify demolished buildings and historic properties uot
easily accessible.

The survey of Cumberland County provided a comprehensive on-site coverage of the arca and 3
complete listing of the comnty’s historic and cultural resources. The survey and documentation of
the county’s historic resources also resulted in the identification of thirteen propertics that arg
potentially eligible for the National Register of Historie Places.

The survey of Cumberland County was a priority for both the state and county. From DHR s
perspective, Comberland County has a limited amount of historical survey work on record and much
of it is outdated and inaccurate. The county considered the survey a priority for a pumber of
reasons.  First, the county recognizes that their valuable resources, many of which have been lost in
recent vears and are currently being threatened, must be identified angd tventoriad beforg a
preservation plan can be developed and implementsd. Second. the vounty is currently working on
plans for the construction of a waste water treatment plant, which will inevitably result in expamded
residential growth and development. The survey is recognized as the first step necessary 1o ensure
that future development is not fhreatening to historic resources, but is planned in such a way that
protects resources of historic and architectural significance. Finally, the county is interested in
promoting tounist attractions in the area, primarily. the route of Robert E. Lee’s rotreat through the
county, and other historic points of interest such as the Cartersville Historic District” The survey

' The originel contrast reguired the survey and documentation of 420 historic resources; condract madifications ay
explained in the research design reduced this overal] mwnber o 404, it ineressed the level of documentation on ceriain
propertize

¢ Cumberkand County is corrently working on promoting Lee's raireat route a3 "Lea’s Retreat,” o project whish is
being huded by Intermodal Surfure Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) fumds,

2
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would provide the county with a database from which the historic points of interest can be selected

ansd promoted.
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SECTION I RESEARCH DESIGM

A. Project Objectives

The goal of the project was to conduct a comprehensive survey of Cumberdand County, wdentifving
the area’s historic resvurces including buildings, structures, and sites 50 vears old or older. The
contract required Traceries to survey and document 420 of these identified properties~378 to the
reconnaissance level and 42 1o the intensive level. The principal purposs of the project was to
provide the county with an accurate listing and assessment of the area’s resources-—-the first step
necessary to ensuse the future profection and preservation of the county’s architecturally and
historically valued resources.

The scope of work included the following activities:

1. provide survey forms completed to the appropriate levels along Wlﬁi black and white
photographs and slides, as appropriate, for cach surveved propernt

2. provide narrative architectural descriptions and architectural and historical summary
statements of the properties surveyed,

3. place the surveved properties within the historical context of the growth and
development of Cumberdand County as based on the historic themes recognized by
the Virginia Department of Historic Resources,

4. evaluate the significance of these resources and make recommendations for potential
Mational Register Mominations and local histonical distncts;

3. provide recommendations on further study and preservation planning that may be
used by the county in the preparation of a preservation component for the
Comprehensive Plan,

B. Survey Coverage Area

The survey area included the entire county of Cumberland. Located in the Lower Predmont.
Cumbeddand County i5 a long and narrow county, roughly bounded on the porth by the James River,
on the south and southeast by the }%Qg}mmﬁm vacrx on the northeast by Powhatan and on tiu, wist
by Buckingham County. The county is located approximately 80 mitles west of Richmond and 1
raversed by State Route 60 from east to west and Route 43 from north 1o south {Figure 1}

11
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The survey included the entire coumty, as well as the northem section of the Town of Farmville~that

part of the town that extends north of the Appomattos River and falls within the county
boundaries.”

. Project Methodology

Prebiminary Planning

Prior to initiating the field survey, Traceries vollected the necessary US. Geological Survey (UBGH)
Maps of Cumberland County and compiled already existing information on previously identified and
surveved historic resources in the area. This information was collected at the Virginia Department
of Historic Resources and the Cumberdand County Office of Community Development. The DHR
survey data included information on approximately 100 architectural sites identified during previous
survevs. inchuding a survey conducted by the Virginia State Landmarks Commission in 1972 and a
survey conducted by the Historic American Buildings Inventory of Virginia in 1957, Information
tocated at the Office of Commmunity Development was limited to a collection of Cumberland County
Historical Bulletins,

Based on the above survey records, Traceries indicated on the USGS maps all of the previously
identified sites in the county. as well as properties listed on the National Register of Historic Places.
The compilation of previous findings and the marked-up USGS maps provided the framework friom
which Traceries began both the on-site and archival study of Cumberland County.

A public presentation made before the County Board of Supervisors and the general public was held
on February 23. 1994, The purpose of the presentation was 1o give the Board, members of the
Historic Society. and the general public an understanding of the survey process and survey goals.
An additional presentation was made to the Cumberland Historic Society on June 12, 1994, The
purpose of this meeting was {o give the Society a status report and to elicit thewr help in locating
unidentified properties and for further directing on-site wivk.

On-site Survey

The on-site survey was conducted primanly by Lisa Tucker and Sujatha Shan and managed by
Kimberly Williams in the period from March 1994 through August 1994, The survey team worked
together to map, survey and photograph the historie sites. The team identified the sites to be
surveved. completed the survey forms 1o the appropriate level, and photographed the sites. When

3

* Atthensh the Town of Parmville is legally separated from the vounty. this northern portion stove the Appomatiox
River was historically part of the county, and was therefore. ncluded in the survey,

iz
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owners or residents of the properties wers present. the survey project was introduced to them and
informal oral bistories were conductad.

Using the USGE maps, the survey team investigated every paved and unpaved road leading to a
marked property within the entire survey area. I a property was inaccessible due to impassable
road conditions or because of a locked gate, the survey tears noted 3t on the maps; at a mid-point
through the survey members of the Comberdand County Historical Society then reviewed the maps
and helped the team determine whether the properties merited survey work,

If a property was accessible and determined to be 30 vears or older, it was surveved to either the
reconnaissance or intensive level As modified, the survey proposal required a survey of 338
properties at the reconnaissance tevel and 46 properties at the infensive level. The level of
examination was dependent upon several factors including, but not limited to the following: 1) the
date of construction; 2 the level of architectural significance; 3) the level of historical sigmificance;
43 the condition of the property; 5) the integrity of the property 6) the distinctiveness of the
building tvpe; 7) degree of representation of the building type; 8) the interior accessibility of the
property’s resources; and 9) potential threat to the property. In gencral, a property was surveved o
the intensive level if it contained one or more resmurces buill before the Civil War, or if ong or
more Tesources on the property was a particularly good example of a type or style of construction.
ar if a group of historic resources existed a5 a cohesive complex. A property surveved to the
intensive level versus the reconnaissance level required greater documentation, including extensive
examination and survey of every resource on the property including interiors, as well as archival
research,

Archival Besearch

Research mto the history of Cumberland County was conducted simultancously to the on-site
investigation and continued bevond its completion. This research involved the examination of
published books and articles. as well as unpublished documents. Published revords were located at
the Virginia State Library and Archives in Richmond, and the Cumberland Public Library in
Cumberland. Published sources on the history of Cumberdand County are limited.  Cumberland
County Vireinia and lts People, by the Cumberland County Historical Society, published in 1983 1s
the most up to date and complete publication on the county's historic and architectural resources.
Alhough outdated, Today and Yesterday in the Heant of Virginia, published by the Fammville Hemld
in 1933 also provided useful information. Other important published sourses include the
compilation of the Cumberland County Historical Society Bulletins, The Crucible and the
Comerstone, Felisville, A Forgotten Village in Cumberland County, Virginia and Other Sketches.
and articles located in Yirginia Cavaliade and the Virginia Genealogist

Unpublished sources on the history of the county were found in personal files belonging 1o the
Cumberland County Historical Society and included, WPA survey forms from the 1930s and
miscellanecus repouts on selected sites. Historie photographs compiled as part of the WPA survey

13
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wore collected at the Virginia State Library and Archives and provided important information on the
status of historic resources in the county.

Primary source research was limited to maps and agricultural census records. The maps provide
knowledge of the growth and development of the ares, while census records provided statistics on
population and the agricultural ndustry of the county.

Ciral Histones

An intrinsic aspect of surveving involves conducting casual oral histories of local property owners
and residents. In general when a property is being surveved, the owner is imterviewsd for his
knowledge of the property and the individual resources on the property and the information is
captured at that time. Other oral history research was not so casual: individuals having a panicular
knowledge of the area’s resources and history were specifically interviewed by the survey team.
County residents providing significant input into the survey include, John and Doruthy Putney, Julia
Cox, Jo Smith, and Dr. W.B. Blanton, Jr.

YIHR-Inteerated Preservation Software Data Entry

All of the survey findings, from the on-site survey and the archival study, were entered into the
Virginia Department of Historic Resources-Integrated Preservation Software {(VDHR-IPS) systom.”
ii’m computer system allows for information to be entered into the computer and stored and then
ried and enumerated for acourate and consistent accounts of study findings. Computer reports can
b‘ sengrated to produce frequency counts on appropriate fields; user-formatied reports on ftemized
historic events, associated individuals, chronological periods and other spocific figlds such as
architectural stvle, building materials, interior plans and the like. VDHR-IPS was an important
component of the survey, and will b&, a useful planning too! for Cumberland County, The
information on the computer can be continuously updated, added to and used to generate reports.

D, Expected Resulis

As orginally written in the Request for Proposal (RFP) and well-defined in the contract, it was
expocted that 378 properties would be surveved to the reconnaissance level and 42 properties 'zwuid
e surveyed to the intensive level. The identification and survey of the 42 tensive-lev el propertiss
;mxaa;i no problem. However, because of the rural nature of the survey area, the identification of the
required number of reconnaissance-level properties became an issup onse the survey was well

uzedamsv The territory to be surveved was being comprehensively covered, but the number of
properties meriting survey work was not advancing along the same lines. By the time the entire
county was covered, a total number of 278, as opposed to 378, properties were documented to the

e IPR software version ased in the Comberland County survey i Version 300

14
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reconnatssance level Following discussions with DHR and the county, 1t was decided that certain
areas originally excluded from the swrvey would be included. These twn argas were the northem
end of the Town of Famiville (north of the Appomuttox River) and the Cantersville Fistorin District,
Farmville had not originally been included as 1t 18 a town outside the county lmits {although
historically part of i), while Cartersville had not oniginally been incloded as 1t 15 a recognized
historic district.

In addition to surveving the northern section of Farmville and the Cartersville Historie Dhstrict,
particular attention was paid 10 surveying each and every resource fifty vears or older and found
along Routes 45 and 607 Route 43 from Farmville 1o Cumberland is the site of an important
proposed sewer line project.  As this undertaking has a potential impact on every property located
along the route, sach one was documented.® Although Route 60 is not cwrrently slated for a
highway project in the near future, it is not an unlikely site for a future undertaking of that kind. It
was, therefore, felt that a thorough Hsting of all proparbies 50 vears or older should be compiled.

As a result of these changes to the scope of work, a contract modification was made that required 3
total of 358 properties to be surveved to the reconnaissance tevel and 46 properties 1o be surveyed
o the mtensive level. In the end, the number of surveved properties actually excesded these
numbers. A total of 368 properties were surveved to the rceonnaissance lovel, while 48 were
surveved o the intensive level

* spprovimately four propertios were not surveyed becanss permaission fom the property owners was not praried.

* The survey of all properties along the proposed roote of the proposed sewer Hine will be valuable Information mnce
the project is snderway. In general, if federal finds are involved in any project or undertaking thut may have an affect on
historic properties potentially eligible to the Nations! Register, a federal review process, Section 106 of the Historia
Pressregiion Aot of 1966, as amended, goes info effect. As part of this provess, a strvey and evaluation of all historic
propertios would he required. As the survey and ovalation has already taken place as part of this survey, the collection @l
this information would pod have to be repeated and the fndings conld be used in cage of Section 106 mview,

oo
8
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SECTION 11 HISTORIC CONTEXRY

A. Historic Overview of Cumberland County

Located in contral Virginia, Cumberland County 1s bounded by the James River to the north, the
Appomattox on the south and southwest, and the countivs of Powhatan to the northwest and
Buckingham to the cast (Figure 1}, Cumberland County was created from Gooehland County in
174% and counsists of fertile agricoltural land traversed by the Willis River and the Muddy and
Gruines Crecks {Figure 23

In addition to its colorful local history, the county lays claim to several Civil War-related activities.
Robert B, Lee's retroat in the last days of the Civil War went through the lower comer of the county
and some skirmishes occurred in Cumberland territory, The High Bridge, which Lee ordered bumt
near the end of the Civil War, stands in Comberland County as do Thaxston House and
Cumberland Presbyterian Church were Lee is known to have met with his war advisors near the
end of the war. The county contains several Civil War-related sttes including the Confederate
Cemetery, and Walnut Hill.  The county as a whole, however, was spared the dumage inflicted on

many other arcas of Virginia.

Historically, Cumberland’s primary industry has been agricultre. While onee a predominantly
tobaces producing county, local famners now grow com, wheat, and other crops as well as raise
cattle. Because of its agricultural heritage, small cross roads communities sprang up around the
county, with no real centralized city. Located at either end of the county are small towns--
Cartersville, on the James River to the north, and 2 part of the town of Farmville to the south.
Centrally located in the county, is the Cumberland County Courthouse, around which a small
torwn has rsen. The town of Cartersville, consisting of thirty-seven lots running north-south and
platted town within the county lnes was Felixville. Though platted in 1811, Felinville was never
actually developed. The area around the Cumberland Courthonse consists of a linear development
along Route 60, Several small villages historically found in Cumberland County were located at
cross roads intersections and consisted of a group of residences, a country store, and a post office.
Sunny Side. a small community clustered around the predecessor to Grove Churdh, is an exceliont

example of this type of community, Other examples of this crossroads village type are Clinton and

Hamilton. Clinton, named for an eighteenth contury British General, at one time had as many as
thirty dwellings. two stores. a carriage shop, a grist mill, a post office, and four blacksmiths shops.
The town of Tamworth, near the Powhatan County line, grow up around the Muddy Creek Mill
during the eighteenth and nincteenth centuries. Perhaps the oldest village in the country s Ca ira,
named for a popular song during the French Revolution. Established by the General Assembly in
1796, Ca Ira reached its peak in the first quarter of the ninetesnth centory.

Like agriculture, milling was also an important local 19th-century industry, Located along the
gastern sdge of the county are three of the county’s four antebellum mills. Trent's M, Trenion
Mill and Trice’s Mill (Flanagan’s Mill) are all focated along branches of the Willis River to the
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east. The Muoddy Creek Mill a fonper mill center located near the small town of Cantersville, s
located along the Muddy Creek near the James River,

Cumberland County’s religious history predates the actual founding of the county, In 1745,
Southam Parish was created from Saint James Parish and was cotemunous with the boundanies of
Cumberland County, founded four vears later. As the Church of England was the recognized
religion at the time, the earhiest churches in Cumbedand County were Anglican. Tar Wallet
Church stands on the site of an carlier church from this period which dates 1o 1732, By the end of
the eighiventh century, the established church was being dismantled. When the Stabnie of Religious
Freedom was passed in 1779, and laws requiring mandatory attendance at the established church
were repealed, an assortment of different dominations arose n Cumberland County. The Baptists,
Methodists, Presbyterians, and others were all represented and continue to color the religious
makeup of the county today.

The history of education in Cumberland County follows the rest of the state in many ways. The
first general school law was passed in 1796, This low rested on the willingness of a county to
accept responsibility for free education. The gentleman justices of Cumberland County provided for
such free schooling for the poor as sarly as the 17908, The ninctoenth century was an era of change
for the sducational system across Virginia. On Apsil 13, 1872, the Board of School Trustees of
Cumbsrland County orzanized their fist county schoo! board and proposed a tax to support a school
svstem. One month later a three dav Teacher’s Iistitute was held during which theories of
education were to be discussed. By 1892, there were thirtv-two white teachers and sixtesn black
teachers in the county,

in addition to the several historic churches and school houses located thronghout the county, are
many historic houses from a wide array of stvles. The county bas an gxcellent collection of Federal
period dwellings, as well as many Greek Revival period dwellings and churches.

While many of the county’s historic resources are owned by individuals, Bear Creek State Forest,
bounded by Route 60 to the south and the Trent’s Mill area to the north, is a State Park open to the
public for recreational purposes. The Cumberland State Forest, with over 14,000 acres, contams a
good cross-section of a variety of historic resources including prehistoric ocoupation sies,
cometeries, and two early nineteenth-century dwellings. The forest also contains several fishing
takes fod by Bear Crock and the Willis River and is an tmportant recreational area for county
residents and tounsts,

Many conmumumity, social, fratermal and charitable organizations have prospered throughout
Cumberland's history. Freemasonry in Cumbetdand County dates to as early as 1792 when the
Powhatan Amicable Lodge #28. originally chartered in 1790, was moved 1o the Cumberland
Courthouse and rechartered as the Cumberiand Lodge #28. By 1842, there were five lindges in the
oty

During the nineteenth and ecarly twentieth centuries, visiting natural springs became a popular
pastime across Virginia, The springs were thought to have medicinal value and became the site of

17
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recreational and healing-related ventures. The Lithis Springs in Comberland County, just north of
Farmville, were discovered in 1377 when Elizabeth Ross Houston drank from them during a walk
behind her house. Feeling betier from having taben the waters, Elizabeth apparently continued to
visit the springs until she poted an alteration in her health. By word of mouth the curing power of
the springs spread until they became incorporated in 1884, At the hevday, there ware sixteen
springs on the site,

As can be seen, Cumberland has a rich history that is well reprosented by the built environment. OF
this history, however, only ten properties have heen formally recognized and listed on the National
Register of Historic Places: Ampthill {24-32, ca. 1830}, the Cartersville Bridge Ruins (2433, ca
1822y, Clifton (24-36, ca. 17501, Grace Episcopal Church (24-9, ca. 1840}, Morven (24-27, ca
18203, the Cartersville Historic District {24-126, ca. 1790), Needham (24-30, ca 1821}, the
Muddy Creek Mill (24-16, ca. 1750}, the Charles Irving Thornten Tombstone {24-54), and the
Cumberland County Courthouse and Juil {24-3, 24-25). An additional thirteen have been
recommended for listing. The inclusion of these thirteen will more fully illustrate the county’s

history and architectural heritage.”

*Ses wmdividual themes for more in-depth Bistorical nformation and references 1o suurees,
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Figure 2: Map of Cumberland County, 1777
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B. Historic Themes
THEME: FTHNICTTY/AMMIGRATION AMND SETTLEMENT
RESQURCE TYPES: Towns and Villages

TOWNS AND VILLAGES

Although most of the domestic settfoments ocourred as farms, plantations, and other isolated
commumnitics, a number of villages concentrated at road intersections and siver landings also grew up
in the county. Many of these small villages were unplanned comununities which evolved with the
needs of the local eitizens. Others, such as Cartersville, Farmville, and Felixville, were planned
developments that were laid owt 1o specific requitements. A summary of some of the significant
villages and towns is listed below,

Cartersville

The town of Canersville, divided into 37 parcels, was platted on May 13, 1790, (Map, May 15,
1790) The lots were rectilinear running novth-south and conforming to a curve along the James
River. In October of 1790, 27 acres of land at Carter’s Farry belonging to John Woodson, were laid
out into half acre fots with convenient streets, establishing the town of Cartersville. At this time 1
was specified that the land was to be sold at public auction and the buildings to be erected were to
conform to the following standards, minimum of sixteen feet syuare with a brick or stone chimney
and fit for hobitation. These were 1o be built within a five vear period of time” In 1795, an act
permitting Cartersville landowners a longer time to build wes passed. This act furbade wood and
dirt chimneys and log houses. Horse racing in the streets was also banned.”

Driginally a river front town which thrived on shipping tobacco and housing travelers along the
James River, today the Town of Cartersville consists of ;1;};3&%11333@;2@ thirty buildings, the majority
of them being single family dwellings. In addition, there are two churches, a post office, and one
store.  OF the existing buildings in the village, three date to recent times, while most date to the
cighteenth and nincteenth centurics. Most of the buildings along High Strect date to the original
platting of Cartersville at the end of the eighteenth century.

The village of Felisville, although platted, was never actually developed.  Established by the State
Assembly in 1811 as 3 speculative land venture, Felboville was laid out into 39 lots, many of which

Henning's Statutes, Yol 13, p. 171

*Shepherd Statutes, 1795 Vel 1o p 412
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were sold on November 11, 1813, Following an cutbreak of typhoid or malaria, the town was sold
i Thomas and Merwether Goodman in 18187

Cumberand Courthouse

As the second site of the Cumberland Courthouse originally known as “Effingham.” the area around
the Cumberland Courthouse is a good example of a town which evolved over time withowl any
formal planming or linear development. The majority of the building took place along Route 45 on
either side of the courthouse. Some additional development occurred along Route 500 lsading to
the courthouse, In 1836, The Gazetiver of Virginia and the District of Columbia described the
Courthouse arca as containing in addition to the county buildings, five dwelling houses, one
mercantile store, a non-denominational house of worship, two taverns, a saddler, and a boot and
shoe factory. Among the residents at the time were a tailor and various mechanics.

included in this area today is the Cumberland County Courthouse, the old jail, several late-
nineteenth to carly-twenticth centiry atores, a mill and four mill workers” houses, some turn-of-the-
century dwellings, and two churches.

Sunny Side

Located along Route 13, Sunny Side refers to an arca between Route £34 and Route 621, Sunny
Side is a typical cross roads community of rural Virginia and Cumberland County. Orginally
established af the intersection of the Brazeal and Clarke family estates, the first post office at dunny
Side was tocated in Frayser's Tavern on the Brazeal estate in 1857, When Mrs. Brazeal rotired as
postmistress, the post office was moved next door to the Guthrde Home (24-211). Approximately
one mile north of the post office, My H. A, French opened his mercantile store in 1376 which he
continuously operated until his death in 1899, Across from the store was Ralph Berger's blacksmith
shop. In 1890, with the advent of the Powhatan-Cumberland Railroad narrow gange line, a station
was placed midway betwesn the Post Office and French's store. This resulted in the construction of
several neighboring stmctores including a stommery {tobacen factory), a freight station and
passenger depot, a station master’s house, and commissary. Activities came to an abrupt halt
1917 when the railroad was taken up, sold, and shipped to France, In addition to the post office and
rattrond related buildings. two churches, Grove Methodist Church and Centenary Baptist stood on
the site

Mamberland County Historical Society, Tomberland County and Its People. Walswarth Publishing Companyy, p. 1

v, . P18

Semmbertand Coonty Historicsd Socl
¥ Cumberland County Fistorieal Sesiety, pp. 221

24



Historie Resowrces Survey of Cumberdand County, Virginia

Finai Repon
TRACERIES Oetober 17, 1994

Tuday, littde remains of the railroad community, though several of the neighbonng structures were
located. Included in this area are Fronch's Store and house, several residences. the Garrett house
housing the former Sumny Side post office, Centenary Baptist Church and Grove Chorch,

Tanworth

Located along the Muddy Creek, Tamworth represents a nincteenth century mill community.
Onipinally consisting of the Muddy Creck Mill (24-16), miller’s house, post office and store as well
as a cooper's shop, blacksmith’s shop. and saw mill. Tamworth today incledes several of these
priginal structures. The mill iiself, the miller’s house, the store and post office, as well as two
dwellings

were surveved. The mill and its surrounding properties are listed on the National Register of
Historic Places.

Hillorest

Hillerest is a twentisth-contury community near the Cumbedand Courthouse and also located along
Route 45 1 consists of a small group of abandoned stores and several sarly twentieth century
dwellings.

Homulion

The Hamilton crossroads community is Jocated along Route 43 just outside of Cartersville af the
intersection of Reute 45 with Route 690, Several dwellings and the chimney remalins of an
sighteonth century tavern (24-108) are Jocated in this area, as is Hamilion High School, dating to the
carly twentioth cenfury, and two sfores.

CHoton

Clinton, also a cross roads community, is located at the intersection of Route 60 and Route 854
Originally named for eighteenth-contury British General Heory Clinton, the town dates to the
nineteenth century, Once a thriving community, Clinton boasted approndmately thinty dwellings,
two stores, a carriage shop. a grist mill, a post office and four blacksmiths shops.”

Today all that remains of this pnce prosperous community is the Clinton Manor House, Braner
Store, the "Courthouse” house, Moore™s Store {abandoned), and a few other dwellings. Bruner's
Store {originally Maxev's) incorporates part of a building dating to the eighteenth century with a
long and varied history as a dance hall, a masonic temple, a Sunday school, church, sawmill,

P Camberland Historical Society, p.i6.
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residence, tobacco stripping bam, and stors”’  The "Courthouse” house dates to the early
ninstesnth century. According 1o local lore, cowrt was held in this house during the construction of
the Cumberland Courthouse {24-3), 1818-18217

Ca lra

The community of Ca I, located along Route 632 near the Willis River, served as a take out poimd
for the Willis River and as the main gxporting gmiﬁ‘i along the Willis. The mmmﬁniw took é‘i‘*: name
from a popular French marching song meaning "the Revolution will triumph® or ;z mi? go.”
reflecting the popular enthusiasm for the French Revolution in Virginia af the time® Though
a.{;gizmi.ﬁg patablished by the General Assembly In 1796, it seached its high point between 1827 and
1860, Described by Joseph Martin in 1836 in The Gazetizer of Virginia and the District of
Columbia, the village of Ca Ira contained approximately 40 dwellings, three mercantile stores, a
merchant mill, a tobaceo warchouse, two tavemns, a non-denominational church, and 2 masonic hall.
The population at the time was 310 and mail was delivered three times a week. Amongst the
residents were two blacksmiths, two wheelwrights, two tailors, and two plough manufacturers.’

The rapid expansion of this commusity took place as a result of the removal of a dam along the
large pond adjacent to the arca. Pror to this, the surroundisg pond has produced conditions for
Bilious attacks which has twice nearly depopulated the town completely. During its hevday, Ca lra
boasted $40.000 worth of ssles annually by its threg mercantile stores, 28,000 t 30,000 bushels of
wheat ground at the mill during the season, and 300 to 500 hogsheads of tobacco received. ™

Today, only a fow buildings survive from this once thriving village. The extant structures located
along Rowute 632 near the Ca Ira Pond include Grace Episcopal Church (24-009), now on the
Mational Register, approximately five modest dwellings, and the Ca Ira Fishing Club (24-116} Of
these, only the church and fishing lodge date to Ca Iras period of prospernty.
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THEME: RESIDENTIAL/DOMESTIC

RESOURCE TYPES: Single-family Dwellings, Secondary Dwellings. Domestic Outbuildings.
Throughout its history, Cumberland County has been marked by a high percentage of domestic
structures. Originally a part of Goochland County, records indicate that Cumberland was settled as

early as the early cighteenth century, with seitlement concentrated along the James River and at the
cross-roads of hmportant transportation roufes.

SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLINGS

A large portion of the domestic structures in Cumberland County reflect a vemnacular radition based
on regional precedents rather than on any pure academic style. The builders within the region had a
farge influcnce on the architectural forms and were respunsible for creating and adapting styles and
clements associated with the arca. During the eightesnth century, pattern books which provided the
butlders with architectural plans and details, had an impact on the designs of the period. Beoyond
the vernacular tradition. Cumberand County includes some residential buildings reflecting the mare
formal Federal, Hahianate, Greek, and Gothic Revival stvles.

Farlv Settiement Perod {1570-1789

Yernacular Houses:

Much of the architecture from the carly settfement period in Cumberland County is not dircetly
associated with any academic style, but is instead limited to vemacular building forms. The most
prominent vernacular configuration is the modest hall-parlor plan.

In general, hall-pardor houses are 1-1/2 story, two-room plan dwellings covered with steeply pitched
gable roofs. The hall was entered directly from the outside and led into the pardor. The linear plan
of these vernacular forms evolved from the traditional British folk houses. but grew to accommodate
the needs of the local climate and emerging traditions. Front porches, rear, shed-roof additions as
well as salt-box additions are common sxpansions to the small, enclosed hall-parlor plan houses.

Several examples of the early hall-partor plan house are found in Cumberland County. The carhiest
example of the hall-pardor plan dwelling found in the county s Walmat Hill (Figure 3}, located
outside of Farmville at the southemn end of the county. Like Oskland it has undergone a series of
additions and alterations. Walnut Hill (24-417) dates to ca. 1720, and survives as a frame example
of the hall-parlor form which hes been expanded to include additional rooms, making i a central-
passage plan with a room appended to the rear. Many eighteenth century outbuildings such as a
slave’s quarters, fcehouse and office, remain on the site a3 will,

Oukland {24-31) which dates to 1767, is a Flemish bond brick dwelling which stretehes four bays
acrass the front and has substantial additions to either side. Though the house itself was the victim

i3
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of a serious fire last vear, the original form remaing as do many outbuildings, ncluding an
cightesnth century frame dwelling which is thought to be older than the brick house.

Anderson House, also located just north of Farmville, dates to the end of the eighteenth century, ca
1790, Like the two provious examples, Anderson House (24-100) has undergone a sigmificant
change. A large, two-story addition was made to the rear ca. 1340 In addition to the prinary
dwelling, there is an cighteenth century family cemetery and a fow mid-nineteenth contury
mutbuildings on the property.

Located near the Cumberland Courthouse is the James Baber Law Office (24-199), formerly a hall-
parlor plan, single-family dwelling.  An enclosed, boxed winder stair feads to the loft level formerly
used as sleeping quartess, Like the previous examples, this building has additions to the war.

Though it now fronts the road with a late nineteenth contury Halianate facade, French's House (24~
50} located near Sunny Side has the remains of a hall parlor plan. The original section of the
house, located to the rear of the present house, has been incorporated into a substantial addition. An
cighteenth-ventury smokehouse and store share the site with the house.

The only surviving example to which little alieration has occurred is Willow RBank (24-336) which
dates to 1780, This house stands a3 a good example of an unaltered early house plan type (Figure
43.

In addition to the hall-parlor plan, there were several loval vernacular vanations to this two-room
plan tvpe during the carly settfement peried. Nan's Cottage {34-73), also known as the Ampthill
Overseer's House, located in the northwest section of the county, appears as an unusual adaptation
of the hall-parfor plan type. While there are two rooms with a central stair between them, there is
no evidence that these two reoms ever provided access one into the other on the interior. This two-
room plan-type is also seen at Hors du Monde, Oakgrove, and i the slave guarters al Walnut Hill

Another local interpretation of a vernacular plan form anises at Morton’s Mill house (24~ 188),
located north of Famville along the Appomattox River. This house, oniginally two separate rooms
connected by a dog-rot, is now a three-room. I-plan house. {The dog-trot having been filled n}
The property on which the house sits, ouce boasted a mill as well, Today, remains of an early canal
lock can be found on the property.

Langhome House (24-11) was the only example of g central-passage. single-pile dwelling found
from this early time period. This plan-type becomes the most frequently found form after the turn~
of-the-century.

Georgian Houses:

Based on the English “detached” house, the Georglan style of architecture was a common building
style in the cighteenth century in the American colopies. The Ceorgian house in Virginia 18
generally characterized by its simple box-like structure designed in striet symumetry in both plan and
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clevation. It is usually a two-story structure, two-rooms deep with five or seven vertizal window
bays placed in a svnumetdcal fashion. A primary central door opening onto a through-passage 15
often embellished with an entablature and architrave, or an gngaged pediment.

Only one example of the Georglan style was located in Cumberland County--Mount Elba (Figure 3},
Located amidst gently rolling hills in the Lakestde Village Quadrangle, near the James River, Mount
Elba (24-15) consists of an imposing five-bay. two-story, Flemish bond brick dwelling with an
pnusual L-shaped plan (Figure 6. The interior foatures two staircases—a grand entry Iall stair and a
rear servant’s stair, While a good esample of a regional interpretation of the style, the English
counterpart adhered to a much more confining use of symmetry. While it is thought that this house
was built at twe different times, there 15 no evidence of this on the extedor brckwork, Mount Flba
retains s Georgian period interiors and is an excellent and notable example of the stvle. I front of
Mount Elba sits a stone slave block, the only surviving esample of such a block in the county.

Farlv National Perod (1782-1530)

Vernacular Houses:

During the late eighteenth century, the central-passage plan became common in Cumberland County
dwellings. In central-passage-plan houses, a central hall runs through the house between the two
principal rooms to sither side. Two vemnacular sxamples of this plan type were found--Oatland {24~
93} and the house along Plessant Valley Road (24-134), Catland (Figure 7), dating to the first
decade of the nineteenth century contains an original log section visible in the basement. In
addition to the main honse, there is a good collection of cighteenth century outbuildings on the
property. The house on Pleasant Valley Road retains its original central-passage plan type and
much of its original intertor fabric. A large addition has been made 10 the rear, and no
contemporary ouwtbuildings survive,

Federal Houses:

In its purest form, the Federal-style house is most commonly a two-story structure, rectangular n
plan with doors and windows arranged in rigid symmetry across all elevations, Architectural details
such as a projecting comice with dentils, molded lintels over window openings, and fanlights or
transoms above doors generally embellish the exterior elovations of Federal stvle houses. This style
of architecture did not represent an extreme break with Georglan-style architecture of the late
colonial era, but allowed for somewhat more flexability. Potvgonal projections, semi-circular bays,
o1 rectangular wings are common modifications to the standard box form of the more rigid,
Genrgian stvle. Other modifications tnvolved refinsments o the scale and proportion of the
buildings. Innovations appeared in the interior decoration of the buildings of the Federal period,
where classical motify were used with restrained elegance

Several examples of Federal period architecture were located in Cumberland County, ranging in date

from 1800 through 1840, Oak Hill (Figure 8), built ca. 1800, is the purliest example exhibiting the
Federal style in Cumberland County {with the exception of Cartersvilie),  Currently owned by the
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State Forest, the house survives as an excellent sxample of the Federal stvle. B has a double-pile,
central-passage plan with Federal period mantels, door and window surrounds i place. MNear the

house iself, is the family cometery which contains the Charles Irving Thomton tombstone with an
epitaph written by Charles Dickens (Figure 9}

CGroshen (24-91) survives as sn excellent example of a substantial Federal period house aud dates 1o
the end of the style’s span in Cumberland County, ca. 1840 (Figure 10} This house, set atop a
raisid basement with an integral kitchen, retains its Federal period mantels, tim, and doors as well
as some of the surrounding outbuildings. Two other good examples of late-Federal period houses in
Cumberland County are Union Hill (24-20) and Greenwood {24-39}

Two houses located outside of Cartersville were exccuted in the Federal stvle with the
characteristics of those houses found within the Cartersville Historic District. Both Woodlawn and
Viewmont date to ca. 1790 and echo the architecture of the Cartersville butldings (Figure 11}, Both
have central-passage, single-pile plan type.

Houses in Cartersville:

The majority of the houses and taverns in Cartersville were exeouted in the Federal sivle and date to
the last decade of the sighteenth century and first decade of the sighteenth ceontury. Characteristic
of the Federal architecture in Cartersville are the transoms above the entry door, the unusual four
bay facade, exterior end Flemish bond chimneys and side-gable roofs (Figure 12). Examples which
illustrate this pattern are; Walton House (24-126-006), Pleasant House (24-126-014), and Harrison
House (24-126-010}

Antebellum Perdod (18301860

Vernacular Houses:

The central-passage. single-pile plan type thrived in Cumberland County during the Antebellum
Period. Two excellent examples of this plan type are the Brown's Church Manse (24-97} and the
Thavston House (24-113). Both houses are ope-and-a-half story dwellings. Thaxston House,
located just north of the Appomatios within the Farmville Town limits, is & frame dwelling with a
one-story, one-bay fromt porch supported on octagonal columns, The Thaxston House (Figure 13) 1s
in excellent condition and retains most of its original nincteenth contury interior. Brown's Church
Manse, similar in plan, is excoutad in brick and has received & senies of later additions. Much of
the original interior fabric of this house has been recently removerd.

The most prevalent veracular form in Cumberland County is the Ihouse.  Like the hall-parior
house. this early Virginia house form evolved from the traditional British folk house, but grew 1o
include additions and stylistic details. In Cumberland County, the I-house first appeared during the
mid-1800°s and persisted for the next hundred years. The I-house can be characterized as a two-
story, two-room wide, one-room deep house. The rectangular structure has the primary entrancs
located centrally on the longer axis and end chimmnevs located on each of the shorter sides. The
slevations of I-houses are symmetrically organized into three bayvs with either 2 one or two-story
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porch articulating the primary facade. A distinguishing clement of the I-houses in Cumberland
County is the treatment of the comice. In combination with other factors, the type of comice found
on the Ihouses provided an indication of the general date of construction,

Examples of the vernacular I-house form wan be found as early as 1840, Though some parts of
Tally Ho are thouzht to date to as carly as 1740, the current dwelling is 2 predominantly ca. 1840
house. It has a central-passage, single-pile plan and is two stories. The interior elementz of the
house have just recently been Jost to fire (June 1994). While Woodlawn {24-121} began as a hall-
parlor plan dwelling in the 1830°s, it was incorporated into a basic I-house ca. 1860, as was often
the case with this earlier plan type (Figure 14} In addition to the main house, the propenty al
Woodlawn also contains an early family cometery,

Academic Forms:
Greek Bevival

The Greek Revival Style, the first Romantic stvle. dominated the newly independent United Satex
through much of the first half of the nineteenth century. Aschitectural precedents associated with
Greek democracy were gspecially appropriate in the new republic as it rejected its ties fo England.
The Gresk Revival style is marked by porches supported by columns, usnally of the Done order,
gable or hipped roofs, a wide comice representing the classical entablature. and from door surrounds
with sidelights and a transom. The Greek Revival style is. by far, one of the most frequently fivgnd
academic sivies in Cumberland County.

Three excellent cxamples of the stvle in Cumberland County are found at Rochelle (24-49), Pleasant
Grove (24-3) and Melrose {24-85). Rochelle, is a frame dwelling with a central-passage, double-
pile plan (Figure 15). Typical of the Greek Revival period are the sidelight and clegant transom, as
well as the pedimented window caps on the extenor.

Pleasant Grove is unusual in that it dates o the period during the Civil War {Figure 10}, Pleasant
Grrove features a typical Greek Revival interior and exterdor. All the rooms have Donic pilaster
mantels, dog car window and door surrounds, and four panel doors. The extenor has the typical
pedimented window caps and a the ghost of a ong-story, one-bay front porch typical of the Greck
Fevival.

The latest example of a fully Greek Revival style house in the county is Melrose. which dates 1o
just after the Civil War, ca. 1868 {Figure 17). Like Pleasant Grove, s a brick dwelling.
Stretching five bavs across the fromt this imposing two-story brick house features a one-story gngd
wall porch. Topical of the Greek Revival $tyle are the front door sidelights and transom, the
pedimented window and door surrounds, and the boxed cormice.

In addition to the many Greek Revival style houses which exhibit characteristics on the extenior, the
are many houses belonging to other stylistic traditions on the exterior which feature Greek Fevival
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traits on the infertors. Twn good esamples of this are Lancaster House (24-47) and Momingside
{24-14). Lancaster House features typical vemacular-Federal detailing on the exterior, and then has
elaborate Greek Revival detailing on the interior (Figure 18). Another excellent example of this &
Mormingside, Momingside has clegant Halianate detailing on the exterior which contrasts with the
pattern-book avademic Greek Revival detatling of the interor (Figure 19). Typical of the Greek
Revival are the grand pedimented window and door surmrounds with fret molding. The mantels, a5
well. feature pedimented fire box openings and, In one instance, fret patteming.

phe

{yothic Revival

The Gothic Revival style emerged in Americs i the cardy 18405 as a reaction against the svmmetry,
balance and regulanty associated with the classical style of architecture 5o popular in this country up
tos that time.  The Gothic Revival actually began in England in 1749 when 8ir Horace Walpole
began remodeling his country house in the Medieval stvle. Ower the nest centary, others bomowed
his ideas and the Picturesque country house became common in England. The first documented
fully domestic gxample in America waz designed by Alexander Jackson Davis in 1832, Davis’

book entitic Rural Residences was replete with Gothic-style examples. Although the hook was not
widely published, his ideas were disseminated through publications by his frignd. Alexander Jackson
Downing, who promoted his own books through lectures.

Alexander Jackson Davis® association with nearby Powhatan County for his commission of
Bellmeade, had a limited impact on the architecture of Cumberland County. Downing’s book, The
Architecture of Country Houses, influenced a single residence in Cumberland County, the Clinton
Manor House (24-240). Typical of Downing’s designs are the T-shape plan, the central four flue
chimmney, and the lattice work on the front facing gable (Figures 20 and 21}

talianate

Like the Gothic Revival stvle, the Italianate stvle began in England as a part of the Picturesque
movement, This reaction againgt formal classical ideals promoted the rambling, mformal alian
farmhouse, Like the Gothic Revival stvle. the Halianate style had almost completely replaced the
cartier Gothic Revival style.

While several houses from the tum-of-the-century feature Italianate detailing as in the case of
French's House (24-90, see Figure 22), only one example of a completely Italianate style dwelling
wax located. Morningstde features many of the charactenistics associated with the halianate style
such as paired windows and a projecting bracketed cornice with pendants. In addition 1o the main
house, there are several contemporary outbuildings on the property--a summer kitchen, a school
house, a smokehouse and a bam (Figure 23}
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Oueen Anne Brvle

The Gueen Anne style was the dominant stvle of American architecture from the period 1880-1910,
The style continued through the beginning of this cemtury with decreasing popularity. The
expanding raifroad network of the period helped to spread the style by conveniently transporting the
pre-cut architectural details associated with the style, such as comer brackets, gable omament,
towers, intricate wood shingle designs and gabled dommers.

Like the Halianate stvle. the Queen Anne style most frequently vecurred in Cumberland County in
the form of omamentation on the vemacular T-house form. Only a handful of examples of the style
were found as used for an entire house. The Hume House (24-126-4) 15 a brick structure dating to
1910 {Figure 24). Typical of the Queen Anne stvle it has a comer turret and arched windows,
Perhaps the best example of the style in the County is the house {24-168) located along Route 45
{Cumberland Road). It features the comer turret, irregular massing, complex gable roof, and wrap-
arsund porch associated with the sivle as well as the pre-cut architectural details (Figure 25).
Another house located along Route 45, near Hamilion (24-301) illustrates the Queen Anne style as it
is found in Cumberland County. Typical of the Queen Anne style is the trregular massing, the
wrap-around front porch, and comples gable roof (Figure 26}

Reconstruction Period (1865-14924)

The period following the Civil War saw the rise of vemacular house forms such as the two-bay,
two-story house and the I-house form and its variations the L-plan and Teplan forms.

The most frequent of all house types found in Comberland County is the I-house. ™ In Cumberland
Couwnty the I-house form emerged in the 1840°s and flourished for many years well into the
rwentieth century (Figure 27). Typical of this house fonm are the single-pile, central-passage plan,
twa-story front elevations and side facing geble roof. Variations in Cumberland County inchude
examples with interior paired chimneys (Figure 28) versus the more common exterior end chimneys
{(Figure 29} some examples have hipped roofs, and others have a chimney to only one end,
Regional differences also occur. While the most frequent fenestration pattern included one window
to sither side of a central door, some examples included paired windows. In addition, in the area
near Cartersville, Palladian vents in a central facing front gable are featured (Figure 29); while in
the area near Farmville, diamond vents were the preference (Figure 20).

Almost as common as the I-house is the L-plan variation of which forty-five examples were fosund
{Figure 31}, Though less frequent, ningteen examples of the T-plan were also located in
Cuherland County (Figure 32}

UThe exact number of I-houses iz not available from the current edition of IPS which does mot
mclude "house™ as 2 building configuration option.
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fn addition o the vemacular IFhouse form, the two-stowy, two-bay vernacular house form s
commonly found during this period in Cumberland County.™ Several houses were surveyed in the
county which adhere to this building form. A good example of this house plan type is a house
found along Route 683 (24-274, see Figure 32}

World War I to Present

During this period, America became a predominantly wrban nation and the sumber of operating
farms began 1o decline. Transportation comdors, which shifted from the milroad fo interstate
hizhway systems. dirscily affected the built environment. Instead of the small towns and villages
that clustered around the station stops of the milrosd and crossroads, development began to
concentrate along the principal automebile arteries. The carly to mid-twenticth contury
transportation-refated residential srchitecture in Cumberland County is most evident along Route 43
and Rowute 60

The most typical domestic forms found along transportation corridors are the bungalow and the
cottage, The bungalow is characterized by its low overhanging ronf form supported on tapered
wood posts set atop brick piers with exposed rafter ends and Crafisman-like detailing {Figure 33).
Thirty-two examples of the bungalow form were found in Cumberland Comnty dating from the late
1920%s through as late as 1950, A represeniative example of the bungalow house form as found in
Cumbertand County is a house located on Oshom Road (24-406, see Figure 33} A good esample
of a typical vemacular cottage is a house located along Route 45 (24-368, see Figure 34). Another
form of house dating from this period is the shotgun house form which is characterized by a seres
of single rooms armanged front to back, These are ong-story dwellings with a front facing gable
roof. Only a fow examples of this building form were located during the current survey in
Cumberland County.

SECONDARY DWELLINGS

Slave and Servant Quariers

Although once a prevalent building type sssociated with the Virginia plantation house, very fow
examples of slave quarters or servants quarters were identified during the 1994 survey. Perhaps the
hest example of a slaves guarters is located on the Walnut Hill property (24-417). Consisting of 2
pne-story, random patterned brick building, the slave quarters is divided fnto two distine zeelions
with separate entrances {Figure 35} The only other example of a servants guarters 15 located at
Ouatland (Figure 36). Though the building is curemly in a state of disrepalr, it was once a-story-
and-a-half frame structore. While a frame structure in ruins near the Lancaster House is thought by
the current owner 4o be the ruing of a slaves quarters, no physical evidence on the site corroborates
this theorv. Evidence that domestic servants, most likely slaves, reuided n the main house axists at

The exact number of two-bay, two-story frame dwellings is not available us the current version
of 1PS does not make it possible to Tun a report based on the number of bays,
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Momingside and Mount Elba, two houses which have secondary servants’ stairways {Figures 37 and
38y
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OUTBUILDINGS AND DEPENDENCIES

Detached Kitchens

Detached kitchens are often assnciated with single-family dwellings as well as farms. The kitchens
are generally one-story structures set away from the house to confine fire danger and to remove heat
from the dwelling. In Cumberland County, the detached kitchens are generally frame with a lage
end chimnev. either brick or stone.

Though once associated with many of the properties surveved, only a few examples of the detached
summer kitchen survive in Cumberland County. Some of the best examples are the summer Kitchen
at Melrose (24-83), the kitchen at Momingside (24-14) and the kitchen found behind the Sunny Side
past office house (24-211). The kitchen at Melrose dates to the same perind as the house, and
consists of a one-room frame structure with a hipped roof (Figure 393, Though the original kitchen
at Momingside bumed. the existing kitchen building on the site dates 1o the end of the nineteenth
century and serves as a good example of the kitchen buildings which used interior stoves matead of
fireplaces (Figure 40). The Sunny Side kitchen building is a good example of the typical ong-room
Litchens which would have been found behind the many late ningteenth century Bhiouses in the
county {Figure 413

Spring Houses:

Spring houses are structures built at the source of water to ensure the protection of the spring. o
protect the water from polhution. and to provide a cool. clean space for storing dairy products.
Spring houses were typically constructed of brick or stome, which offersd the best insulation, and
were located at the base of a slope where the spnng usually emerged fom the ground. In some
cases, the water was channeled through troughs which were located in the floor or were slightly
raised fram the floor of the spring houses. The water flowed continuously through the spring house,
supplving a steady inflow of cooling water, In order to prevent mildew and mold, adequate
ventilation was needed, and was usually accomplished with the use of louvers or roof ventilation,

Very fow examples of the spring house survive in Cumberland County. Perhaps the best e ample

of this rapidly disappearing building type are the spring houses at Pleasant Grove (24-3, see Figure
423 and Oakland (24-83, see Figure 43). Typical of this building type, both of these structures are
stone with gable roofs. Both examples seem to have implemented the channeled trough system of
cooling.

BEmokehouses:

Smokehouses were used for smoking meat, a process that preserved and enhanced the flavor of the
meat. In general, smokehouses are rather simple structures.  They consist of an mraght stmcture
with an carth floor, While an entry door is needed, windows are usually not present. Some form of
ventilation 15 vequired to keep the fire bumning, and often, this would ocour in the form of small flue
openings bencath the eaves. While hickory was the preforred wood 0 be used. osk, cherry, apple,
saszafras, snd com cobs were also bumed.
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Thirty-three examples of smokehouses were located in Cumberland County during the cument
survey, Typically these were one-room frame structures with steeply piiched gable roofs. Two
excellont examples of the smokehouse are the one located at the Muddy Creek house near
Tamworth {24-40, see Figure 44) and the one located behind the Fronch House near Sunny Side
{24-90, aee Figure 45}

{ther Domestic Dutbuildings

T addition 1o the above mentioned domestic outhbuildings, other types were located during the
current survey (Figure 46). A few examples of dairies were found near the main dwelling. In
addition, a handful of ice houses were also identified (Figure 47)
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Figure 31 Plan of Walnut Hill { 24-417}%

Figure 41 Photograph of Willow Bank {24336}




Figure 6 Plan Mount Elba (24-15)
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Figure 11: Photograph of Viewmont {24-35)

Figure 12: Photograph of Glasser House

(24-126-9}
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Figure 13: Photograph of Thasston House (24-113)
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Figure 14: Plan of Woodlawn (24-121}
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Figure 15 Photograph of Rochelle (24-49)
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Figure 18: Interior Photograph of Lancaster House {24-47)
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Figure 19: Interior Photograph of Momingside {24-14)
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Figure 20: Photograph of Clinton {24-240)
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Figare 21: Figures 133 and 134 from A, J. Downing’s The Architecture of Country Housss
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Figure 22: Photograph of French House (24-90)

Figure 23: Photograph of Momingside {(24-14)
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Figure 24: Photograph of Hume House (24-126-4)

Figure 25: Photograph of House on Route 45 (24-168)
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Figure 27: Photograph of House on Route 45 (24-236)
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Figure 28: Photograph of High Bridge Farm (24-311)

Figure 29 Photograph of House on Route 45 (24-254)
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Figure 30: Photograph of House on Route 672 (24291

Figure 31: Photograph of House on Route 13 (24-212)
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Figure 34: Photograph of House on Route 45 {24-368)
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Figure 36: Photograph of Servam’s Quarters at Oatland (24-93)
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Figure 38: Plan of Mount Elba (24-13)



Historic Besmarves Supvey of Cemberand County, Virgiis

Final Baport
TRACERIES Qowdber 17, 1994

Figure 39 Photograph of Kitchen at Melrose (24-85)

Figure 40: Photograph of Kitchen at Locust Grove (24-104)
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Figure 41: Photograph of Kitchen at Sunny Side (24-211)
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Figure 43: Photograph of Spring House at {Okdand (24-83)
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Figure 44: Photograph of Smokehouse at Muddy Creek Mill House {2440}



Figure 45 Photograph of Smokehs

use at French House {24-90}
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Figure 47 Photograph of leehouse at Millview (24-114)
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THEME SUBSISTENCE/AGRICULTURE

RESOURCE TYPES: Farms: Bams and Other Agricoltural Buildings

AGRICULTURAL BUILDINGS

Historically, farming has been the most mmportant industry in Cumberdand County and has included
the raising of caitle and other hivestock. According to an article published in 1881 on tobaceo
production in Virginia, Virginia ranked second in the United $tates in the production, acreage and
total value of tobacco ™

Cumberland County’s climatic conditions, as well as the gmple rainfall, allow for a long growing
season from seven to eight months a vear. The soil varies from 2 red-clay soil suitable for raising
wheat, to a sand-clay soil for general farming, to a nch soil along the rivers which proved superb
for tohaceo cultivation. The 1830 Censos Records indicate that 2,476,135 pounds of tobacuo.
118,615 bushels of wheat, and 220,533 hushels of com were produced in Cumberand County that
vear, In addition to these, peas and beans, irish potatoss, and sweet potatoes were also grown. ™

The farms in Cumberland County include a variety of agricultural buildings. but few serve their
original functions. The most common agricnltural buildings surveyed in the county include hay
bams and tobaceo bams. Although numerous sheds were located during the survey, the term was
used when the original function of the building was not readily apparent. During the on-site survey
wark, the survey team identified hay bams, grananes, tohacen hams and lvestock bams; if the
specific purpose of the bam was not obvious, it was referred to simply as a bam. Although
antebellum farm buildings are increasingly rare In Virginia, Cumberland has seversl good examples
scattered throughout the county. Because of the rural guality of the county and the generally slow
influx of development, Cumberland retams an excellent collection of antebellum farm buildings.

Cornoribs

The survey included the identification of nine corneribs, a specialized form of 4 granary.  Siace the
general design of the corerib has not changed substantially over time, assigning a date 1o them wis
difficult and was based on the types of nails and saweuts. According to Allen Noble, the precise

arigin of the corenb a8 a separate structure has not heen clearly established. One theory is that the

% vTobacoo Production in Virginia in 1879, The Virginias, A Mg, Indusirial and Scisntific
lonmal (Septeraber 1881, p. 140

1850 Census, Schedule of Productions of Agriculture i Cumberdand County, Va.
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type is derived from a simple shelter built by American Indians.™  The form of the comenb is
basedd purely on function, and includes certain basic design features. First, the walls fnclude a high
proportion of open space. usually accomplished by using widely spaced slats. Thiz allowed for
adequate ventilation to aid in the drving process and prevented mildew. Second, comeribs are
narrow, again to ensure adequate ciroulation of air. The proper width of a comerib depends on the
harvest date for the particular locality and the prevailing weather conditions, including humidity.
temperature and the amouni of sun and wind, The walls of some comeribs were constructed 1o slant
ourward toward the top. This provided madmmn protection from the weather and assizted I the
unloading of the comn. The openings to the cormenib usually included a man-sized door located in
the gable end, as well as a series of smaller doors for unloading located at the base of the wall.
Finally, comerib designs usually included an overhanging skirt or other devices for reducing
pillaging by rodents. (Noble. p. 107} The deterrent typically used in Cumberland County was the
elevation of the structure on piers.

Typical examples of the comerib as found i Cumberland County were found at Clinton Manor
House (24-240, see Figure 48), and at the Putney House {24-167, see Figure 49}

Tobaceo Bams

With tobacco being the county’s main cash crop dunng the nineteenth century, Cumberland has an
excellent sampling of tobacco bams from that time. Tobacco bam forms varied based on the three
distinet methods of drving the crop;  fire-cured, air-cured and fine-cured. In the firc-cured method,
an open fire is laid on the earth floor of the ham. The dense smoke from the buming wood
partially smothered with damp sawdust generatos smoke which comes in direct comtact with the
sohacce leaves, The smoke tums the leaves a dark brown and results in a distinctive aroma and
saste. Fire-cured iobacce barps, therefore, are distinguished by their airtight construciion and
absence of any type of ventilation.™

The barns for air-curing, the oldest method of drying tobacco, tend to follow a standard form in
Virginia. A frame. gabled structurs with 2 vertical form and one or two ground-level portals was
used throughout Cumberland County.

The third method of drving type. flue-curing, came o use the late nineteenth and ewdy
cwentieth conturies. These structures consist of a tll bulding ysually flanked by open sheds. The
shed additions provide shelter for the workers as well a5 the furnace and fuel supply. The shed, the

2 allen {3 Noble, Wood, Brick and Stons Yolume 3 Barns and Farm Structurgs, The
University of Massachusetts Press, 1984, p. 105,

* Nobel, p. 49.
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most distinetive feature of the flus-cured tobacco barn. appears in a variety of sizes and
configurations.”

The flue-curing process has several advantages over the fire-curing method, particularly the fact that
fhe fire is comtained in a furnace, therehy reducing the danger of fire. The flus-curing method also
consumes less fuel by a closed heating system. The heat is conducted through the bam in a sernes
of flues and is maintained uniform throughout the space.™ In the flue-curing process 80 percent of
the tobacco leafs weight is water when it is first put in the barn and after it iz gured, only 20 1o 23
percent of its weight 15 water. The flue curing process is basically a two-siep progess in which the
leaf is first vellowed at a moderate temperature and high relative humidity. The web of the leaf and
the stem are then drisd by gradually increasing the temperature 10 160 to 180 degrees and lowerning
the humidity.”

Examples of all three tvpes of tobacoo bams wers located in Cumberland County. Two of the
oidest examples were found at the Hazelgrove Fam, ocated on Route 600, Dating to ca. 1820,
these frame tobaceo bars are good exaraples of the air-curing methed (Figure 303 Also on the
same farm is 2 ca 1892 fire-cured tobacco barn with trenches in which the fires were built, survive
in the ground (Figere 31). Across the road, on a farm also belonging to the Hazelgroves is s late-
nineteenth century example of the flug-cured method tobacco bam {Figure 52}

Diairy Barms and Hay Bams

Cenerally identified by thelr relatively large size and distinctive shapes, sarly twentieth-contury
dniry bams are often long, two-story frame buildings with gambrel roof and hay hoods. Rows of
small window openings providing natural interior Hghting can be found along the long elevations at
the first floar level, The intertor spaces of the dairy bams are aranged 1o accommodate rows of
cattle on the first floor, and a hay storage area above. The large lofl, created by the gambrel roof,
provides maximum storage arca for hay and feed for the dairy herds. Hay barns are often identical
in exterior form, but may not provide the interior partitioning for the dairy cattle on the first floor.
Other hay bams are smaller frame buildings constructed with less detail in an infericr fashion,

An excellent example of a dairy Farm complex with notable dairy bams is the Duncan Dairy Farm
(24-80). The primary dairy bars, dating to 1932, is an impressive example. This massive brick
structure siretches three stories high and is capped by a gambrel roof. It is built emploving fireproof
constragtion, and is the only such bam located in the county (24-33). The only other substantial

% Laura Seism, "Carclina Tobacce Bams: History and Function,” in Caroling Dwelling,
Raleigh, M.C.. North Carolina State University, 1978, p. 1200

* Nobel, p. 51
“ Scism, po 124
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dairy farm complex surveved in the county was the Cumva Dairy Famn. The Dairy Bam at Cumva
is a large frame structure also with a gambrel roof (Figure 34), Both examples have partitioned
interior stalls for cattle.

Several examples of hay bam were surveved throughout the county. e notable exsmple iz located
at the Duncan Dairy famm (24-80). Dating to ca. 1830, this mortise and tenon frame hay ham is set
upon a random stone foundation with a steeply pitched gable roof {Figure 33}

Dither Bams

Other bams built for specific purposes were alse surveyed in the county. Two good examples are
the sheep Barn at Spring Hill (24-103)and a large com barn located along Rowe 615, The sheep
bam is & mortise and tenon frame structure which sits on a 3-course American hond brick
foundation snd dates to ca. 1840 {Figure 56). Though clad in cormigated metal siding today, the
original structural members and foundation remain. The bam along Route 615 is an immense frame
structure with a through passage for tractors and wagons on the central bay of the first level (Figure
57}, Com is stored in bins to either side of this passage.

Conclusion

Tobacco was the main cash crop in the county through the eighteenth century. Corn and wheat
were raised for local consumption from the seventeenth century through the fwenticth century, and
actually required more acreage for its cultivation. By 1870, the production of tobacco began to
decline while the growth of com and wheat continued to increase. This transition i the county’s
crops is evident in the agricultural architecture with the tobaceo bams penerally dating from the late-
cightesnth to eary-nineteenth centuries, while the comcribs are more recent construction.  Today,
agriculture remains the primary industry in the county.

)
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Fioure 48: Photograph of Comerib at Clinton Manor House (24-240)
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B Figure 49; Photograph of Coriorib at Potney House (24-167)
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Figure 50: Photograph of Tobacer Bam at Hazelgrove Famn (24-314}

Figure 511 Photograph of Tobacon Bam at Hazelgrove Famm {(24-314)
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Figure 52: Photograph of Tobacco Bam on Hazelgrove Property {24-333)
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Figure 54:

Photograph of CumVa Dairy Bam (24-21)
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Figure 55: Photograph of Hay Bam at Duncan Dairy Faon (24-80)

Figure 861 Photograph of She

gp Bam at Spring Hill (24-103)
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THEME: GOVERNMENT/LAW/POLITICAL

RESOURCE TYPES: Courthouss, Prisons, Post Offices, Law Office

Cumberland County was formed from Goochland County in 1749 and named in honor of Prince
William Augustus, Duke of Cumberland and the third son of King George I The original
boundaries of the county extended from what is now Buckingham County, on the east to
Chesterficld County of the west thus including present day Powhatan County, With the advent of
George 11 accession to the throne, the Cumberland County Committee of Safety declared
themselves in favor of independence from the British. Following this the residents of the castern
half of the sounty began to take steps towards self-government leading to the division of the county
along the Muddy Creek which resulted in the formation of Powhatan County in 1777, This line
corresponded to the division between the Littleton and Southam Parishes. With the division of the
county and the formation of Powhatan County, the courthouse fell within the boundaries of
Powhatan, thus necessitating the erection of a new courthouse and the establishment of a new
county seat.”

The first meeting of the Cumberland court following the Muddy Creek division ocourred n 1777 &t
the home of Maurice Langhorae in the town of Effmgham ® Effingham Tavem, as it was later
called, stood in Cumberland County until it was consumed by fire in 1933 (Figure 58). Another
local tavem which was demolished only recently (June 1990) is Langhome Tavem (Figure 3933
The site finally selected for the new town of Cumberland was located on the Buckingham Road
(now Route 45). The original courthouse a log prison on the site were built by Langhome himself
n 17787

Today the site is occupied by the 1818 Courthouse which stands several vards form the priginal
courthouse site and the Cumberland County Jail which dates to ca. 1825 (Figure 60} Both
buildings are listed on the Mational Register of Historic Places. Reflecting the influenve of
Jefferson, the courthouse has a temple form with a Doric portico at the front. The jail, included
within the courthouse property, is a three-bay, two-story brick structure with a frame entry poOTHTS,

* William H. Gaines, "Courthouses of Comberland and Powhatan Counties,” Virginia
Cavaleade, Vol 17, pp. 3839

* (iaines, p.39.

¥ Cymberland County Histnrical Society, Cumberland County Yireinip Historical Bulletin,
August 1990, p. 21

34

W

 Games, p.



Hiswric Resowrces Survey of Cumberland Ceounty, Virginia
Final Report
TRACERIEStober 17, 1994

The clevk’s office near the Cumberdand Courthouse also reflects an exceptional leffersonian
design. ™

Meither structure was included within the scope of the current survey project.  The only govemment
related buildings surveved were the Muddy Creek Post Office (24- 017), the Sunny Side Post Office
(24-211), the Cartersville Post Office (24-126-028), and two law offices. The Muddy Creek Post
Office sits adjacent to the Muddy Creek Mill which is a National Register property (Figure 613 It
is a Flemish bond brick structure with a slate gable roof dating to the first half of the nineteenth
century. During its period of use, it served as a combination store and post office for the small
town of Tamworth,  Unlike the post office at Tamworth, the Sunny Side Post Office is located in
the northeast room of the two-story frame Guthrie House. located on Route 13 {Figure 62} The
post office was in operation from the early 1900°s until its consolidation with the Comberland Post
Office in 1955, Of the two post offices in Cartersville, only one i5 in operation today, having
replaced the carlier one. Orginally a church, the Cartersville Post Office is an carly twenticth
century brick temple-form-plon building located at the south end of Church Street (Figure 63).

Although only a few extant examples of post offices remain, several have existed throughout
Cumbertand County. The following fist compiled from the Virginia Geologist and Census of 1860
ihustrates the many post offices which once existed. Those post offices existing in 1860 are
distinguished by an asterisk.

Angola {1870-1908}

Ashby (1873-1910)

Boswell's {1880-1902~name changes to Pinta, no longer on map)

*Ca fra (1797, 1801-1907aame changed to MoRae)

*Cartersville (1796~

Chinton (1873-1915)

Colemanville (1876-86, no longer on map)

*Columbia

Cotton Town {1878-18%0~name changed o Adrance)

Cromona {1882-1908)

*Camberiand Court House (1795-1832, 1833~ | name changed to Cumberland 1893}
Darifleg (1880-1880, name changed to Island, changed to Goochland County 1886}
*Farmville

Felimville (1813-1817/19, no longer on map}

Flanagan’s Mill (1873-1907)

Fork of Willis (1867-68)

{iray’s Siding

uinea Mills

Hamilton

The designer, William A, Howard, is an important courthouse designer in southside Virginia,
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Hatcher

Hawk

Hillerest

Lakuside Village

Langhome's Tavern {(1815-53, 1854-34)

McRas {see Co bra}

*Oyak Forest (1840-72, 1873-190%}

Palmore (1827-27, name changed to Stony Point Mills)
Physick Spring (1825/28-1828/31, no longer on map)
Piney Forest (1856-84, no longer on map)

Point of Rock Mills {1860-66, no longer on map)
Raings Tavern {1809-45, 1847-533

Raing {1883-84, no longer on map}

*Roval Oaks (1849-66)

Starry Creek {1854-66, moved location into Franklin County 1856}
Stoddert (1837-1507)

*Stony Point Mills (see Palmore)

*Sunny Side (1856-1954)

Taily {1883-1910)

Tremon (1832-38)

Trenton Mills (18751913

Walton Mills (1860-66)

Whiteville

Willis {1883-91 no longer on map}

Woodson (1837-39, no longer on map)}

In addition to the post offices located during this survey, two law offices were also identified, the
Robert G. Woodson Law Office (24-137) and the James Pendleton Baber Law Office (24-199)
Located on Stony Point Road, the Woodson Office is an carly twonticth century, Classical Revival
temple-form-plan brick structure.™ The building is notably high style as it incorporates engaged
Dioric pilasters and a superimposed pediment at the front (Figure 64). By contrast, the Baber Law
Office dates to the late eighteenth century and is a 1-1/2 story frame structure with English bond
exterior end chimmevs., Ornginally a side-passage. double-pile plan dwelling, the structure now
houses a law office (Figure 63}

Though not a part of the current survey dus to ity status on the National Register, Tavior Creed’s
Law Office at Needham (24-30) contributes o the history of education in the county and is
significant ax one of the earliest law schools in Virginia,

1t appears as though the vertical sash was reworked towards the end of the century
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Figure 59: Photograph of Langhome
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Figure 60: Photograph of Cumberland Courthouse,
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Figure 61: Photograph of Muddy Creck Post Office (2417}

Figure 62: Photograph of Sunny Side Post Office {(24-211)
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Figure 64: Photograph of Woodson Law Office (24-137)
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THEME: TRANSPORTATION/COMMUNICATION

RESOURCE TYPE: Ferries, Roads

Water-related

The James and Appomattox Rivers provided the county with its primary means of transportation
during the seventeenth and cighteenth centurivs.  Accordingly. ferries wore essential fiw the transport
of the county’s products and people.

According to the Calendar of Virginia State Papers, the Ferry at Cartersville, onginally known as
Carter’s Ferry, was in operation as a supply route during the Revolutionary War ™ As the main
crossing point along the James River it served the countics of Louisa, Goochland, Powhatan,
Cumberland, Buckingham, and Prince Edwar 3% The ferry remained in operation until at least the

1970°s. (See Engineering/ Technology section for information on bridge)

The first bridge 1o cross the Appomaltox was allotted for in 1747 when the residents of Amelia
County began a crusade to build one. Though the endeavor seems 1o have snecumtered nitial
resistance on the Gooehland County side of the river, the project procecded.  In 1748, Theodrick
Carter was appointed surveyor of the road from Cuines Road fo the newly completed bndge over
the Appomatiox.

A map dating to 1777 summarizes the bridges then existing in the newly founded County of
Cumberland. Grouped by Pansh, the Upper Pansh. Littleton contained a total of six. Grear Guinea,
one, Little Guinea, two; Willis’ Creek, two, and Muddy Creek, one. The Lower Parish, Southam,
contained a total of four bridges: Jones” Creek, one; Degp Creek, two, and Muddy Creek, one.

One other bridge was noted as crossing the Appomattox. over Butterwood {Refer back to Figure 2}

in 1796, Benjamin Henry Latrobe undertook g trip down the Appomattox River for the purposes of
surveying its navigability, His daily reports reveal the need to remove their boat from the water and
go around the mill dam at Stony Fomt {Figure 66).°°

In 1364, Charles Cassell surveyed and delineated all bridges and roadways existing at the thne it
Cumberland,  Along the Appomattox, he located the following bridges: a covered bridge af

Farmville, the High Bridge, a fordable bridge at Jamestown, and a covered bridee at Stony Point.
OF these only the High Bridge remains (See Technology and Engincering Theme} T raversing the

sealendar of Virginia State Papers, Vol 2, p. 70,
¥ alendar of Virginia State Papess, Vol 2, p. 138,

*Benjamin Henry Latrobe, “An Egsay of Landscape,” The Vireinia Cavalcade, Vol &, pp. 838
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James, Cassel] indicated the following: at Muddy Creek the niver was navigable to the mill, the nver
is fordable on foot across an outoropping of rocks near Ampthill farm, ther 15 2 ferry at Elk Island,
and Dameld’s Ford at Boatwright Island  Any bridges which may have existed within the county
crossing its many rivers were not indicated by Cagsell

Though not easily navigable, the Willis River was improved for navigation by the James River
Company in the eardy-nineteenth century. Stretching across Cumberland County 1o the James River.
the Willis River's main port was at Ua bra, noar Cumberland Courthouse, which serves as a local
Ioading point for tobacco bound for the James River® Unlike the other Rivers in the county, the
Willis River was maintained in the manner of the oad systern. Eleven precinets between Ca fra
and the James were maintained by particular penple, cach section being approximately 2.4 miles
tong. ™

Rail-related

The same map illustrates the roads existing at the tme in Cumberland as well as the route of the
railroad. The South Side Railmad was the only one munning through the county in 1864 and
covered only a small section of the far southemn portion of the county near Fammville nmping across
the High Bridge into the county and crossing back out of the county from the bridge at Farmville

In November of 1884, the voters of Cumberland approved a referendum 1o have subscriptions o
build a railroad between Moseley’s Crossing and the Town of Farmville and joining the Powhatan-
Cumberland line. By 1890 the namow gauge railroad was completed. ” In foreclosure in 1905, the
Farmville and Powhatan svstem was sold to local interests and renamed Tidewater and Westen,
Though T, M.R. Talcott, the new vice-president of the ratlroad, increased the ratlroad’s efficiency, it
went into receivership on May 14, 1917, by which time it had apparently become known as the
"Tired and Weary" railroad (Figure 67). Later in the vear, an English firm had offered to purchase
the rails, and though their initial offer was refused. the ratlroad’s position was reversed on
September 20, 1917, Shostly afier, the rails were putled up and shipped to Europe to help rEpAT
war-damaged tracks. ™

“wwitliam W, Trout, The Skate and Willis’ Rivers Atlas, Lexington, Virginia: The Virginia
Canals and Navigations Society, 1994, p. 32,

“Trout, p. 33.

¥Cumberland County Historical Society, pp. 2021

“Tdward F. Heite, "Narrow Gauge to Farmville” The Virginia Cavaleads, Vol 16, p. 41
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Road-related

In 1738-1739, the Virginia General Assembly passed g bill allowing for the erection of road signs
where two or more roads or highways met. Following this enactment, many roads and bridges were
affected in Cumberland County. During this period survevors {carctakors) were appointed 1o keep a
particular road clear and passable for the dumtion of a vear. In addition, the Gentleman Justices
would convene 1o decide on new road and bridges as well as alierations to ewisting ones.

As of 1791, many roads already gxisted in Cumbertand County as reflected in a Court Ovder Book
of the period which delineated the new survevors (carctakers) of these roads. The roads mentioned
in this court order include ones running from Little Guinea to Tarwallet, from Thompson’s Ordinary
1o Hubbard's pate, from Angola to the Red Hill, on Cannon’s Ferry Road from Hom Quarter Road
to Benjamin Wilson’s Line, on Cannon’s Ferry Road from the ofd line to Burton’s Branch, from
Wilsem's Line to Cannon’s Forry Road, from Hom Comer Road to upper Groom’s Quartst Creek,
from James” Mill to Carter’s Ferrv Road, from the Buckingbam County Line to boak Ame Creek,
from the River Road to Carter's Ferry Road, and from Dean’s Store to Tarwallet Creek.™

According to the 1864 map, the muor thoroughfares in Cumberland County were a road runming
neth-soath from Cartersville o Farmville and two roads ronning east-west {corresponds o modem
day Route 43), Buckingham Road (roughly Route 13) and Old Court House Road {roughly Route
60) both which ran into Powhatan County (Figure 68). Several other voads were indicated on
Cassell’s map as well, including Davenport Road which ran from the major nonth-south route east
until it intersected with Buckingham Read, Little Brown's Road which ran west from the north-
south corridor to the Willis River, Trenton Road, which paralicled the Willis River between Trenton
Mill and Trent Mill, and Guinea Road which ran parstle! 1o Guinea Creek. Several other unnamed
roads branched off of the main north-south comidor connecting properties across the county.

“Cumberland County Historical Sosiety, Cumberland County Virginia Historical Bulletin, Sept.
1993, p. 23,
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THEME: MILITARY
RESOURCE TYPES: Milgry Headguartors and War-related buildings

The most significant military association to be found in Cuwwberland County’s history dates o the
Civil War and specificallv, to the ead of the Civil War and the defeat of General Robert E. Lee and
his troops. The route of Lee's retreat followed what is today Route 45, a route nmning north-south
through the middle of the county.  As such. all the military resources included in this survey except
one relate directly to the Civil War period.

Like many counties in Virginia, Cumberland Coumty was the site of Civil Wars skirmishes. Unlike
other locations scattered across the state, however, Comberland County provided the site for Lee's
final retreat. The first property asscciated with this retreat is the High Bridge, across which Lee and
his troops travelled (Figure 69). Following their safe passage. Lee ordered the bndge (both the rail
bridge and the wagon bridge below i) bumed. The actual buming of the structures was delayed,
tgading to the successful progress of the Undon Troops, hot in pursuit of Lee. Near the site of the
bridge ruing is a fortification (24-416} used by Confederate soldiers to watch the bridge. The
fortification, syuare in plan, consists of a raised ecarthen perimeter bisected by another elevated
mound, with two recessed areas i between (Figure 70). On each comer is a carth projection used
for the stationing of artiliery.

Located approximately three miles due west of the High Brdge, 1s Walnet Hill (24-417), site of &
Civil War skirmish as indicated by a military map published in John Watts de Peyster’'s The Grand
Hunt of the Ammv of the Potomas in 1872

The Confederate Cemptery (24-413, ca. 1863) associated with the defeat during Lee’s final battles is
located 2 guarter mile sowthwest of Walnut Hill (Figure 71). The vemetery consists of a mass burial
mownd marked by a single ohelisk commemorating the death of six hundred Confederate soldiers.

The carefully landscaped area is surrounded by wooded arcas and is marked by large concrete piers,

Thaxston House, across Rowle 43 fimm the cemetery, is the lovation where Lee met with lus War
Advisor. The meeting is thought 1o have taken place in the front vard of the house. Thaxston
House is a mid-nineteenth century vernacular farmhouse (Figure 72}, Typical of this building type,
it has a steeply pitched gable roof punciuated with gabled donmers and exterior end chimneys.

Another mesting, this time between Lee and his advisors, took place st Cumberdand Presbyienan
Church, located approsimately two miles north of Thaxston House on Route 45 {Figure 73).
{Camberland Preshvierian Church. thought by local residents to be a Colonial perdod meeting house,
iz deseribed in full in the Religion section.)

The one military resource not associated with the Civil War pered is the Jusse Thomas Plague (24~
120}, & Revolutionary War resource.  Though the actual plague was erected in 19440, i
commemorates Jesse Thomas, a Cumberland County plantation owner, who mounted his horse,
Fearnaught, on this spot to ride in pursuit of Major-General Baron von Steruben at Point of Fork
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arsenal {located outside of Charlotiesville} with the intention of waming him of Lizutenant-Colonel
Simeoe’s approach (Figure 74 Simooe was under orders from Lord Comwallis and intent on the
destruction of arsenals. Thomus’ waming apparently warded off the impending destruction. ™

“Virginia Department of Historic Resources. Survey Form,

4
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Fignve 6% Photograph of High Bridge (24-38)

Fortifications at High Bridge, Va.
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Figure 70: Hustration of Fortification at High Bridge, courtesy of Jo Bmith
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Figure 71: Photograph of Confederate Cemetery (24-413)
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Figure 72: Photograph of Thaxston House {24113}

Figure 73 Pholograph of Cumberland Presbvienian Church {24-48)
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Figure 74: Photograph of Jesse Thomas Plague (24120}
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THEME: RELIGION

BESOURCE TYPES: Churches, Ceremonial Sites

Cumberland County 18 rich in religious history from the davs prior to s founding until modern
times, I 1745 Southam Parish was created from 8t Jmnes Pansh and was coterminous with
Cumberland County founded four vears later. Southam Parish was subdivided in 1772 along the
Muddy Creek on the James River o the Appomattox River, the ares west becoming Littleton Parish.
With the formation of Powhatan County i 1777, Southam Parish became 3 pat of the new

county.

As the Church of England was the recognized religion of the tme, the earliest churches i both
Virginia and Comberdand County wiers Anglican. Though no actual examples of these were found,
Tar Wallet Church (24-102) stands on the site of such a church dating to 1732 (Figure 7517
Cumberland Presbvierian Church is thought to be by local sources an 18th century meeting house.
As wuch 1t is the oldest church standing in the county, Though the building has undergone extensive
renovations over time, the girders and joists forming the ceiling could date to the 17307, according
o historian, Calder Loth

In 1776 the General Assembly began to dismantle the established church and three vears after the
American defeat of Great Britain in 1781, the Church of England in America had heen completely
disestablished. (Cocke, 15) After the Revolutionary War and the social, political, and religious
uprising which followed the war, many Episcopal chorch structures in Virginia were abandoned and
pillaged. In 1779, when Thomas Jefferson became the govemnor of Virginia, he quickly proposed a
“Statute for Religivus Freedom”™, which declared that no person should be required to support or
attend a church or be punished or fined for his religious beliefs. He declared that

"all men shall be free to profess, and by argument fo maintain, thelr opintons in mathrs of
religion, without thetr civil capacities being in any way affected ™™

Thomas Jefferson and James Madison encouraged the legislature to repeal the laws requining
attendance at the established church, and forbidding different rebigious practices.  Repealing these
religious laws encouraged the rise of Methodists, Baptists, Presbyterians, and other dencminations in

PWireinia Genealogy, vol. 8, no. 3, p. 123

“Dorothy Putney, Unpublished Manuscript, p. 4.

“Calder Loth, Memorandum Re: Cumberland Preshyterian Church, Virginia Department of
Historie RBesources, Decomber 21, 1992

PLowis D, Rubin, oo YVirginia, A History, New Yorko WW. Norton and Company, Ing, p. 39

46



Historic Resourses Survey of Cumberland Comgy.
Final Repost

Figure 92: Photograph of Bruner's Store (24-118)
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Figure 93: Photograph of Robertson’s Store {(24-94)

Figure 94: Photograph of Dinny Count Store {24-325}
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Figure 95: Photograph of Wooden Things Store (24-354)
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Figure 98: Photograph of Palmore (24-126-2)

Figure 99: Photograph of Red Rose Inn (24140}
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THEME: INDUSTRY/PROCESSING

RESQURCE TYPES: Mills

During the formation of Cumberland County in the late-eighteenth century, the need for four and
corn meal led to the crection of grist mills across the county. When a landowner wanied to
construct o mill, a mesting of twelve freeholders would take place to determine the damage such a
mill dam would incur.® If the project was approved the mill would then go into production for
the miller’'s own use and possibly that of his adjacent neighbors.

OF all the mills intact, from this period, six properties remain: Trenton Mill (24-33), Flanagan's

Mill (24-19), Trent Mill (24-30), Muddy Creek Mill (24-016, on the National Register of Historic
Places), Morton's Mill House (24-186), and the mill located along Route 60 n Cumberland., Of
these all were surveved except for Muddy Creek Mill

Trentan Mill and miller's house date to the late eighteenth ventury and are located near Sport's Lake
on Randolph Creek at the intersection of Routes 608 and 613 (Figure 100}, The mill is sits on 2
stone foundation with frame above, four stories high with pegeed mortise and tenon joints, I
remmained in operation until 1935, when it was later converted 1o a store associated with a
"sportsman’s paradise.” The privately owned complex catered to the needs of various sporismen
using the mill and associated buildings for fishing at the nearby lake. The miller's house dating o
shortly after the Civil War, was at this time converted into a sporting lodge. Both buildings are
currently abandoned and in a state of deterioration,

Flanagan’s Mill (also known as Trice’s Mill, Walton Mill, and Dixie Leg Flour Mills) was orected
ca. 1800 as the second mill on this location (Figure 101). It sits at the infersection of Routes 714
and 612 on Trice’s Lake near Lakeside Village. According to local authorities, Robent E. Lee spent
the night at this mill following his surrender at Appomattox.” The mill itself is a frame and brick
structure which sits atop a random stone foundation reaching four storfes high with a slate roof.
Currently the mill is abandoned and deteriorating. No other associated resources exist,

Trent's Mill, dating to the mid-nineteenth century, sits by itself at the intersection of Routes 622 and
650 along the Willis River (Figure 102}, Originally a four story frame structure, the mill now sis
on a deteriprating random stone and rebuilt concrete pier foundation and is clad m bricktes. The
building is currently vacant.

One example of an carly twentieth century mill and its accompanying mill workers” residences was
located in the town of Cumberland (Figure 103). The diessl generator powered mill is a threc-story

3

LR

B amberland County Historical Society, p.
“Virginia Department of Historic Resources, Survey Form.
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frame structure with 6/6 double-hung sash. The four associated dwellings are all single-pile, central
passage, one-story frame buildings dating to the first decades of the twentieth century,

Of the property at Morton’s Mill, only the house, dating o the sardy cightesnth century, and a
portion of the canal lock romain (Figure 104). Mo evidence of the mill dating 1o the early
cightoenth contury exists.
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Figare 1080; Photograph of Trenton Mill (24-33
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Figure 101: Photograph of Flanagan’s Mill {24-19)
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Figure 102: Photograph of Trent’s Mill (24-30}

Figure 103; Photograph of Millworker's Residence (24-357}
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THEME: EDUCATION
RESOURCE TYPE: Schools

The first general school law was passed in 1796, The law was a passive rather that compulsory law
and was imtended solely to provide for poor children whose parents were unsble to provide for the
children’s education. The education law of 1796 relied on the willingness of a county to accept the
responsibility for free education, so there was little progress under the act. Although the gentleman
justices of Cumbertand County provided fur fise schools for the poor as carly as the 17907s, little
information abowt these schools is known ™

With the passing of a Literary Fund "for the enlightenment of learning” in 1810 and "An Act to
Provide for the Education of the Poor” in 1811, an air of change was felt in Virginia.” {Dabney,
p. 246} As a result, Cumberland County boasted nine school commissioners in 1832, and pad
$375.73 educating the poor (approsimately 100 children out of the entire population of 11,6903.7

Though Jefferson founded the University of Virginia shortly following these acts, little happened
with regard to elementary and secondary schooling until after the statewide convention in Richmond
in 1841 during which legislation was introduced to ¢stablish an adequate school svater across
Virginia., While passing the Senate with ease, the bill was narrowly defeated in the House, Finally
in 1843, the State Education Convention met in Richmond resulting in the passing of legislation in
1846 albeit without the provision for a State Superintendent or State Board of Education.™

Though private academies for upper class Virginian's were found throughout the state, the 1850
Census reveals no such private academies in Cumberland County. A few examples of private
schools were identified such as the school room at Momingside (24-14), coincidentally built by the
first Superintendent of Schools in Cumberland County.

During the Civil War the fight for an educational system as well as most privately held schools and
academies came to an abrupt halt. The fight for educating Virginians resumed in 1898 with the
Conference on Southern Education held in Caton Springs, West Virginia.  Although Virginia's
schools rated bigher than many others in the southeast, they lagged behind the national average.
The average stadent whe did attend school--attendance was not mandatory--went an average of four

“Cumberland County Historical Society, Cumberland County Virginig Historigal Bulletin, July
1RES, p. 16,

MWirginius Dabnev. Virginia The New Dominion A History from 1607 1o the Present,
Chadottesville, Vo The University of Virginia Press. 1983, p. 246,

“rumbertand County Historical Society, Cumberland County Yirginin Historieal Bullgtin, July
1986, p. 16

“Dabney, pp. 244-249.
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months a vear. In addition. nearly all the schools were elementary with the facilities for women and
blacks being far inferior to those of white males ™

On April 13, 1872, the Board of School Trustees of Cumberland County organized the first county
school board and proposed a tax to be levied in support of a school system. A month later, a three
dav Teacher's Institute was arranged for August, during which theories on education were to be
discussed. Though several teachers missed the conference due to illness, Reverend William H
Gordon praised the present educational svstem and emphasized the necessity of both moral and
mental training of the students.™

A listing of teachers in the county for the school year 18921893 indicates that at the time there
were 32 white teachers and 16 black tsachers. Additionally, the list reveals the existence of black
schools in many of the same locations as white schools.™

White Teachers

Miss Marian Brown - Cartersville

Mr. 1.1 Ballow - Flanagan Mill

Miss Fannie Blanton - Bush Park

Mr. TH. Woodson - Bush Park

Mr, W0 Bigger - Ashby

Miss Nannie A. Sanderson ~ Penrith
Mr. Ino. E Harms - Clinton

Mrs. EB. Tavior - Bush Park

Miss Nancy V. Revnolds - Ashby
Miss Mary H. Wilkinson - Trenton Mills
Miss Matie 8. Hooe - Cromona

Mrs. Sarah J. Talley - Flanagan Mill
Miss Jennie M. Hanes - Talley

Miss Dante Hanes ~ Cumberland CH
Miss Ralkie E. (arrett ~ Oak Forest
Mrs. Nannie YVaughan ~ Cumberlond CH
Mr. Hampden Wilson - Swnny Side
Miss Flora V. Guthrie - MeRae's

Mr, AW, Agee - McRae™s

Mr William M. Corson - McHaes’

“Dabngy, p. 447,

SCumberland County Historical Society, Comberland County Virginia Historical Bulleting July
1986, p. 18

“Cumberland County Historical Society, Cumberland County Historical Bulletin, July 1986, p.
26, List also teken from Bulletin
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Miss Rena Foster - Gunea Mills

Miss Lou Armmistead of Fammville - Guinea Mills
Mrs. CW. Crawlet - Adnance

Miss Kate 8. Crawley - Adnance

nfigs Luoy T. Bidgood of Famville - Raines
Wiss Myrtle Bondurant - Farmville RF D2

Mrs. HH. Brown -~ Hawk P.O.

Migs Mary Womack - Angola

Miss Mary Leo Blantom - Stoddert

Bilack Teachers

Mr. 8, H. Mayvo - Boswells

Sir Ino. R Mavo - Boswells

Mr. 8 B Tavior - Ashby

Mr. Grant Dungee -~ Talley

Mr. Genrge . Sanderson - Cumberland CH.

Mr 1. R Johnson of Richmond - Cumberdand €. H
Mr. Frank € Bolling of Richmond - Oak Forest
miss Martha E. Bolling - Raines

Miss Eliza W. Bolling - Raines

Mr Ino. W, Henderson of Cordsville - Hawk

Miss Mary B, Wilson - MeRae’s

Wirs, Victora Wilson - McRae's Mr. CH. McDaniel - Farmville
Wiss Mary Branch ~ Famville

Nir Ino. D Bolden - MoRags

Miss hate Moseley ~ Adnanes

The eartiest sxtant education buildings found in Cumberiand County date to the second half of the
nineteenth cemtury. One such one-room schoot dating between 1880-1890 was found on Route 45
and consists of a one-story, frame room with a gable roof and 6/6 double-hung sash. It is currently
i a state of deterioration surrounded by overgrowth,  {This may be Central Schooly The only other
nineteenth comtury educational building found is Oak Forest School, also a one room frame structure
with a comer entry which would be incorporated into many early twentieth centary schools found in
Cumberland County, Thizs building is also in a state of disrepair and sits along Route 45,

The sixth of the Conferences on Southern Education begun in 1898 was held in Richmond Virginia
in 1903, followed by a two day Cooperative Education Corsmaission the next vear. Finally, in May
1905, the May Campaign was held which led 1o a delnge of school bills and educational legistation
in the General Assembly of 19067

Tlabuey, pp. 448-450.
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As a result of the new state legislation, school buildings were built across Virginda, Cumberland
County included. Examples in Cumberland County cousist of eartdy twentieth century two-room
frame structures and one-room frame structures which were afftliated with neighborng churches.
Three nearly identical two-room frame schools were surveved: Flat Rock School (24-298), Turkey
Cock School (24303, sec Figure 105}, and a school on Route 614, now used as a church {24-275).
All three of these schools feature hipped roofs with paired entries about a projecting central gabled
bay. Fach entrv has a hipped roof supported by a square post. The other three schools are Bt
Paul's on Route 45, Fork of Willis School on Route 690, and Stoddert School, now located on the
High Bridge Farm. St Paul’s (founded in 1936) consists of a one-toom, front facing gable frame
building with a hipped roof front porch supported by tumed posts (Figure 106). It currently 5185
along route 45 with its doors and windows hoarded up. Fork of Willis School exists as a Ty,
though it once featured corner entries about a central bay with decorative barge board detailing in
the pedimented gable, The Stoddert School has been reconstructed on a new S

Near the town of Cartersville. a population concentration within Cumberland County, a far more
substantial schoo! building dating to 1911 was construsted. The site for Hamilton High School sits
at the comer of Route 45 and Route 690, and the building ftself consists of a two-story frame
structure, three bavs wide, with a projecting central bay capped by a bell 1ower. There are four
rooms on either floor, with a total of eight classrooms (Figure 107} John Randolph School, which
is contemporary with Hamilton High School and located at the Farmville end of the county, s a
one-story frame structure with a hipped roof at the rear and front facing gable. Like Hamilton High
School it has banks of windows on the side elevations and in the tradition of schools across the
county, it has patred entries, one for boys and the other for girls. The schoot is currently being used
for the storage of hay.

With the advent of the Depression and the formation of the Work Progress Admmistration {WPA)
and the Public Works Admimistration (PWA) across America and in Virginia, Cumberland High
Schaol was built in 1934, Cumberland High School ocoupies a lot along Route 43 spanning three
bays across the front and two bays deep (Figure 108). The two-story brick building features a
stepped parapet on the front facade with engaged pilasters separating each of the three front bays.
In addition to the main school building, the WPA also constructed a log cabin exhibit behind the
house which is currently used as a part of the school complex.

The oldest extant training agricultural building is the former Cumberland Training Agricniural
Building which dates to 1939-1940. Now Cumberland Elementary School, this one-story brick
building features a central entry portico with square posts surrounded by groupings of four windows,
12/12 double-hung sash, on either stde of the conter,

OFf all of the school buildings surveved and mentioned above, only Cumberdand High School and the
Cumberland Training Agricultural Building (currently Cumberland Elementary School, alse known
as Jackson High School at one time) are still in use today as educational bulldings.

th
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Figure 185 Photograph of Turkey Cock School {24-303)
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Figure 107: Photograph of Hamilton High School (24-105)

Figure 18%; Photograph of Cumberland High School (24-350)
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THEME: FUNERARY
RESOURCE TYPE: Cemectonies

The several examples of cemeteries located in Cumberland County can be divided into thrve basic
types: family cemeteries, church related cemeteries, and public cometTisg,

Familv Cemeleries

In Cumberland County, as in much of rural Virginia, family cemetorics were historically used by the
tocal residents during times of inclement weather, during which the neighboring church cometeries
could not be readily accessed. These family cometeries often included several of the following
common characteristics: boxwopd plantings marking cither the headstone or foot stone, large rough
stongs partially submerged in the carth as a headstone or foot stone, gramite markers, periwinkle
plantings, and a surrounding low wall with a gate. One example surv eved which Maim alt of these
slements is the Puiney Family Cemetery (24-039), a mid nineteenth century cemetery located across
from Trenton Mill along Route #13. The cometery, once located behind the family home, now
demolished, is surrounded by a low random stone wall with periwinkle all around the perimeter.
Inside the wall, both marked and wnmarked graves are found as are large boxwood. Those markers
which do exist are granite with engraved birth and death dates. One such stone features a hand with
the index finger directing D, Wilkinson (d. 1860} towards heaven. Another good ,-w,xampie of such a
family cemetery is the Moses Smith Cemetery located aiongg Routs 631, Like the Pulney cemetery,
the Moses Smith Cemetery (24-1283 is surrounded by a low fence (wire in this matance) within
which are located marked and unmarked graves. There are engraved granite stoned laid in a row as
well as rock marker and cedar tree grave sifes.

Probahly the most significant for its historic associations 1s the cemetery located at Ouk Hill which
contains the tombstone of Charles Irving Thoraton (1834), with an epitaph written by Charles
Dickens (24-054). This is the only epitaph known to have been written by Dickens while vistting
the United States and is listed on the National Register.
“THIS 18 THE GRAVE of a hittle Child whom God
in his goodness called to a Bright Eternity when
¢ was very voung. Hard as it is For Human Affection
To reconcile itself To Death In any shape (and most
of all, perhaps at First In this) HIS PARENTS can
even now believe {sic That it will be a Consolation to
them Throughout their lives and when they shall have
grown old and grev always to think of him as a Chald
™ HEAVEN And Jesus Called a Hitle Child unto him,
anid set him in the midst of them, He was the son of
ANTHONY and ML THORNTON Called CHARLES IRVING. He
was born on the 20th day of Jarwary 1841, and he died
on the 12th day of March 1842, Having lived only
13 months and 19 davs”
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The cometery features many of the typical characteristics of a familv cometery. It is located within
a wooded area with both marked and unmarked graves and boxwood plantings.

Though it does not conform t many of the typical characteristics of a family cemetery, the family

cemetery located on the MNorthfield Property {24-293) includes the carliest grave markers located in
the county as well as many high quality engraved marble and granite headstones {Figure 109},

Church Cemetenes

Meardly every church surveved within the county bad an accompanying cemetery. In some instances,
the tombstones in the cemetery predate the actual church building and date to a previous church on
the site, Tvpically these church cemeteries include sections which date to different periods.
Oftentimes, the oldest sections are located furthest from the church, near a wooded area. The
cometery at Thomas Chapel is representative of this (24-29)

Public Cemeteries

The only public cemstery surveved way the Canersville Cometery (24-042), located along Route 45
near Cartersville. The cemetery is separated into family plots surrounded by low concrete
foundation-like walls. These in tum are contained within an overall gnd which is accessed from
Route 43 through a low brick wall. Gravel access road run between the family plots. While a few
of the sections feature an occasional planting, the grounds are generally bare with only a well kept
lawn and the granite markers.

5
£



e ARy Apwey o ydwaBmoud a0l 2ABLY

{c67-v7) P




Historie Resources Survey of Combarland County, Virgiua
Final Repor
TRACERIES Ootober 17, 1994

THEME: S0CIAL

RESOURCE TYPE: Masonic Hall, Club House

Many community, social, fraternal and charitable organizations have prospered throughout
Cumberland’s history. Of these varivus oiganizations, only two associated resources were identified
during the current survey: a masomnic temple and a fishing club house.

Freemasonty in Cumberland County dates to as early as 1792 when the Powhatan Amdcable Lodge
#28, originally chartered in 1790, was moved 1o the Cumberland Courthouse and recharterad as the
Cumberland Lodge #28. By 1842, there wore five lodges in the county: Lodges #70 and #141 1n
Cartersville, Lodges #146 and #33 in Ca Ia, and Lodge #99 at Cumberland Courthouse. Having
passed their heyday, cnly one lodge met regularly by the tum of the century-- Lodue #141, the
DeWitt Clinton Lodge. The Cumberdand Lodge #283 received its charter in 1903 and continues 10
operate today.

During the survey, one masonic temple was identified, the DeWitt Clinton Lodge #141 in
Cartersville (24-126-009). Originally used as a dwelling and a store, the frame structure dates 10 the
criginal platting of Cartersville and was constructed between 1790 and 1795,

Besides the Masonic Lodge, the only other building related to the Social theme identified is the Ca
fra Fishing Club House (24-116). Though originally used as a single dwelling, the building dates to
the early 1800°s and consists of 2 1-1/2 story frame structure set upon an English basement {Figore
110). Initially associated with the prospering tobacco export trwn of Ca fra. the club house building
originally housed a tavern and store. Mo examples of huildings relating to African Amencan
organizatinns were located during the survey.
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Figure 110: Photograph of Ca Ira Fishing Club (24-116}
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THEME: HEALTH CARE/ MEDICINE

RESOURCE TYPE: Springs

During the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, visiting natural springs became a popular
pastime across Virginia. The springs were thought to have medicinal vahie and became the site of
recreational and healing-related ventures. One such site is that of Lithia Springs (24-396) in
Cumberland County, just outside of Farmville. The Lithia Springs were discovered in 1877 when
Elizabeth Rosa Houston drank from them during a walk behind her house, Feeling better from
having taken the waters, Elizabeth apparently continued to visit the springs until she noted a
alteration in her health, By word of mouth, the curing power of the springs spread until they
hecame incorporated tn 1884, At ifs hevday, there were sixteen springs on the site~two lithia,
sthers were magnesia (for dyspepsia), sulphur and ivon (for bony formations between the joints),
ioding, iron and sulphur {(for complicated blood troubles), aluminum (for intestinal problems),
arsenous chalybeate (for the nervous system), and iodine {for bloed trubles) ™ In addition to the
springs, a dance pavilion also shared the site. The pavilion, located on a hill overlooking the site,
no longer exists. All that remains is part of the foundation and one framing plece marking the
division of the building into two--an alteration which occurred during a family argoment while
owned by the Thaxstons,” During this period, the popularity of the springs began 1o decrease.
Today. only two springs can be found, both of which are covered by a cone shaped coment
structure.  In addition, a bottling house which dates to the carly twentieth century still stands on the
sife. No examples of carlv doctor’s offices were located during the survey.

SCumberdand County Historical Society, pp. §5-86,

“According to local ore, two of the Thaxstons got in a fight over the dance hall and divided the
property in two as a result. Following this, a wall was built down the middle of the buildings, each
side belonging to a different sibling, A framing member can be seen on the gite to support this
fegend,
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THEME: TECHMNOLOGY/ EMGINEERING

RESOQURCE TYPE: Bndges

Cumberland Counts’s location bounded by the James River to the north and the Appomatiox to the
south. necessitated the construction of multiple bridges to traverse the waterways. The oldest
surviving examples of these bridges are the Cartersville Bndge Ruins {24-033) crossing the James
River and the High Bridge (24-036) spanming the Appomatiox

The Cartersville Bridge is a rare surviving example of a compostte bridge dating to 1822, it 1s the
last major timber bridge to span the James River. The wood structure 15 augmented by cast iron
connections and set upon a stone pier foundation, making it a landmark enginecring structure.
Though partially destroved by flood in 1972, the bridge ruins are listed on the National Register,

High Bridge, originally a part of the South Side Ratlroad, dates w0 1853, Spanping the Appomation,
the original structure consisted of twenty brick piers supporting a wooden superstrusture.  Dunng
the Civil War, General Robert E. Lee ordered the bridge to be bumed to prevent Union soldiers
from advancing. The action having been delaved, was unsuccesstul and created serious problems
for the Confederate forces whoe would later be forced 1o surrender.

fn addition to these brdges which traverse the two major rivers bounding Cumberdand County are a
series of smaller bridges which span the numerous rivers throughout the county. While many of
these structures have been replaced by modern bridges, two historic bridges do survive and wers
surveved. The first, Swinging Bridge (24-343) iz a pedestrian bridge which crosses the Willis River
and dates to the carly-twenticth century. I is a suspension bridge with frame supports and metal
cables which allow for a series of wooden planks to cross the river. One other swinging pedestnan
bridge was brought to our attention during the survey but was destroved by vandals when the cables
were cut causing the bridge to sink.® The Willis River Bridge (24-71). 2 roud bridge dating ©
1934, consists of a Warren metal truss structure (Figure 1113, While onee a common bridge form in
Virginia, this is the only surviving example in Cumberland County. The other Cumberland County
example of this bridge type, the Boston Branch Bridge, no longer exists in its original location, but
has been removed and set in an open field®

This bridge was also along the Willis River, according fo local residents. The precise location
was not identified during this survev as the bridge no longer exists.

“The precise location of this field could not be determined.
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SECTION IV SURVEY FINDINGS

A, Cumberland County Database Holdings

The VDHR-Integrated Preservation Software System (VDHR-IPS} is a computer system developed
by the National Park Service and customized to meet VDHR’s computer needs and desires. VDHR-
iP5 contains an individual database for Cumberland County.  The Comberland County database
includes a record for all of the propertics surveved during the 1994 survey, as well as other,
previcusly identified properties. Currently, this includes 449 total records.  Of these 449 properties,
415 represent surveved properties; fen represent properties listed on the National Register of Historic
Places; 18 represent previously identified, and now-demolished properties; three represent properties
which were previcusly identified, but not located during this survey, and presumed demolished; two
represent nature areas, the Cumberland State Forest and the Bear Creek Lake State Park, which
were part of a state-owned properties survay, ong represents a property which was previously
identified. but was not accessible and therefore not surveved during this survey, and one represents
a previously identified property that is actually outside of the county limiis.

Statistical information based upon the survey findings can be produced by running computer-
generated reports. home of this information is factual, and is based upon mumbers collected from
the survey, while other information is valuative, and iz based upon Traceries’ understanding and
evaluation of architectural and historical data collected during the suwrvey. The computer-generated
reports represent both factual and valuative subjects and provide statistics on important trends and
aspects of the vounty’s architectural heritage. The following summary and analysis has been
prepared by architectural historians at Traceries and is based upon a professional understanding of
the resources surveved and takes into consideration the needs and desires of the county and the
concermns of DHR. Other organizations or groups, such as the local community, the historical
society, or the library may be interested in other aspects of the county’s historic resources; relevant
computer-generated reports can be prepared for them as appropriate.

B. Summary and Analysis of Survey Findings

Mational Remister Resource Catesonies

Each property record listed in the computer includes a count of the number and category of Mational
Register resources located on the property. These resource categories are as follows: building,
structure, district, sile, obircl. The resources were labeled based on the definitions included in
National Reeister Bulletin 15

Building A building, such as a house, bam, church, hotel, or similar construction. is created
o shelter any form of human activity, “Building” may also be used to refer to a historically
and functionally related unit, such as 3 courthouse and jail or 2 house and bam.
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District A distnet possesses a significant concentration, linkage, or continuity or sites,
buildings, structures, or objects united historically or acsthetically by plan or physical
development.

Site A site iz the location of a sigmficant event, a prehistoric or historic ocoupation or
activity, or a building or structure, whether standing, ruined, or vanished, when the location
itself pozzesses historic, cultural, or archeslogical value regardless of the value of any
ERisting stracture.

Structure The term "structure” 15 used to distingwish from buildings those functional
constructions made usually for purposes other than creating human shelter,

Object The term "object” is used to distinguish from buildings and structures those
constructions that are primarily artistic in nature or are relatively small in scale and simply
constructed.  Although it may be, by natare or design, movable, an object is associated with
a specific setting or environment, such a8 siatyary in a designed landscape.

The survey of Cumberland County was primarily an architectural survey, A total of 421 bualdings
were surveved., compared with 17 sites, 6 structures, 4 objects and 1 distret (Cartersville Historie
District}.  Although many additional historic sites, such as cemeteries were identified and surveyed,
only extant butldings were systematically documented fo include all significant examples,

Fesource Tvnes

Each property revord includes a count of resource tvpes, called "wuozts” These resowrce types
include districts, buildings, stroctures and objeets and range from single dwellings 1o cemeteries. A
complete list of the types snd nomber of "wozits” surveved s compiled below:
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IPS PREQUENCY REPORT
FOR THE FIELD Wuzit Type fiw Resource

# Wzt Uses

14
6
38

3
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Barn

Bridge

{Cemetery

Church

Clabhouse
Commercial Building
Comenb

Datry

Dairy Bam
Fortification
{arage

{3as Siation
Gravestong

fee House

Kitchen

Wil

Mixed: Domes/Indust
Multiple Dwelling
Office/Office Bldg.
Other

Post Office

Power Plant

Privy

School

Servant’s Quarters
Shed

Single Dwelling
smoke/Meat House
Spring/spring House
Taverm/Ordinary
Tenant House
Tobacco Bam
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YDHE Themes

YDHR has defined sighteen coltural themes for Virginia's material cultural history from prehistoric
times 1o the present, Each surveved property relates to one or more of the defingd themes, The
following list shows the historic themes developed for the county and the number of swrveved
resources associated with them.

IPS Freguency Report
For the field HISTORIC CONTEXT

# of Uses YDHR Hisioric Theme
31 Ceommerce/Trade

0 Comrmunity Planning
309 Pomestic

il Edusafion

& Ethnicity/Immigration

i Government/Lavw/Political

i Health Car/bedicine

3 Industry/Processing/Extraction

it Landscape

3 Militarv/Defonse

Recreation/Arts

36 Religion

{ Rettlement Pattomns

i Social

& Subsistence/Agnculiural

Technology/Engineerng
Transportation/Communication
Other

Fen IR SEER P )

Identified and Surveved Besources

For cach property surveved in Cumberland County, a complets list of the historic resources found
on the property was compiled.  For propertics surveyved to the intensive level, each of these histonic
resources was surveved and documented separately. For properties surveved to the reconnaissance
level, only the primary resource on the property was surveved and documented, while the other
historic resources were listed and described in g notes field. Throughout the entire survey process,
therefore, 1,024 historic resources were identified. and 332 were surveved and documented. Of the
wentified resources, 330 were single dwellings, of which 324 were surveved, 86 were bams of
which 17 were surveved {seven of these barns were tobacon barns, three of which were surveved),
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33 were smokehouses, of which 11 were actually surveved. 38 were garages, of which two were
surveved; and four were mills, of which sl four were swrveved: and s0 on

Threatened Pronerties

Based wpon the total of 532 resources evaluated, 100 resources were detenmined to be threatened by
detgrioration, vacancy, of neglect. This represents 20 percent of the county’s historic resources and
should be examined more closely for canses.  In specific, 25 of the properties are threatened by
deterioration, 15 by neglect, and 537 by vacancy. The high rate of vacancy indicates that historic
resources are being abandoned by property pwners and loft vacant and nipe for decay, In order to
help preserve the county’s historic resources, the reason for this high rate of vacancy should be
addressed.

Condition of Besources

In addition 1o whether a property s threatened or not, #s overall condition was evaluated as part of
thig survey. Of the surveyed properties, 45 were in excellent condition: 31 in excellent-good
condition; 204 in good condition: 44 in good-fair condition; 9% in fair condition; 45 i poer
condition; seven in deteriorated condition; and three in rulnous condition. Based upon this evidence,
it appears that the present overall condition of Cumberland County’s historic resources is good.
However, vacant resources are quick fo deteriorate and should be paid particular attention 1o,

Phyvsical Chamoer of General Surroundings and of Immediate Setting

Of the 415 properties surveyed, 333 were considered to be located in 2 rural setting and 82 in in-
town environs. This represents the rural natare of the survey. Of the larger rursl setting, however,
68 were considered to be set on fazms or agricultural complexes, 232 on residential lots, and 38 on
transportation corridors. The hwrge mwmber of fanms indicale the continued importance of agrieulture
i the county, while the even larger number of residential lois indicates the development of the
once~open landscapes.

Predominant Construction Materials

‘The predominant construction materal in Comberland County iz brick, fallowed closely by stone.
Of the surveved buildings, 394 of them have brick walls, while 326 have frame walls, and only four
have stone walls, Of those buildings with chimmeys, 389 are brck and 24 are stone. Of all of the
roofs on historic buildings in Comberland, 116 are clad with slate, 256 with metal, 60 with asphalt
shingles, and three with wood shingles. The hlgh percentage (2495} of slate roofs in the county
reveals the relative avatlability of slate in the area, due undoubiedly to the county’s proximity to
Buckingham County slale quarries.
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Plan Types

A building’s plan type can reveal much about the use of space in the past and the social history of a
given area. Plan types were captured on all the resources surveved to the intensive level, A list of
the plan types found in Cumbedand County is shown below:

PR FREQUENCY REPORT
FOR THE FIELD Intertor Plan

# laes Plan Type
b Central Passage, Double Pile

24 Central Passage, Single Pile
2 Double Pen (Fam Building)
2 Hall Parlor

1 frregular

51 One-room

4 Other

5 Side Passage, Single Pile

H Single Pen (Farm Building)
3 Two-Room, Ringle Pile

Architectural Sivie

Cumberland County includes a sampling of buildings designed in a variety of architectural styles.
The majornity of the buildings, reflecting local building traditions, are vemacular and have no style.
Others, however, reflect more formal stylistic tendencies, as illustrated in the Hst below:

iP5 FREQUENCY REPORT
FOR THE FIELD Aschitectural sivie

# lses Stvle
33 Bongalow/Craflsman

4 {lassical Revival
2 {olonial

3 Colonial Revival
& Commercial Svle
i Early Kepublic
24 Federal

2 Georgian

3 Gothic Revival
¥ Greek Revival
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2 Itahanats

# Uses Stvig
} Mixed {more than 3 styles from diffirent periods)
i Moderme
2 Other
g {Jueesn Amne

361 Vernacular

Significant Persons

In general, information on persons associated with a given property s codlected during the survey
and included in the documentation. I a given property 18 associated with a nationally known and
significant person. this information is reconded under a category listed as "Significant Porsons.” The
survey revealed that five propertics in the county are assouiated with the nationally significant
persons, Thomas Jefferson and General Robert B Lee.

&%



Histerie Resouress Servey of Cumberland County, Virginia
Final Repon
TRACERIES Oetbwy 17, 1994

SECTION ¥V SURVEY BECOMMENDATIONS

A. Becommendations for Further Study

Archacolosical Survey

The survey of Cumberand County was strictly an extant-resources survey, However, the history of
the county extends well beyond the standing structures and buildings. An archaeological survey
indicating areas of potential archacological interest should be conducted as a subsequent phase to
ihis survey. The two survevs together will provide the county with 2 complete listing and
assessment of the area’s historic resources.

Preservation Plan

Cumberland County has now completed a comprehensive survey of its historic and architectural
reseurces. To move toward protecting these identified resources, the county should pursus the
development of a preservation plan.  The preparation of 8 preservation plan and its implementation
is essential in preserving the county’s historic and architectural resources. The survey, identification
and documentation of these resources is the first, and critical step in the process,

A preservation plan can be designed to allow for the preservation of the greater percentage of the
county's architectural and archeological msources. The purpose of a plan is to address the unigue
history and features of Cumberand County, to acknowledge the need for continued growth, and fo
gutling methods and procedures that will mutually benefit and encourage the preservation of
architectural and archeological resources while at the same time stimulating economic growth, A
preservation plan will provide the methods of implementing necessary to make the protection of
historio resources a reality,

=



Histigie Resouvsors Survey of Cumbesland County, Virginia
Fraal Report
TRACERIES Ontober 17, 1994

B. Evaluation/Recommenitdations for Designation

Standards for Evaluation:

The properties surveved in Cumberland County have been evaluated on a preliminary basis for thewr
historic significance at the local, state and national levels. As stated in the Secretary of the
Interior’s Standards for Evaluation, evaluation is the process of determining whether identified
properties meet defined coritenia of significance and whether they should, therefore, be inchuded in an
myventory of historic properties determingd 1o meet the established criteria,

In association with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Evaluation are the Secretary of the
Intertor’s Cruidebines for BEvaluation. These guidelines describe the prnciples and process for
evaluating the significance of the identified historic properties. In evaluating the historic resources
of Cumberdand County, both the Standards and Guidelines for evalpation were consulted. As s first
step, the guidelines suggest that criterda used to develop an inventory of historic properties should be
coprdinated with the Mational Register of Historie Places. In the case of Cumberdand County, the
evaluation process was conducted using the National Register of Historic Places criteria and the
Yirginia Landmark Designation oriteriz. The Mational Register of Historic Places is the official
national Hst of recognized propertics, and is maintained and expanded by the National Park Servies
on hehalf of the Secretary of the Interior. The Virginia Landmarks Register designation critenia,
established in 1966, are coondinated with those estabhished for the Natiomal Register.

The Mational Register of Historic Places Crteria states:

The quality of gignificance in American history, architecture, archeology, and culture
is present in districts, sites, buildings, and objects that possess mtegrity of location,
design, setting. materials, workmanship, fecling, and assoviation, and:

A, that are associated with events that have made a significant contribution
to the broad patterns of our history, or

B that are associated with the Bves of persces significant in our past; or

. that embody the distinctive characteristics of a tvpe, period, or method of
construction or that represent the work of a master, or that possess high
artistic values, or that represent a significant and distinguishable entity

whose components may lack individual distinction, or

D3 that have vislded, or may be likely to vield, information bmportant in
prehistory or history,
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Similarly, the Virginia Landmarks Register designation oriteria are set forth in the legislation as
follows:

Mo structure or site shall be deemed 2 bistonic one unless i has been prominently
identified with, or best represents, some major aspect of the cultural, politicsl,
seemomic, military, or social history of the State or nation, or has had a relationship
with the life of an historic parsonage or event rapresenting some major aspest of, or
ideals related to, the history of the Sate or nation,  In the case of structures which
are to be so designated, they shall embody the prncipal or unique features of an
architectural stvle or demonstrate the stvle of a peried of our history or method of
construction, or serve az an illustration of the work of a master builder, designer or
architect whose genfus influenced the period in which he worked or has significance
in current Hmes, In ceder for a site to gualify as an archacological site, i shall be an
area from which it is reasonable to expect that artifacts, matenials, and other
specimens may be found which give insight to an understanding of aboriginal man
or the Colonial and early history and architecture of the State or nation.®

A second consideration cited by the guidelines suggests that the estabhished criteria should be

examined 1o determing how they might apply to properties within the given context. The historic
contexis are synomymous with the eighteen historic themes developed by the VBHR and listed as
follows:

am Domestic Theme This thome relates broadly o the human need for shelter, a home place, and
community dwallings.

mm Subsisience/Agricubiure Theme: This theme most broadly seeks explanations of the differem
strategies that culrures develop 1o procure, process and stove food.

m Covernment/Law/Political Theme: This theme relates primarily to the enactment and
administration of laws by which a nation, state, or other political jurisdiction is govemed; and
activities related 1o politics and govemment.

a Llealth Care/Medicing Theme This theme refers to the care of sick, elderly and the disabled,
and the promaotion of health and hyvgiene.

mm Education Theme: This theme relates to the process of conveying or acquiring knowledge or
skills through svstematic mstruction, taining, or study, whether through public or private efforts.

= Catder Loth, editor, The Virginia Landmarks Register, py
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mm ilitary/Defense Thems: This theme relates 1o the svstem of defonding the territory and
sovereignty of a people and encompasses all military activities, battles, strategic locations, and
eveniz important in military history.

ww Boligion Themg This theme concerns the organized svstom of beliefs, practices, and traditions
regarding the world view of varous cultures and the material manifestation of spiritual beliefs,

mm oocial Theme: This theme relates to social activities and institutions. the activities of
charitable, fratemal, or other community organizations and places associated with broad social
MOVemEnts.

ww Bocreation and the Arts Theme: This thome relates to the arts and caltural activitios and
tnstitutions related 1o leisure time and recreation.

w L ransportation/Communication Theme: This theme relstes o the process and technology of
comveying passengars, materisly, and information

Commerse/Trods Theme This theme relates 1o the process of wading pouds, services and
cormmoditics, :

wm ndustry/Processing/Extraction Theme: This theme explores the technodogy and process of
managing materials, labor and eguipment 1o produce goods and services,

Landscape Theme: This theme explores the historic, cultural, scenic, visual and design
gualities of cultural landscapes, emphasizing the reciprocal relationships affecting the natural and
the human-buill environment,

Fynerary Themyg This theme concemns the investigation of grave sites for demographic data to
study population, composition, health and mortality within prehistoric and historic societies.

Ethnicttv/Immigration Theme: This theme explores the material manifestations of ethnie
rsity and the movement and interaction of people of different othnic heritages through time
and space in Virginia.

Settlement Pattems Theme: Studies related to this theme mnvolve the analvas of different
strategies available for the utilization of an area m response to subsistence, demographic, socio-
political, and religious aspects of a cultural svstem.

Architecture/Landscape  Architsctury/Community Planning Theme:  This theme explores the
design values and practical arts of planning, designing, aranging, sonstructing and developing
buildings, structures, landscapes, towns and oties for human use and enjovment.

Technologv/Engingerine Thome Whiks the technologival sspects of a culture form the primary
basiz of imterpretation of all themes, tus theme relutes primandy to the atilization of and
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evolutionary vhanges in material colture as a society adapts to the physical. biological, and
cultural envirmmment.

After determining how criteria apply. the Secretary of Interior’s Guidelines for Evaluation suggest
that the integrity of a property should be accessed. In evaluating the integnty, factors such as
structural problems, deterioration, and abandonment should be considered if they have affected the
significance of the property. In surveving the properties of Cumberland County, the integrity of the
resource was evaluated using six of the seven aspects as defined in National Resgister Bulletin 15
The six aspects include location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, and feeling. The seventh
aspect, association, was not always evaluated while conducting on-site survey work, and requires
further archival research.

Baszed upon the state and national guidelines and criteria, all of the properties in Comberland County
were evaluated for potential nomination o the National Register and Virginia Landmark Register.

Because this survey project concentrated on on-site mvestipation and devoted less time to archival
research on individual properties, the following recommendations for nominations are based on the
property s appargnt architectural significance, and are, in some cases, supplemented by limited
historical data. In order 1o complete the necessary documentation for hsting on the Virginia
Landmarks Register and the National Register of Historic Places, additional archival research should
be pursued,

Summmary of Evaloation Process

Cumberland County cwrrently contains 8 propesties listed on the National Register of Historic
Places, mcluding the Cartersville Historic Dstrict as one property, The survey indicated that at least
13 other properties in Cumberland County are potentially eligible for individual listing on the
National Register of Historie Places as follows ™

Becommendanons for Re-evaluation of Previously Listed Mational Rerister Pronerties

Al least one of the existing historic properties in Cuamberland County was listed in the National
Register of Historio Places in 1972, Since then, the methods of evaluation and standards for
destignation have changed and, in this case, bring to guestion the issue of non~contiguous, but related
resources.  As listed on the MNational Register the property, Ampthill includes the main dwelling and
the domestic cutbuildings immediately on the property. Mot included in the property, however, is
the Ampthill Overseer’s House {24-73), located north of. and across the road from Ampthill, This

% Only those 47 properties surveved to the intensive level were evaluated for potential listing on
the Mational Register. An additional 14 properties which were not surveved to the intensive level
fur reasons of access, have been recommended for further study, These propertiss should, s that
time. also be considered for listing on the National Register,
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house, built at the same time as the original section of Ampthill, ca. 1750, historically served as the

Ampthill Caretaker's house. Because of its direct association with Ampthill, it is recommended that
the Mational Register Form for Ampthill be revised to include the Caretaker’s House.

Recommendations for Designation of Historic Properties 1o the Mationad Bemister of Historic Places:

In evaluating new properties to be considered for listing on the National Register, Traceries
developed two categories for potentially eligible properties. The properties were placed in the
appropriate category hased on the examination of the property’s architectural and historical
significance and the mformation available on the property, Category 1 lists all of those properties
determined potentially eligible 4o the Mational Register based on this preliminary review. Category
2 refers to those propertios which have architectural or historical merits, but require further research
to determine if they meet the oriteria of the Nations! Register of Historic Places. I a propenty is
histed in either Category | or Categowy 2 and s currently throatened, the type of threat 1o the
property is thus indicated, Threatened properties listed below should be considered as a priority,

~3
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CATEGORY 1: Potentially Eligible

Morningside (24-0014}

Associated VDHR Theme{sy  Domestic, Education, Subsistence/Agriculture

Criterion C;

Mormingside proporty, with s main dwelling, school house, farm buildings and
domestic structures, is an excellent example of a mid-1%th-century farm complex
in Comberland County. The main dwelling, designed in a ransitional Greek
Revival/ftalianate stvie, has elegant inlerior proportions and details including a
spiral stair in the fromt hall. The dwelling appears to have been designed by an
architect who may wall have been fromn Richmond and familiar with
sophisticated interiors.

Mount Elba (24-00158)

Azzociated VIDHR Thomefs) Domestic

Criterton £

Built ca. 1730, Mount Elba swrvives as the only example of formal Osorgian
architesture i Cumberdand County. s overall massing and exterior and intenior
detmbing iz typical of the finest Virginia Georgian houses of the period.

High Bridge (24-0056)

Associated VDHR Theme(sy Military, Transporiation

Criterion A

Criterion O

Towards the end of the Civil War, General Robert E. Lee crossed High Bndge
on his refreat from Potersburg and ordered 1t burned behind him. The order was
delaved and the Union troops traversed the Appomatios River, hastening Leg’s
final surrender at Appomation.

The surviving ruins of High Bridge ae of the fow remaining examples of a pre-
Civil War era bridges in Virginis. It 15 notable as one of the most significant in

size.

Duncan's Dairy Farm (24-0080)

Associated VDHRE Themeis): Commerce/Trade

{riterion

Duncan’s Dairy Famm consists of an early 19th-century tavern at one time known
as Hudgin's Tavern {also known as Locust Grove) as well as a significant
grouping of 20th-century dairy bams and related agricultural buildings. The
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tavern is located on the former "River Road” which rom behind the tavern and
was a stopping place for coaches travelling between Cartersville and
Buckingham. 1t is one of only two taverns identified in Cumberland County.

Goshen {24-0091)
Associated VDHE Theme(s): Domestic

Criterion C7 Built ca. 1840, the main dwelling at Goshen is an elegant example of 5 brick
Federal house. Although representative of a Federal-style house, Goshen is the
only example of its kind in Cumberland County and survives in excellent
condition.

Thaxston House (24-113)
Associated VDHR Thame{s)h: Domestic, Military

Coterion A: On April 7, 1865, at the tail end of the Civil War, Thaxston House served as a
meeting place for General Robert E. Lee and his Secretary of War, General
Breckenridge to discuss the current state of military affairs. Local history
contends that 1t was at Thaxston house that Lee, who bad not been informed that
the Union Army has crossed the Appomatox, informed Breckenridge of his plans
to continus south to Morth Carolina.

Jamesview {24-131)
Associated VDHR Themels)y: Domestic

Criterion B: Originally owned by Robert Carter, Jamesview was purchased in 1720 by James
Skelton and later inherited by descendent Martha Skelton Wayles and her
husband, Thomas Jefferson.  Although owner of the property, it is not known
whether Jefforson ever spent time at Jamesview.

Criterion ©0 Orriginally built in the early 18th century and significantly enlarged and expanded

during the nineisenth century, Jamesview survives as a good example of 3 modest
plantation house overlooking the James River in this part of Viginia.
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Walnut Hill (24-0417)

Asgsociated VDHR Theme(s): Domestic, Military

Criterion A

Criterion €

Walnut Hill was the sie of a Civil War skinmish, as identified on a military map
and published in John Watts de Pevster’s The Grand Hunt of the Anny of the
Potomac, 1872,

Walnut Hill, including the primary residence, the slaves guarters, the office,
smokehouse, ice house, agricultural and other buildings, is an excellent example
of an 18th and 19th century farm complex. The original house, built ca. 1730,
was added onto in a series of phases that atiest to the evolving social and
architectural fastes over time. The brick slaves quarters house is an excellent
example of its building tvpe and is the only surviving brick guarters in
Cumberland Coumty.

CATEGORY 2: Potentially Eligible {requires further study)

Locust Level {24-0013)

Agsociated VDHR Theme(sy:  Domestic

{riterion O

Built ca. 1790, Lecust Level iz survives as an excellent local example of &
Federal-style farmhouse. Though additions have been made o the two-story,
central-passage, single-pile plan house, much of the original exterior and interior
fabric remains ntact

Union Hill (Bock Usttage) (24-0020)

Associated VDHR Theme(sh Domestic

Criterion {4

Criginally built ca. 1730 and later enlarged ca. 1820, the dwelling known as
Union Hill or Rock Cottage provides an excellent example of the evolution of
the architectoral and social needs of the Virginia resident. The oldest section, a
1-1/2-story, side-passage plan dwelling typical of 18th-century rural Virginia,
became, in theanid-19th century as stability in the region increased, a rear wing
to a larger and more substantial, two-story Federal Fhouse.
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West Hill {34.0021)
Associated VDHR Theme(sy: Domestic
Criterion (0 West Hill property is an excellent, intact example of an carly 19th-century
domestic complex inchuding a main dwelling, a smokehouse, a dairy, and a
symmer kitchen. The main dwelling, built ca. 1807, is a good example of »
five-bay, central-passage plan dwelling with Federl exterior and interior details.

Center Presbyterian Church (24-8023)

Associated VDHR Thome(sy: Religion

Criterion € Bl in 1832, Conter Presbvterian Church survives as an excellent example of a
Greek Revival church,

Trenton Ml (24-8033)

Associated VDHR Theme(s)y Industry/Processing
Criterion €0 Built ca. 1730 and originally known as the Randolph Creek Mill, Trenton Mill
survives an oxcellont example of a late 18th-comtury mall and ity associated
resources.  The mill building is currently, however, threatened with demolition
dus to neglect and requires momediate attention to save it from structural fatlure.
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G182~ Long Acre Farms WILLIE M
0193~ House, Asal Road WTRLTQ
3184 Farm, Route 580 %¢L’v”;
$185- uazaQ' Cumberliand Road HILLOREST
~3186~ &ﬁt Looh United Methodist Church HILLURESRT
$197- Cumbsrland Eoad HILLOREST
$138~ grm, 1308 Blanton Farm Boad HILLORERT
0199~ wbar, J es Pvndlwken Law Offios (IRBERLAND
D200~ M;ur e (IRABERLAND
0201~ Ak ﬂUNW&R AND
203~ TRARERLAND

w Qn

o he
#2873
oUB

~203 - House, CUMBERLAND
G204~ Houss, CUMBRERLAND
G205~ Houss, Langngrr" T1TY CTMBERLAND
Q26 Houss, Langhorns Hoad (Ro. 717} CUMRERLAND
2

§7 - Houses, KL, &74 CUMRBERLAND
S8~ Tobacss Barn, Rbo. &5%4 DUMBERLAND
CEG?m "arra t Houss TUMRERLAND
BR10~ Routs 723 {Hatchsyr Reoad) TIMBERLAND
081i~ Re . TUMBERLABND
0212~ Ry . TUMBERLAND
0234~ RL. CIMBERLAND
02314~ %w“ww IMBERLAND
D215~ Routs §&2 : CIMBERLAND
Q216 - Route 554 WHITEVILLE
=, Route 554 WHITEVILLE
. Route 8§14 WHITEVILLE
ROL?f 518 . WHITEVILLE

WHITEVILI
, Parker Road {(Rt. 648} WHITEVILLE
, Desp Run Road (Ro. 816} WHITEVILLE
WHITEVIL LLE

i

~

3
el

JEREH R R ¢ IS
e

)
-
Q
43

§

TRERHOLM

CARTERSVILLE
3227~ ”““Cergville Rd. CRRTERSVILLE
22%~ 1le Ezu. CARTERSVILLYE

H

3D TS AN D D D

B R3 ORI RI RS RI R2 RS
B A B RO B N N B

3 A D LAY b

H

CARTERSVILLE
{Cartargvilles CHRRTERSVILLE

&84 {(Cartersville CARTEREVILLE

684 iCartersvilie CARTEREVILLE

i*x.tq"l&}, ;
Hous Re, &
T {‘

o~

02
D24-02

WHITEVILLE

et fed
[eN]
¢

¥ fad
%

7 rown Road! WHITEVILLE
~¥
é




VOHR
CUMBERLAND
Page €

VDHR FIL

i.'t

4«»4“&/&}.&,

G24~-0240~

C24-03241~
024-03242-
D24~0243%~
0Z4-03244~
024-0245%-
024-0246-
D24-0247-
0240248~

D724-0249-
D24-0280-
ova
34-0252-

-
GI8L

H

H

D24-0258

H

3

324-02%9
024-0260
024-0261
Ca4-0262

H

H

0240263~
024-0264-
624-0265-
124-0266-
0240267~
G24-026

3 -

[RE S S e R Kol e v BEN S R I
Pt ¢

N
g
{
<
N
~F w3 ~3
PR
oo

024-0G276
G24-0G277
(G24-0G278
G24-027%
0G24~ QZSF
(24-0281
czaw Zcz

H

1

1

¢

i

¢

¢

CO

UTHY INVENTORY B

ik

d Farm
Ri. £47
Ry, £01
Rt. B0
Ziocn Ba
R, 56
T MAanor

Rﬁate 4
Bzthliehsm Bapii
House, Eoute 4
Houge, Eoute 4

Houge, KL 45
Houge, BL 45
Gak Grove Bapt
Stonenell and

Ashby General
Houge, RL 4%
Houge, RL. 4%
Hulvk, Rt, 45
Gre id Fax

Farm; Rt‘ &5

iy

BB A B S BRI L B B I

Houge,
Hraige,

&

&1

4

. Ro. &
.’”‘h

4

&

Barn, Ro. &
Hougs, RL
House

5
ot
.
Jealtes
@]
FR
B
y
{
it
o

2
k%

5 . 82
Cematyy, RL,
g, RL, &2
g8, RbL, &2
g8, R4, &2
1ge, RU, 683
S, e
HISe, HAE
Houise, 55
63

Farm, Re &
Sohool, Ru.

Hoais 3@,
Hoaaige,
Hoazige,

%ou

o O

{L

s sfe gfe P ] b

~

£ Lf,

[ RCIR O IR G IR R IR ]

Fyofer {3y Oy O
S

R SENRERT RO IS INORCN

B &
> P>
%3 O
g 23
el
PR
77

S A

igt Uhurch
Holland Stors
Store

Pated

NUMBER

h Cematary

DRDER

prist Churoh
Houss

ih N

it Chureh

5 {artersville
5 {Cartersvilles

Road)
Roads

WHITEVILLE
WHITE %XLLM
WHITEVILL
WTZTE ILdu
7 "”“"‘z’ 'Yﬁ Y’EZLLEQ
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE

WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE

LAFEBIDE VILLAGE
LAKESIDE VILLAGE

WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
ﬁHI”EQ“LLE
WHITEVILL
&QI”E“vLLS
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
ﬁ%lm“33&iﬁ
AKESIDE
?FE NHOLM
TRENHOLM
CUONMBERLAND
“UX&SR&%%D
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
HILLIREST
u‘\/‘f;p b S5
CLD HILL
W%ITHV”LLE
GOLD HILL

‘J%‘IJ* e JIE



VIHE
CUMBERLAND
Pags 7

?

CURFTNY NIRBER ORDER

INVERTORY BY 1.0,

De4-0 House, Route £73
D24 -0 Farm, Routs 673

Route &
Farm, Routs 517
Hougs, Route 132
Cumbreriand Lock

Houss, Route 530

<&

N

fe
§

Houge,

3o
fe
¢
o

t Church
Roubs %0

Oakwood Msthodig
Houge
Flarn
Houss,
Farm,
Houss,

o

A
Btors,

[=3pint

Rock achool
Cornfield Lane
Routs 45

4% (Cartergy
5
4(’.’,

024-0258-

024-02%3~
024-0300-
024-0G305-
024-0G303-
(24-0303~
024-0G32034-
G24-0305-

G24-0306~
024-0307-
024-0308-
024-030%-

RouL riils Road)

Rt. 4

Hougs,
ouss,
icuges
Houge,
Houge,
Houge,

and Jtore, Roure 4%
te 45
te AA%

Route 45

T

{Carcersville Road)

024-0330~ Green Creek Churoh
034-0311- High RBridgs Farm

334 -1 Houge, REoute (43

024-0313~ Housge, Route 600
0234-03314- Hazelgrove Farm
D24-0315- Farm, Route 500

DR4-0318 - Houge, Route £00
324 -0317- Houge, Route €513
G24-0318- Houge, Route €53
0240315~ Houge, Ei., £53

024-0320- House, Roubte 652
024-~0G327%~ Housgse Pﬁute 552
G24-0322~ Ho@&c, Rivey REoad
024-0323 inny Court Store
N24-0324~ Angola Farm
024-0328 House, RL. 600

ize RU.
suge, Bb.
"E .

500
£00
£00

24~ DR2E -
D84~-0327~
334-0D326~

D34-032% Routs
3 0326 &

3

3

Methodist Church

£ Ot

1

S i (B

§
T

i

i

3N U e b B R O
) "

§
ST ATy I

L34

FESEN o
R N Y Y Y M N N M
) .

i 7
024 - 8-
GE4-0GR3S
GE4-GR40-
GE4-0241- 3
GE4-~0G3472~ Houseg, iﬁonaﬁﬂn
3244~ Hougs,
55 - Houseg,

U5GE

GOLD
GOLD
GOLD
GOLD
WHITEVILLE
CUMBERLAND
LAYESIDE VILLAZ
LAYERIDE VILLALE
LARERTIDE VILLAGE
LAYESIDE VILLAGE
LAYEEZIDE VILLAGE
LAYESIDE VILLAGZE
LAKESIDE VILLAGE
CARTERBVILLE
CARTERSVILLE
"%RmERQVIZIF
LAFESIDE VILLAGE
LARZSKDE VILLAGE
CARRTERSVILLE
CARTERSVILLE
CARTERSVILLE
RTIOE
RIﬁE
CUOMBERLANT
CUOMBERLANT
CUOMBERLANG
CUMBERLAND
RICE
RICE
RICE
RICE
RICE
RICE
RICE
RICE
RICE
RICE
&.—.»E
RICE
RICE
RICE
h*LMCVZLT
HILL P“”T
HILLCRES
HILLD RM,M
HILLCREST
COMBERLAND
HILLUREST
HILLCREST
HILLUOREST

HILLLREZT
HILLCREST

WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
LARKESTDE VILLAGE
HILLOREST



VOHE

CUMBERLAND OOUTNY INVENTORY BY I.D. MNUMBER O

Page 8

VDHE FILE #

024 ~0346~
0240347~
024-0348-

024-034%-
024-0350-
024-0351-
024-0352-
024-0353-

024-0354~

024-0355-
¢24-0356-

024 L*ot
G24-0351~
(24-C352~
G24-0353~

024-0264 -
BE4-D3ES-

DE4~0366~

D24~ ﬂﬁ?*
Q240374
Q24~-GAT7R~
D24 -GIT8~
034 ~03FF -
024 ~378~
G24~0375%~
24~ GAR0~
G724 -0
G4 ~GARE -
Qzémb3ﬁ3~
G4 ~GARG ~
G24~GARS~

FIGE -

R

388~
UE4-0388-
0z4 - BQQw
?44 39

e, Routs &0
arch, Rou
se, Roub : {3
choaonrac Farm

;Eaﬁd %‘gh Schoml

Houbtse &0
Zrors, Roubhs &0
ien-Things Store

Mill, Route &0

Houss, Roube
Houss, Route
icuse, Route
Houss, Route
Houss, Routea
Maple Hill
Srore, Route &0

XAUENAERS AT S A RN AY
LA i I v I ]

Dwelling and Store, Flannagan's

Mill Road
imige, REoubte 45
Tumberliand Train
Ehiliing
Jackson High School

Cumberland Elementary School

Eouts 45

Mﬁuna Calvary Raprist Chord

Hougse, Rourne 435
House, Route €07
Routs 0%
Routs ¢35

Routs £330
Route 5&%
Roube &
L View
Roube
Route
Roube
Roube
Junk

Route
Route
Bau?’c

(43
-
f£51
ta
3

?.,

$ad fad fad ter T ()t>

IS S e 4 B R

&
&
&
&

ow w o o

naﬁﬁn*pk, T"%n @fq i Bchool
Houge

gy Agricultursl

» Fork Baptist Church

huroh

HILLCREST
HILLCREST
HILLCREST

HILLCREEST

CUMBERLAND
CUOMBERLAND
CUMBERLAND
CUMBERLAND
CUMBERLAND

CUMBERLAND
CUMBERLAND
CUMBERLAND
CUMBERLAND
CUMBERLAND
CUMBERLAND
WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
LAKESIDE VILLAGE

FARMVILLE
HILLUREST

WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE
WHEITEVILLE
AR”ERSV LLE

VILLAGE
VILLAGE
. VILLAGE
IA? ZIDE VILLAGE
LAKQ&EDE VILLAGE
LAKESIDE VILLAGE
LAKESIDE VILLAGE
LAKESIDE VILLAGE
HILLCREST
HILLCREET
HILLCREET
FARREMVILLE
WH”mFVTLL?

FRRVVIMLE
PARMVILLE
HILLIREST
FARMVILLE
LAKERIDE VILLAGE
RICE

FARMVILLE
FARMVILLE
FARMVILLE
FARRMVILLE
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B5/07/19%4

¥ OILD. HUMBER ORDER

COUTEY INVENTORY

£33

USGE (A Map

4~GRG65- Lithina prings FARMYVILLE

4-0397- cuse, Georgia FPARMYILLE

40358~ i crgia FﬁKVV?&LE
40233058~ e , Georygia FARMYILL

~ (405~ He :, Georgla FARMVILTi

: FARMVILLE

~(34 01 - Housa, Georgl
~ {3432~ Houss, Georgls Soves FARMYILLE
- {3403 Gas Station FARMVILLE
- (3404 - z Bizarre Straet FARMVILLE
~ (3445~ sg, SBpring FARMVILLE
~3405~ DUBE, Cab&“r FARMYVILLE
-3 0F - ouse, Osborn FARMVILLE
-~ (3408~ DUBE, Nbu*n O ﬁ PARMVILLE
24 - Twu&a, ~sb@xa Road FARMVILLE
Bridgs, Roubls &929 FRREMVILLE
House, Osborn Read FARMYVILLE
House, Early Strest FARMVYILLE
Confedsrate Usmetery FARMVILLE
irags Jureet FARMVILLE
Roune 4% FARRMYVILLE
ificavtion at High Bridos RICE
FERMYILLE
&LE WHITEVILLE
WHITEVILLE

§?3

DY DS A NS R RS AR N N

[FCNEN n’-\ M’-\ oS sb- ;&“A 35&- #» s&k-

CREARTE e B w S e ST w0 JE w0 S0 T 00 B0 3

o

s

B3RS G R BRS

T

b.
G24-0414~
(24-041%5~
(24-0416~
(24-0417-
(24~-0418-
(324-0419-

413 RECORDE IN THIZ REPORT



APPENDIX B
List of Surveyed Properties in Camberland County
by Name of Property



$E4~0138

0240108

24 ~0L5%

) NG
$34~01588~

$24-0126~

054 -0

NSNS

Z6

~01Y

$24~G128~

oaL

024-0001~

24-0410~

0240126~

028

0240097

GZ4-00023 -

(24~0118

VA 3%
fls Ul

Z6~018

Go3

INVENTORY BY NWAME

Antiooh United Merhodist
antioch Unitsd Methodisg

Ashland Farm

B and F Motor Paris

~

Baber, James

Rank of Cartesrsvill

Lot #%

i

Bapfhut Farasonage
Lor '?"F 17

Barber Shop, Routs 45
Barn, Route 45

Barn, Ru. 61%

ney Point Road

Bathlehsm Baptist Church

Rookeyry Cematery
Woodside

Booker House
Lot #3

rick Houszs
lren on Bouse

Virginia Forsstry Buperintendant

£

Regidence
Bridgs, Route £33
Brown Houss

Brown's Church Manse
Thompson Houss

“

Ca Ira Fishing Club, Club Houss

R
US/077/15%4

Chursh
Church

rendliston Law OFfd

Chureh
Churoh

Explanarion of Name

ourrent

Current
Hisooric

Higstoric
Current
Curvent

Historic
Higtoric

Hiztoric
Historio

Current
Current

Turrent

Hi

SLC
Alterns

Historic
Higtoric

Ezafuric
Higtoric
Commgm
Current
Historio

Historic
Current

current
Historic

Current

,“
o
[oRRE]
L
FENSEN
noa

<
< o

feie
YT
)

oric/Current

YEAR BUILT



VIHR {
UIBMBERLAND COUNTY INV y '
rage

VIHE FILE & Name of Resource

(124~0126-020 Cartergvills Baptist Church His
Lot #1% His

G24-0042- Cartersviils Cemetsry Historic 1816

e
A
ot
foe]

G24-0126-005 Darversviile Pord Dealership Historic
Lot #10 ¥

ot
L]
3%
$0d

er«v; ile ¥E Episcopal Church Historig
Historic

OEfice Higtoric 15510

Current
024-0266- Cemetry, Ru, 24 1914

GZ24-0333~ Dantensyy inited Mesthodist Church Current 1884

g

resbyterian Church Historic/Current 1HB2

G24-00G23~ Canter

oo

024-0024~ Chantilly igtoric 1739
O34 ~51089~ Chapsl, Bt. 4% Current 1820

(Z24-0348- Church, Eoute &6 Higroric 1880
Houseg, Route &8 Current

D240~ Clinton Manor House Historic 1870

&

D2

i
%

Cemstary Higtoric 1885

)
Ny
$N
H

Y
§. 2
(%]
¢

|
£
jood
4y
4]
L
&

<
o
r
v

ornerstons Church Cemstery Current 1802

-
N
[E
$
el
N
fead
ey
H
s

Turyreni 1850

D]
R
N
L)
td
oy
&
§
o
X
i
-
jae:
L7
e
Che

G24-0070~ Cremons Turyent 187%

D24-~035%0- Cumkﬁr?amﬁ High Sch Histori 1938
Cumbsrland ¥iddlie Turvent

Sk
i

D24-02%4 - Cumberliand Lookour Towery Historic 183

ot
~3
1.
%

and ¥ e
land Presbyvie

G24-0048- Cumze

xian Church Higroric
Cumber i

an Churoh Current
Historio 1840

Hignoric
Current




VIDHR 0S/07/1594
CUMBERLAND COUNTY INVENTORY BY NaME
Page 3

VIHE

YEAR BUILT

1850

re ﬁstOL
LSS Hiztor
ﬁzmtor

ﬁ(‘a(\

3

Py
e
&
<

034-0233- Dirmy Jourt Store Histori

Higtorio/Current 1815
Histovic
Historic
Historic

G24-0080-

%quln
Locust Grove

(240363~ Dwelling and Storve, Flannagan’s Turrent 1500
Mill Road

BE4-G006 - Elkora Historic 1850
G24~013%- Farm PBureau of Virginia Current 1875

g Blanton Parm Road Current 1640

B34-3195- Parm,

Anderson Hwy., (Rb. &0} Current 1E7E

024-01%%~ Tumberiand R4, Currentg R )
(24-0290- Farm, Cunberland Road Current 15090
G24~-0184- Farm, John Randolph Eoad Turrent 1875
024~0L71~ Farm, Raines Tavern Eogd Turrent 1880
024-0173- Farm, Raines Tavern koad urrent 1843
U24-0200~ Farm, Route 45 Curyrent 1883
(G24-031%- Farm, Route 500 Current 1920
(G24-0292~ Farm, Roube 617 Current 1885
G24~-01%%~ Farm, Roubs £34 Currant 1878
D34~ GR35 Farm, Routs £38 Current 1808
G34~0214~ Farm, Route 687 urrent 1R3(
DE4-D2RT -

[V . I

872 urrent 131G

5732 Curreni 1885
DZ24-0330-~ Farm, Rourne 673 Current 1BEG
G240l - Farm, Roule 583 Current 1880

DE4-D3F4 Farm, Rt £63 Current 183G

GZ4~0284~ Farm, Ru. 435 Currsnt 1895
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VOHR PILE #

5 2 3 b2
DR4~-0238~

E4-DIE6-D09

2

Parm, RL. 4%

bl
7

i, Stoney Point Rosd

¥

FParm, Tear Wallst Reoad

Planagan’s Miil
Trice g Mill
Walton Mill

Flat Kook Schogl

Pork of Willis Church

French's Stors and House
Garsyge, CTumberland Eoad

Garyraett House

T3 g g s gvs S
Churoh Strest

Gensral
Lot #39

Glasgser House

Lot #13
Masonic Lodge

Glentivar

3 18
Glantivay

Graen Creek Church

N

Greenfield Farm

{2 vy ~ >
SGreenwood

5 ~ - el - o
Zrovery Stove,
o

ooden-Things

Chuarch

Hamilton High

Harrison .
Lot #1%

Current

Current

Historic
Historic
Historic

Historic
Historic
Historic

Higtoric
Higstoric

("{‘V’”}:‘géa\‘.

igroric/Current
Historis
Higtorio
Higtorio
Historio
Hisboric
Cuyrrant
Historic
Historic/Current

Historio
Current

i
&3

L1210
LBE2



VIHE
CIMBERLAND A

Fage $

VDHR FILE 4

024~0314~

024~03236-017

024-0311-
024-0010-
024-0072-
G24-G3D6-
024-0297-

C’

bl

32

(o2t

fiaN

42

024~0179-

024-0182-

DL4-D136-D15

D24-0253-

024-017%-

~

£ EEARY
(870771554

JWTY IRVENTORY BY HNAME

Hors Du Monde

Horseshoe Bluff Farm
Houge angd Stove, Route 45
House and Suore, Route €30
Houge R, 600

Houge, 1107 Plank Road

Houge, 15886 Plank Rosd

Houge, 721 Flank Road

Houss, 76 RuL. 668 (Morth Alrport
Road;

Housie, 322 Plank Road

House, Anderson Hwy. (Ro. €0}

Houss, aAngola Rosd

House, Bizavre Sorest

Houne, <a Irs Road

o

Houss, Churcoh Strssit

Historic/Currsnt

Historic
Higtoric

Historic

Hiztoric/Currsnt

Current
Currant
Current
Current
Current
ibali G180 81
Current
Jurrent

Current

Current
Curreant
Coarrent
Juryent
Current
Current
Current
Currant
Current

Current
Historio

Historio

Current

1910

1884



AERLAND COIINTY INVENTORY BY NAME
-

Pags ¢

Explanation of Nams

D24~-018%- iouge, Cumberliand Road Current 1806

Current 1906

s
133

N24-018% -~ House, Cumberland Road (R

g
ot
<y

024-02232- Housge, Deep Run Reosd (Kb, & Current 1830

Current 1925

Current 1875
024-03438~ Houas, Fivtsgerald Road Currant 1875
D24-0143- House, Fitzgerald Rosd Current 1878
0240144~ iouss, Fivtsgerald Road Cuyrrent 1875
024-0145- House, Fitsgerald Road Zurrent 1875

D24-01446- House, FPitzogsrald Road Curyent 1500

G24-0398- Housge, Georgls Stress Current 1825
(24-0399- House, Georgls Streen Current 1825
024 -0400- House, Georgils 3treet ourrent 1835
034-0401~ House, Georgla Street Durrent LEIB
G24-0402~ Houge, Beorglia Street Current 1825
(240061~ Houges, Hillcrast Road Current 1825
024~-0083 - Houge, Hillorest Road Current 1828
G24~0163%- Houss, Holman Mill Road Turrent 1875
G4 ~0306~ House, Langhorns Road {(Rh. 717 Surrent 1890
034-02308- Houses, Langhorns Read (Ro. 717} Current 1935
D24~03406~ Houge, Osbhorn Road Current 1825
D24-0407 - House, Qsborn Road Suryent 1825

D24 - 040H~ Houss, Osbhorn Boad Durrent 1935

G224 -040%- Current 1935

DE4-0411-

oy ey e v

D24~0231~ Houge, Farkey Hoad {(BD, 548 Current

DZ24-0187~ Houge, PFPlank Rosad Currant Lnil



”“&R D8/07/1934
COURTY INVENTORY BY NAME

Nams PESOULOS Explanation of Hame YEAR BC Lﬁ

(324-033%9- House, Route §© Curreni 1930

024-034% Houge, Roubs &0 Currsent 182G
(24-0347- House, Routs &0 Current 180G

34 Currsnt 184G

(24-0353~ House, Route &0 [chh
($Z24-0383- Houge, Houbs &0 Currant 1898
(24-0387- Houge, Route &0 Currant 1894

(24-035%8~ Houge, BEoune &0 Surrent 1880

Lt
o3
M
-
Ead
Ea
i
]
o
}.J
o5
0
&2

(24-0389- Houine, REoute
024-0022~ Houge, Route 60 Current 1830
034 -~0386~ Hounes, Route 60 Current 1830
U34-050358~ House, Eoute 60 Current 1BHBG

~P203~ Houss, Route £00 Current 1L
$24-0313%~ Howuges, Routse 540 Currvent 1870
024~0316~ Houss, Roubte 500 Current 14900
(G248 -0329~ Houge, Roube &40 Currsnt 1830
(24-03%2- Houge, Houbs &40 Currant 15926
(24-0G3%3- Houne, Houts 00 Current 182%

&40 Currant 1%2%

o
5
S
Pee’
$ad
e
N
o
3
b
ot
[¥1]
&
O
o
ot
et

GE4~-D3R70- Hougs,

GE4-3237% - Housie, Route 605 Current 188¢

DE4~-0369 Houge,

D34-0341~ House, Eoune S48 {(Johnson Road) Currvent 12040

Rours 608 {(Johnson Rogdl Current 1308

DZ28-03%0- Houge, Houbs &09 17ED
0240377 House, Roubs 610 194%

(240344 - House, Roubs 612 Current

SLE Currsnt 184(

024~0318~ Hoyge,
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& - Houge, Plank Road Current 1885

324-0177- House, Plank Road Current 1885
024 -C180- Houze, Plank Road Curreaent 1875
02401832~ House, Flank Eoad Current LBRG
GZ4-0170~ House, Kaines Tavern Road Current 1875
avern Road Currsnt 18

Tavern Read COrmncT: 1850

®oad Currsnt 1850

Currsnt 1924
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]
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034 -D385- Houge, HEoute 4%
D34-04158- Houss, Route 45 Current 13E8
024-0368~ House, Boute 48 Current 1830
D24-0388~ House, Houte 45 Current LESYH
N24-QRR7T - Houge, Eouls 45 Current 19140
24 -GA5E - Houge, Routs 45 Current 1935
(24 ~0368%~ House, Roubts 45 Current 1834
034 -00585~ Houge, Routs 45 urrent 181¢
CE4-0383~ Houge, Routs 4% Curreant 182G

Current L1800

GZ24-02473 Hougs, Rourte 4% Curyent 1836
027248 -0301-~ Hougs, Rouns 45 Current 1RG0
(24-030%9- Houss, Routs 4% Curzent 190G

0240241 House, Roubts 4% H Currant ITETE
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31 Current 183G
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034~-0380~ Houss, Route 531 Turrent 1838

U24-03233- Houss, Route 538 Turrent 1880
024-0334~ Hougea, Route 38 Current 18461
(24-0338- Houge, Houbs 639 Current 188§
(24-0312- Hougs, Roube £473 Turrent 1905
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G24-0G302 - House, R, 45 Current 1325
G24-00483- House, Ro. 45 Current 1333
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House, Rb. &47

Houge, Ru. 647

House, Spring Strast

House, Vogel Roead
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Hums House

Gresham House

Lot Y

Indian Houge
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Marsh House

Mays Hous

Melroge

Z 5 v,
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pill, Route 68
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&)
Morton's i

Mount Calvary Bapbist Church
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Muddy Crsek MiLl
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&
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D24-03075%~ Nan‘s LPEG
Amprhil
D24~-0117~ Newstead Historic 1926

1828

024-0247- Gak Grove Baprnist Churoh Current 18048

Hizsnoric/Ourrent

024-0031- Qakland Historic LFET
D24-0220~ Oakliand Higstoric 184

Qakland Histovic 1750
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OQakwood Maethodist Church Durrent 1811

024 -02%6

GR4-DCHE- Gatland 1808

Oanland

Current 1800
OO D

D34-01L37 -

D24 ~0126-002 Palmore H
Cartarsville Tavern H

Lot #18 Hi

Payne Memorial United Methodist Current 1314

Church

GE4-D003~ Flag

gant Grove

(Ea~0376- Fleagant View Baphist 153G

DZ24~-0186~014 Pleagantg Housge 1H5E
Lor #3686 Higtoric

D24-0349 Higtoric 1405
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o
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Y b1y v s L e vy R INES
024~0167~ Putney Housgea Currant 1905

Puiney Hx
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fend

iclph, Jobn High School

ked Rose Inn Apartmenhs

Biging Zion Raptist CThurch

Robers
Stare,
Housa,

Rochells

Rook Casitle

Spring Farm
Paul’s School

45

Su, Catvherine Catholic Church
Episcopal Chuxch
Stinnstt Houss

Stinson Houss

Zroddert Bchool

St

nensil and Holland Store
al Store

Cumber iland Road

i
H
O
I
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o]
&~
&
{
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6}
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[
Q0

T
viph, Jonn Elementary School

Ezplanation
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Higtorio
Current
Currant
Currant
Currsnt

Currsnt
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Current
Currant
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Turrsent
Current

Current
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SCurrent

IRLG
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0

4
(43

18706

1880
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131G
1824
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(24-0208-

024-0126-022
G24-0035-

0Z24-0126-012

(24-0417~

(24-0128-005

N4 -6~

D34-0071~

$ETY INVERTORY BY

Churoh

The Countyy
The Deansyy

Thomas Chapel

Tobacoo Barn at Hamilt

Tobacoo Barn, Ro. 654

Tombstong of Charleas

THOrnLon

Trenton MLL1
Uniorn Church

Uniorn Hill
Rock dottags

{ 1‘

nigus
Viewnont

W.E., Eobingon House
Lot #2%

Walnat HLll

Walton Houge

Wilkinson House

Willow Bank
Wing House

dlawn

O

Irving

xplanat

ion of Name

Current

Higtoric
Higtoric/Current

Higtoric/Current

Current
Current

Historio

urrent
Higtoric
Current

Historic
Alcernate Name

Current
Historic

Historic
Higtoric

Historic/Turrent

Higtorio/Current

FRAR BUILY
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VIDHR FILE #

Ezplanation of Name

D24 -4038- Woodlawn

Higtorio 178

D24 -020G2- World of Video and Masc

gonic Lodge Current i
2R3

THIZ REPORT
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034 -018&- Moroon s
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w,ﬁﬂtiil‘ TTAD
House , Roube 605 LTAD
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Narn’ g CJontage
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034 -300L Eri
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Virginia Forsstry Supsrintendant
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034 -G080~ Duncan®s Dairy Farm
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Hudgin Tavern
Locust Grove
Houss, RbL. &0

% PR o) o0

- House, Routs 64
- 3 4 57 S
- House, KL, €74

Horthiield

Spring Hill

G07 - Pork of Willis Churoh
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& H Angoia R Current
13~ He Aral Ros Curreant
Z H Deep Run Turrent
= H Langhorn Turrent i
e House, Route 43 Current 120
3 Houge, Route 45 Current 1RO
S Houss, Route &0 Curyent 1RO
G383~ House, Route 60 ourrent LRI
GART -~ House, Route £U0 Current 189
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~DUES - Tobacos Barn at Hamilion Currsns 1830
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(24-0181- Sharoer cist Cemelary Current
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SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION

In December 1993 the Virginia Department of Historle Resources (VDHR) contracted with
Traceries to conduct a comprehensive survey of Cumberland County and to document a total of
420" historic resources within the county. Traceries, a consulting finm concemed with architectural
history and preservation conducted the survey offort. As such, Traceries provided overall
management of the survey, conducted research into the history of Cumberland County, conducted
reconnaissance-level and intensive-lovel on-site survey work, conducted data entry, and prepared the
final survey report

The survey for the Virginia Department of Historic Resources was undertaken in collaboration with
the Cumbetland County Office of Community Development and the Cumberland County Historical
Society. The Office of Community Development was instrumental in the organizational stages nf
the survey and provided Traceries with access to the public by sponsuring public meetings, and by
contacting owners of historic properties regarding the survey of the county. Members of the
Cumberland County Historical Society provided the impetus for the survey project as a whole, and
were indispensable in helping Traceries identify demolished buildings and historie properties not
casily acressible.

The survey of Cumberland County provided a comprehensive on-site coverage of the area and a
complete Hsting of the county’s historic and cultural resources. The survey and documentation of
the county’s historic resources also resulted in the identification of thirteen properties that are
potentially eligible for the National Register of Histonc Places.

The survey of Cumberland County was a priority for both the state and county. From DHR's
perspective, Cumberland County has a Hmited amount of historical survey work on record and mwuch
of it is outdated and inaccurate. The county considered the survey a priority for a number of
reasons. First, the county recognizes that their valusble resourses, many of which have been lost in
recent vears and are currently being threatened, must be tdentified and mventoried before a
preservation plan can be developed and implemented. Second, the county is currently working on
plans for the construction of a waste water treatment plant, which will inevitably vesult in expanded
residential growth and development. The survey is recognized as the first step necessary 1o ensure
that future development is not threatening 1o historic resources. but is planned in such a way that
protects resousces of historic and architectural significance.  Finally, the county is interested in
promoting tourist attractions in the area, primarily, the route of Robert E. Lee’s retreat through the
county, and other historic points of inferest such as the Cartersville Historic District.” The swrvey

properties.

2 Copberlamd Connty s oorrently working
being fanded by Intermodal Surfuce Transportation Elficieney Act (STE
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would provide the county with a database from which the historic points of interest can be selected
and promoted.

i



SECTION 11 BESEARCH DESIGN

A. Project Objectives

The goal of the project was to conduet 8 comprehensive survey of Cumberland County, identifying
the area’s historie resources including buildings, structures, and sites 30 vears old or older. The
contract required Traceries to survey and document 420 of these identified properties-—-378 1o the
reconnaissance level and 42 to the tensive level. The principal purpose of the project was to
provide the county with an accurate Hsting and assessment of the area’s resources~the first step
nocessary to ensure the future protection and preservation of the county’s architecturally and
historically valued resources.

The scope of work included the following activities:

i, provide survey forms completed to the appropriate levels along with black and white
photographs and slides. as appropriate, for each surveyed property;

A

provide narrmative architectural descriptions and architectural and historical summary
statements of the properties surveyed.

place the surveved properties within the historical context of the growth and
development of Cumberlasd County as based on the historic themes recogmzed by
the Virginia Department of Historte Resources.

{3

4. evaloate the significance of these resourses and make recommendations for potential
National Register Nommations and local historical districts:

5. provide recommendations on further study and preservation planning that may he
used by the county in the preparation of a preservation component for the
Comprehensive Plan.

B. Survey Coverage Avea

The survey area incloded the entire county of Cumberland,  Located in the Lower Piedmaont,
Cumberland County i3 a long amd narrow county, roughly bounded on the north by the James River,
on the south and southeast by the Appomatiox River, on the northeast by Powhatan and on the west
by Buckingham County., The county iz located approximately 30 miles west of Richmond and is
traversed by State Route 60 from cast to west and Route 45 from north to south (Figure 1)

i3
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The survey included the entire county, as well as the northern section of the Town of Farmville--that

part of the town that extends north of the Appomattox River and falls within the county
boundares.”

(. Project Methodology

Preliminary Planning

Prior to initiating the field survey, Traceries collected the necessary U, Geological Sorvey (USGE)
Maps of Cumberdand County and compiled already existing mformation on previously identified and
surveved historic resources in the area. This informalion was collected at the Virginia Department
of Historic Resources and the Cumberland County Office of Community Development. The DHR
survey data included information on approximately 100 architoctural sites identified during previous
surveys, including a survey vonducted by the Virginia State Landmarks Commission in 1972 and a
survey conducted by the Historie American Buildings Inventory of Virginia in 1957, Information
tacated at the Office of Community Development was Hmited to a collection of Cumberland County
Histewical Bulletins.

Buased on the above survey records, Traceries indicated on the USGSE maps all of the previoushy
identified sites in the county, as well as properties listed on the National Register of Historic Places.
The sompilation of provious findings and the marked-up USGS maps provided the framewnrk from
which Traceriss bogan both the on-site and archival study of Cumberand County.

A public presentation made before the County Board of Supervisors and the general public was held
on February 23. 1994, The purpose of the presentation was to give the Board, members of the
Historic Socisty. and the general public an understanding of the survey process and survey goals.
An additional presentation was made to the Cumberland Historie Society on June 12, 1994, The
purpose of this meeting was to give the Society a status report and to elivit their help in locating
umdentified properties and for further directing on-site work.

Om-site hurvey

The on-site survey was conducted primarily by Lisa Tucker and Sujatha Shan and managed by

fmberly Williams in the pedod from March 1994 through August 1994, The survey team worked
tagether to map, survey and photograph the histore sites. The team identified the sites 1o be

surveved, completed the survey forms to the appropriate level, and photographed the sites. When

marated from the county, this northers portion above the Appomatiox

tharefore, inehaded in the suvey.

3 Althengh the Town of Famville is legally =
River was historicaily part of the county, and wr
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owners or residents of the propertiss were present, the survey project was tntroduced to them and
informal oral histories wers conducted.

Using the USGS maps. the survey team investigated every paved and unpaved voad leading o a
marked property within the entire survey area. If a property was innecessible due to impassable
mad conditions or because of a locked gate, the survey team noted it on the maps; at a mid-point
through the survey members of the Cumbertand County Historical Society then reviewed the maps
and helped the team determine whether the properties merited swrvey work,

If & property was accessible and determined to be 50 vears or older, i was surveyed to cither tha
reconnaissance or intensive level. As modified, the survey proposal required a survey of 3538
properties at the reconnaissance level and 46 properies at the intensive level. The level of
examination was dependent upon several factors including. but not limited to the following: 1) the
date of construction; 2) the level of architectural significance; 33 the level of historical significancs;
4y the condition of the property; 5) the integrity of the property; 6) the distinctiveness of the
building type; 7) degree of representation of the building type: 8) the interinr accessibility of the
property’s resources; and 9) potential threat to the property. In general. a property was surveyed to
the intensive level if it contained one or more resources built before the Civil War, or if one or
more resources on the property was a particularly good example of a type or style of coustruction;
or if a group of historic resources existed as a cohesive complex. A property surveyed fo the
tntensive Jevel versus the reconnaissance level required greater documentation, including extensive
examination and survey of every resource on the property including interiors, as well as archival
rescarch.

Archival Rescarch

Research into the history of Cumberland County was conducted simultaneously (o the on-site
investigation and continued beyond its completion. This research involved the examination of
published books and articles, as well as unpublished documents. Published recnrds were located at
the Virginia State Library and Archives in Richmond, and the Camberland Public Library in
Cumberiand, Published sources on the histary of Comberland County are imited. Cumberland
County Virzinia snd Its People. by the Cumberland County Historical Socioty, published in 1983 is
the most up to date and complete publication on the county’s historic and architectural resources.
Although outdated, Today and Yesterday in the Heart of Viminia, published by the Farmville Herald
in 1935, also provided useful information. Other important published sources include the
compilation of the Cumberland County Historical Society Bulletins, The Crucible and the
Comerstone, Felixville: A Foreotten Village in Cumberland County, Virginia and Other Sketches,
and articles located in Virgtnia Caveleade and the Virginia Genealogist.

Unpublished sources on the history of the county were found in personal files belonging to the
Cumberland County Historical Society and included, WPA survey forms from the 1930s and
miscellancous reports on selected sites, Historic photographs compiled as part of the WPA survey

13



Ciotober 17, 1994

were vollected at the Virginia State Library and Archives and provided important information on the
status of historic resoyrces in the county,

Primary source research was limited to maps and agricultural census records. The maps provide
knowledge of the growth and development of the area, while census records provided statistics on
population and the agricultural industry of the county.

Oral Histonies

An intrinsic aspeet of surveying involves conducting casual nral histories of local property owners
and residents. In general when a property is being surveved, the owner is interviewed for his
knowledge of the property and the individual resources on the property and the information is
captured at that time. Other oral history research was not s casualy mdividuals having a particular
knowledge of the area’s resources and history were specifically fxterviewed by the survey team.
County residents providing significant fuput into the survey include, John and Dorothy Putney, Julia
Cox, Jo Smith, and Dr. W.E. Blanton, Jr.

YDHR-Inteorated Preservation Software Data Eouv

All of the survey findings, from the on-site survey and the archival study. were entered into the
Virginia Department of Historie Resources-Integrated Preservation Software (VDHR-IPS) system.”
This computer svatem allows for information to be entered nto the computer and stored and then
sorted and enumersted for accurate and consistent accounts of study findings. Computer yeports can
be generated to produce frequency counts on appropriate fields; user-formatted yeports on iemized
historic events, associated individuals, chronological periods and other specific fields such as
architectural stvle, building materials. interior plans and the Lke. VDHR-IPS was an important
component of the survey, and will be a useful planning tool for Cumberiand County, The
information on the computer can be continucusly updated, added to and used to gonerate reports.

D. Expected Results

As originally written in the Request for Proposal (RFP) and well-defined in the contract, it was
expected that 378 properties would be surveved fo the reconnaissance fevel and 42 properties would
be surveved to the intensive fevel. The identification and survey of the 42 tntensive-lovel propertics
posed no problem. However, because of the rural nature of the survey area, the identification of the
required number of recomnaissance-level properties became an issue once the survey was well
underway, The territory to be surveved was being comprehensively covered, but the number of
properties meriting survey work was not advancing along the same tines. By the time the entire
county was covered, a total number of 278, as opposed to 378, properties were documented to the

" Phe P8 software veraion used in the Cumberlaml County swrvey is Yersion 30U
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reconnaissance level, Following discussions with DHR and the county, it was decided that certain
arsas originally excluded from the survey would be included. These two areas were the northern
end of the Town of Fammville {north of the Appomsttox River} and the Cartersville Historic Distnct.
Farmville had not onginally been included as it is a town outside the county limits (although
historically part of it), while Cartersville had not originally been included as it is a recognized
historic district.

In addition to surveving the northemn section of Farmville and the Cartersville Historic District,
particular attention was paid to surveying cach and every resource fifty years or older and found
along Routes 45 and 607 Route 45 from Farmville to Cumberland s the site of an important
proposed sewer fine project. As this undertaking has a potential impact on every property located
along the route, each one was documented.® Although Route 60 is not currently slated for a

was, therefore. felt that a thorough Dsting of all properties 30 vears or older should be compiled.

As a result of these changes 1o the scope of work, a contract modification was made that required a
total of 338 properties to be surveved 1o the reconnaissance level and 46 properties to be surveyed
{0 the fntensive level. In the end, the number of surveved propertics actually exceeded these
numbers, A total of 368 propertics were surveyed to the reconnaissance level, while 48 were
surveved 1o the fntensive Jevel

* Approximately four properties were not surveyed because permission from the property owoers was nol granted.

wed sewer Hine will be valuable information onse
raject or nndertaking that may bave an affect on
2 vy process, Section 106 of the Historie

snended, poes into effect, As part of this process, & swvey and evalualing of all lustoriv
propevties would be reguired. Az the supvs faation has alveady taken place az part of this survey, the cellestion of
this formation would not have 1 be repeated and the fndings could be used in case of Section 106 review,

“The smvey of all properties slong the proposed route of the prop
the project is underway. to general, if foderal lunds are mvolved o
dgiorie properties potentislly e ister

eservation Aot of 194
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SECTION T HISTORIC CONTEXT

A, Historic Overview of Cumberland County

Located in central Virginia, Cumberland County is bounded by the James River to the north, the
Appomattox on the south and southwest, and the counties of Powhatan fo the northwest and
Buckingham to the ecast (Figure 1), Cumberland County was created from Goochland County in
1748 and consists of fertile agricultural land traversed by the Willis River and the Muddy and
Gumea Ureeks (Figure 23

tn addition to its colorful focal historv, the county lays claim to several Civil War-related activities.
Robert E. Lee’s retreat in the last davs of the Civil War went through the lower comer of the county
and some skirmishes oocurred in Cumberland territory.  The High Bridge, which Lee ordered bumt
near the end of the Civil War, stands in Cumberland County as do Thaxsten House and
Cumberland Presbyterian Church were Les is known to have met with his war advisors near the
end of the war, The county contains several Civil Waraelated sites including the Confederate
Cemetery, and Walnut Hill. The county as a whole, however, was spared the damage inflicted o

many other areas of Virgima

Historically, Cumberland’s primary industry has been agriculture. While once a predominantly
tobaceo producing county, local farmers now grow com. wheat, and other crops as well as raise
cattle. Because of its agricultural heritage, small cross roads communities sprang up around the
county, with no real centralized city. Located at either end of the county are srall towns~-
Cartersville, on the James River to the north, and a part of the town of Famville to the seuth,
Centrally located in the county, is the Cumberland County Courthouse, arcund which a small
town has risen. The town of Cartersville, consisting of thirtv-seven lots running nosth-south and
conforming to a curve in the James River, was originally platted in 1790, The only other formally
platted town within the county lines was Felixville. Though platted in 1811 Felixville was never
actually developed. The area araund the Cumberland Courthouse consists of a hinear development
along Route 60. Several small villages historically found in Comberland County were located at
cross roads imtersections and consisted of a group of residences, a country store, and a post office.
Sunny Side. a small community clustered around the predecessor to Grove Church, is an excellent
example of this type of community, Other examples of this crossroads village tvpe are Clinton and
Humilton. Clinton, named for an eighteenth century British General, at one time bad as many as
thirty dwellings, two stores. a carriage shop, a grist mill, a post office, and four blacksmiths shops.
The town of Tamworth, near the Powhatan Cowunty line, grow up around the Muddy Creek % it
during the cighteenth and nineteenth centuries. Perhaps the oldest village in the country is Ca fra,
named for a popular song during the French Revolution. Fstablished by the General Assembly in
1796, Ca Ira reached its peak in the first quarter of the nineteenth century,

Like agriculture, milling was also an fmportant local 19th-century mdustry. Located along the
castern edge of the county are three of the county’s four antebellum mills, Trent's Mill, Trenton
Mill, and Trice’s Mill (Flanagan’s Mill} are all located along branches of the Willis River to the
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east. The Muddy Creek Mill, o former mill conter located near the small town of Cartersville, s
tocated along the Muddy Creek near the James River.

Cumberand County’s religious history predates the actual founding of the county. In 1745,
Southam Parish was created from Saint James Parish and was coterminous with the boundardes of
Cumberland County, founded four vears later, As the Church of England was the recognized
religion at the time, the eardiest churches in Cumberland County were Anglican. Tar Wallet
Chureh stands on the site of an carlier church from this period which dates to 1732, By the end of
the vighteenth century, the established church was being dismantled. When the Statue of Religious
Freedom was passed in 1779, and laws reguiring mandatory attendance at the established church
were repeated, an assorfment of different dominations arose in Cumberland County. The Baptists,
Methodists, Presbyterians, and others were all represented and continue to eolor the religious
mabkeup of the county foday.

The history of education in Cumberland County follows the rest of the state in many ways. The
first general school law was passed in 1796, This law rested on the willingness of a wum\ {0
accept responsibility for free education. The gentleman justices of Camberland County provided for
such free schonling for the poor as early as the 1790s. The nineteenth century was an era of change
for the educational system across Virgiaia, On April 13, 1872, the Board of School Trustees of
Cumberland County organized their first county school board and proposed a tax to support a sohod

system. One month later a three day Teacher’s Institute was held dodng which theories of
;dmz«mo;} were 1o be discussed. By 1892, there were thitty-two white teachers and sisteen black
teachers n the vounty,

In addition to the several historic churches and school houses located throughout the county, are
many historic houses from a wide amay of styles. The county has an excellent wollection of Federal
period dwellings, as well as many Greek Revival period dwellings and churches.

While many of the county’s historic resources are owned by individuals, Bear Creek State Forest,
bounded by Route 60 to the south and the Trent's Mill arca to the vorth, is a State Park open to the
public for s"‘cr;:mamﬁ purposes. The Cumberland $tate Forest, with over 14,000 acres, contains a
good cross-section of a variety of historic resources including prehistoric ocoupation sies,
cemeteries, and fwo early ninsteenth-ventury dwellings. The forest also containg several fishing
lakes fed by Bear Creek and the Willis River and 15 an important recreational area for county
residents and tounsts.

Many community, social, fratemal and charitable organizations have prospered throughout
Cumberland’s history, Freemasonry in Cumberland County dates to as carly as 1792 when the
Powhatan Amicable Lodge #28, originally chartered in 1790, was moved tiy the Cumberand
Courthouse and rechartered as the Cumberland Lodge #28. By 1842, there were five lodges in the
county.

Puring the nineteenth and early twentioth conturies, visiting natural springs became a popuiar
pastime across Virginia. The springs were thought to have medicinal value and became the site of
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recretional and healing-related ventures. The Lithia Springs in Cumbedand County, just nosth of
Farmville, were discovered in 1877 when Elizabeth Ross Houston drank from them during a walk
behind her house. Fecling better from having taken the waters, Elizabeth apparently continued to
visit the springs wntil she noted an alteration in her health. By word of mouth the curing p{'mer of
the springs spread wntl they became incorporated in 1884, At the hevday, there wore stxteer

springs on the site.

As can be seen, Cumberland has a rich history that is well represented by the built environment. Of
this history, however, only ten properties have been formally recognized and listed on the National
Register of Historic Places: Ampthill (24-32, ca. 1830), the € artersville Bridge Ruins (24-33, ca.
18223, Clifton {24-36, ca. 17530}, Grace Fpmcapai Chureh (24-9, ca. 18403, Morven (24-27, ca

1820). the Cartersville Historic District (24-126, ca. 1790), Needbam (24-30, ca. 1821, the
Muddy Creek Mill (24-16, ca. 1754}, the Charles Irving Thornton Tombstone {24-534), and the
Cumberland County Courthouse and Jail (24-5, 24-25). An additional thirteen have bcon
recommended for listing, The inclusion of these thirteen will more fully HHlustrate the county’s
history and architectural heritage.

TRee mdividual themes for more in-depth historical information and refornoes © souroes.
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Figure v Map of Comberland County



B. Historic Themes

THEME: ETHNICITY/AMMIGRATION AND SETTLEMENT
RESOURCE TYPES: Towns and Villages

TOWNS AND VILLAGES

Although most of the domestic settlements coourred as farms, plantations, and other izolated
communities, a number of villages copoentrated at road intersections and river landings also grew up
in the county. Many of these small villages were unplanned communities which svolved with the
needs of the local citizens. Others, such as Cartersville, Farmville, and Felisville, were planned
developments that were laid out to specific requirements. A summary of some of the significant
villages and towns is Hsted below,

Cartersville

The town of Cartersville, divided into 37 parcels, was platted oo May 15, 1790 (Map, May 13,
17903 The lots were reotilinear ronning north-south and conforming 1o a curve along the James

River, In October of 1790, 27 acres of land at Carter’s Ferry belonging to Jodm Woodson, were laid
out into half acre lots with convenient streets, establishing the town of Carersville. At this time it
was specified that the land was to be sold at public avetion and the butldings to be ewcied were to
conform to the following standards:  minimum of sixteen feet square with a brick or stope chimmey
and fit for habitation. These were to be built within a five vear period of time® In 1793, an act
permitting Cartersville landowners g longer thme to build was passed. This act forbade wood and
dirt chimneys and log houses. Horse macing in the streets was alse banned®

Originally a river front town which thrived on shipping tobacco and bousing travelers along the
Tames River, today the Town of Cartersville consists of approximately thirty buildings, the majonty
of thew being single family dwellings.  In addition, there are two churches. a post office. and one
store.  Of the existing buildings in the village, three date to recent fimes, while most date 1o the
cighteenth and nincteenth centurics. Most of the buildings along High Street date 1o the original
platting of Cartersville at the end of the cighteenth contury.

Felixville

The village of Felixville, although platted, was never actually developed. Established by the State
Assembly in 1811 as a specnlative land venture, Felisville was latd out into 39 Jots, many of which
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were sold on November 11, 1813, Following an outbreak of typhoid or malaria, the town was sold
10 Thomas and Meriwether Goodman in 1819

Cumberland Courthouss

As the second site of the Cumberland Courthouse originally known as "Effingham.” the area around
the Cumberland Courthouse is a good example of g town which evolved over time without any
formal planning or linear development. The majority of the building took place along Route 45 on
sither side of the courthouse. Some additional development nccumred along Route 500 leading 1o
the courthouse. In 1836, The Gazetteer of Vireinia and the District of Columbia described the
Courthouse area as containing in addition fo the county buildings, five dwelling houses, cue
mercantile store, a non-denominational house of worship, two tavems, a saddler, and a boot and
shoo factory. Among the residents at the time were a tailor and various mechanics,

Included in this arca today is the Cumberlund County Courthouse, the old jail, seversl late-
nineteenth to carly-twentieth century stores, a mill and four mill workers” houses, some turn-of-the-
century dwellings, and two churches.

Sunny Side

Located along Route 13, Sunny Side refers to an area between Route 534 and Route 621, Sunny
Side is a typical cross roads community of raral Virginia and Cumberland County. Originally
established at the intersection of the Brazeal and Clatke family estates, the first post office at Sunny
Side was located in Fravser's Tavem on the Brazeal estate in 1857, When Mirs. Brazeal retired as
postmistress, the post office was moved nest door to the Guthrie Home (24-211). Approximately
ane mile north of the post office, Mr. H. A Fronch opened his mercamtile store in 1876 which he
cominuousty operated until his death in 1899, Across from the store was Ralph Berger's blacksmith
shop. In 1890, with the advent of the Powhatan-Cumberland Railroad narrow gauge ling, a station
was placed midway between the Post Office and French's store. This resulted in the construction of
several neighboring structures including a stemmery (tobacco factory), a freight station and
passenger depot, a station master’s house, and commissary.  Activities came to an abmpt halt in
1917 when the raitroad was taken up, sold. and shipped to France. In addition to the post office and
rilroad related buildings, two churches, Grove Methodist Church and Centenary Baptist stood on
the site.

M pabertand County Historical Society, Cumbertand County and Iis Penple. Walsworth Publishing Company, p. 18,

Yumbertand County Historical Sooiety, pp. 1718,

? Compbertand County Historical Soclety, pp. 3021
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Today. little remains of the railroad community, though several of the neighboring structures were
{ocated, Included in this area are French's Store and house, several residences, the Garrett house
housing the former Sumny Side post office. Centenary Baptist Church and Grove Church,

Tamworth

Located along the Muddy Creek, Tamworth represonts a nineteenth century mill community.
Originally consisting of the Muddy Creek Mill (24-16), miller’s house. post office and store as well
as a cooper’s shop, blacksmith’s shop, and saw mill, Tamworth today includes several of these
original structures. The mill #self, the miller’s house, the store and post office, as well as two
dwellings

were surveved. The mill and its surrounding properties are listed on the National Register of
Historie Places.

Hillorest

Hiflorest is a twentieth-century community sear the Cumberland Courthouse and also located along
Route 45 1t consists of a small group of abandoned stores and several eardy twentieth centiry
dwellings.

Hamilion

The Hamilton crossroads community is Jocated along Route 43 just outside of Cartersville af the
intersection of Route 43 with Route 690, Several dwellings and the chimmey remains of an
eighteenth century tavemn (24-106) are located in this arca, as is Hamilton High School, dating 1o the
carly twentieth centiry, and two stores,

Clinton

Clinton, also a cross roads community, is located at the intersection of Route 60 and Route 654
Originally named for eighteenth-century British General Henry Clinton. the town dates 1o the
mineteenth century. Omnce a thriving conmmunity, Clinton boasted approximately thirty dwellings,
two stores, a carriage shop, a grist mill, a post office and four blacksmiths shops.'’

Today all that remains of this once prosperous community is the Clinton Manor House, Bruner
Store, the “Courthouse” house, Moore’s Store (abandoned), and a fow other dwellings, Bruner’s
Store {originally Maxey’s) incorporates part of a building dating to the eighteenth contury with a
tong and varied history as a dance hall, a masonic temple, a Sunday school, church, sawmill,

¥ Cumberiand Historical Society, pi6,
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residence. tobacco stripping bam, and store’ The “Courthouse” house dates to the carly
nineteenth century.  According to local lore. court was held in this house during the construction of
the Cumberland Courthouse (24-5), 1818-1821.%

Calra

The commumity of Ca Ira, located along Route 632 near the Willis River, served as a take out point
for the Willis River and as the main exporting point along the Willis. The community took 5 name
from g popular French marching song meaning "the Revolution will trimmph” or it will go”
reflecting the popular enthusiasm for the French Revolution in Virginia at the time.’® Though
originally cstablished by the General Assembly in 1796, it seached its high point betwesn 1827 and
1860, Described by Joseph Martin in 1836 in The Gazeticor of Vimsinia and the Distnict of
Columbia, the village of Ca Ira contained approximately 40 dwellings, three mercantile stores, a
merchant mill, a tobacco warchouse, two tavems, a non-denominational church, and a masonic hall
The population at the time was 310 and mail was delivered three times a week. Amongst the
residents were two blacksmiths, two wheelwrights, two tailors, and two plough manufacturers.

The rapid expansion of this community took place as a result of the removal of a dam along the
large pond adjacent to the area. Prior tin this, the surrounding pond has produced condifions for
bilious attacks which has twice nearly depopulated the town coupletely. During its hevday, Ca I
hoasted $40.000 worth of sales annoally by its three mercantile stores, 28,000 1o 30,000 bushels of
wheat ground at the mill during the season, and 300 to 500 hogsheads of tobacen received. ™

Today, only a fow buildings survive from this once thoiving village, The extant structures located
along Route 632 near the Ca bra Pond include Grace Episcopal Church (24-009), now on the
National Register, approximately five modest dwellings, and the Ca Ira Fishing Club (24-116) Of
these, ondy the church and fishing lodge date to Ca Ira's period of prospenty.

Y Michae! Bovkin, The Faroville Herald, Mawch 12, 1975, p. 1

Y Yirgimia Department of Mistoris Resuuress, Survey Form.

Y adational Register Nomination, Grace Episcopal Church, po 3.
7 Cunberiend County Historiead Society, p. 16,

* Cunberiand County Historica! Society, p. 16
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THEME: RESIDENTIAL/DOMESTIC

RESOURCE TYPES: Smgle-family Dwellings, Secondary Dwellings, Domestic Outbuldings.
Throughout its history, Comberland County has been marked by a high percentage of domestic
structures.  Originally a part of Goochland County, records indicate that Cumberdand was settled as

carly as the carly cighteenth century, with settlement concentrated along the James River and at the
cross-roads of important transportation routes.

SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLINGS

A large portion of the domestic structures in Cumberland County reflect a vernacular tradition based
on regional precedents rather than on any pure academic style. The builders within the region had a
targe fluence on the architectural forms and were responsible for creating and adapting styles and
slements associated with the area. During the eighteenth century, pattern books which provided the
hutlders with architectural plans and details, had an impact on the designs of the perdod. Beyond
the vernacular tradition, Comberland County includes some residential buildings reflecting the more
formal Federal, Italianate, Greck, and Gothic Revival styles.

Farly Settlement Period {1570-178%)

Vernacular Houses:

Much of the architecture from the carly settlement period in Cumberland County is not directly
associated with any academic style, but is instead Hmited to vemacular building forms, The most
prominent vernacular configuration is the modest hall-parlor plan.

In general, hall-parior houses are 1-1/2 story, two-room plan dwellings covered with steeply pitched
gable roofs. The hall was entered directly from the outside and led into the pador. The Hinear plan
of these vernacular forms evolved from the traditional British folk bouses, but grow o accommodate
the needs of the locsl climate and emerging traditions. Front porches, rear, shed-roof additions as
well as salt-box additions are common expansions to the small, enclosed hall-parlor plan houses.

Several examples of the early hall-parlor plan house are found in Cumberland County. The eardiest
example of the hall-parior plan dwelling found in the county is Walnut Hill {Figure 3}, located
sutside of Farmville at the southern end of the county. Like Oakland it has undergone a series of
additions and alterations.  Walnut Hill (24-417) dates to ca. 1720, and survives as a frame example
of the hall-parlor form which has bewn expanded to include additional rooms, making it g central-
passage plan with a room appended to the rear. Many cighteenth century outbuildings such as a
slave’s quarters, icchouse and office, romain on the site as well.

Oakland (24-31) which dates to 1767, is a Flemish bond brick dwelling which stretches four bays
across the front and has substantial additions to either side. Though the house itself was the victim
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of a sericus fire last vear, the original form romains as do many outbuildings. including an

cighteenth century frame dwelling which is thought to be older than the brick house.

Anderson House. also located just north of Fannville, dates to the end of the cightesnth century, ca
1790, Like the two previous examples, Anderson House (24-100) has undergone a significant
change. A large, two-story addition was made to the rear ca. 1840, In addition to the primary
dwelling, there is an cighteenth century family comotery and a few mid-winctoenth century
outbuildings on the property,

Located near the Cumberdand Courthouse is the James Baber Law Office (24-199). formerly a hall-
pardor plan, single-family dwelling.  An enclosed, boxed winder stair leads to the loft level formerly
used as sleeping quarters. Like the previous examples, this building has additions to the rear.

Though it now fronts the road with a late ninetcenth century Italianate facade, French’s House (24-
90} located near Sunny Side has the remains of a hall parlor plan. The original section of the
house. located to the rear of the present house, has been incorporated into a substantial addiion. An
eighteenth-contury smokehouse and store share the site with the house.

The only surviving example to which little alteration has occurred is Willow Bank (24-336) which
dates to 1780, This house stands as a good example of an unaltered carly house plan type (Figure
4},

In addition to the hall-parlor plan, there were several loval vernacular vadations to this two-rcom
plan type during the early settlement period. Nan's Cottage (24-73), also known as the Ampthill
Overseer’s House, tocated in the northwest section of the county, appears as an unusual adaptation
of the hall-paror plan type. While there are two rooms with a central stair between them, there is
wo evidence that these two rooms ever provided access one into the other on the imterior. This two-
moom plan-type 15 also seen at Hors du Monde, Oakgrove, and in the slave quarters at Walnut Hill,

Another local interpretation of a vernacolar plan form arises at Morton’s Mill house {24- 186),
iocated north of Farmville along the Appomattox River. This house, origimally two scparate rooms
connected by a dog-trot, is now a thres-room, I-plan house. (The dog-trot having been filled in.)
The property on which the house sits, once boasted a mill as well. Today. remains of an early canal
fock can be found on the property.

Langhome House (24-11) was the oaly example of a contral-passage, single-pile dwelling found
from this carly time period. This plan-type becomes the most frequently found form after the tum-
of-the-contury.

Georgian Houses:

Based on the Enghish "detached” house, the Georgian style of architecture was a common building
stvle in the cighteenth century in the American colonies. The Georglan house in Virginia 13
gencrally characterized by its simple box-like structure designed in strict synumetry in both plan and

E
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clevation, It is usually a two-story structure, two-rooms deep with five or seven vertical window
bavs placad in o symmetrical fashion. A primary contral door opening onto a through-passage 1%
often embellished with an entablature and architrave, or an engaged pediment.

Only one example of the Georgian style was located in Cumberland County--Mount Elba (Figure 3).
Located amidst gently rolling hills in the Lakeside Village Quadrangle. near the James River, Mount
Flba (24-13) consists of an imposing five-hay, two-story, Flemish bond brick dwelling with an
unusual Le-shaped plan (Fizure 6}, The futerior foatures two staircases—a grand entry hall stair and 2
rear servant’s stair. While a good example of a rogional interpretation of the style, the English
counterpart adhered to a much more confining use of symmetry. While it is thought that this house
was built at two different times, there is no evidence of this on the exteror brickwork. Mount Elba
vetains its Georgian period interiors and is an excellent and notable example of the style. In front of
Mount Flba sits a stone slave blogk. the only surviving example of such a block in the county.

Earlv Mational Period {1789-18303

Yernacular Houses:

During the late cighteenth century, the central-passage plan became common in Cumberland County
dwellings. In contral-passage-plan housex, a central hall runs through the bouse between the bwo
principal rooms to either side. Two verpacular examples of this plan type were found--Oatland (24~
93} and the house along Pleasant Vallev Road (24-184). Oatland (Figure 7). dating to the first
decade of the nineteenth century contains an original log section visible in the basement. In
addition to the main house. there iz a good collection of eighteenth contury outbuildings on the
property. The house on Pleasam Valley Road retains its original central-passage plan type and
much of its original interior fabric. A large addition has been made o the rear. and no
contemporary outbuildings survive,

Federal Houses:

In its purest form, the Federal-style house is most commonly a two-story structure, rectangular in
plan with doors and windows armanged in ddgid symmetry across all clevations,  Architectural details
such as a projecting comice with dentils, molded Hintels over window opentags, and fanlights or
transoms above doors generallv embellish the exterior elevations of Federal style houses. This style
of architecture did not represent an extreme break with Georgian-style architecture of the late
colomial era, but allowed for somewhat more flexibility. Polvgonal projections, semi-circular bays,
or rectangular wings are comunon modifications to the standard box formn of the more rigid,
Gigorgian style. Other maodifications involved refinements to the scale and proportion of the
buildings. Innovations appeared in the interior decoration of the buildings of the Federal period,
where classical motifs were used with restrained elegance.

Several examples of Federal period architecture were located in Cumberland County, ranging in date
from 1800 through 1840 Oak Hill (Figure 8), built ca. 1800, is the curliest example exhibiting the
Federal style in Cumberdand County {with the exception of Cartersville). Currently owned by the

d
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State Forest, the house survives as an excellent example of the Federal stvle. It has a double-pile,

house itself, is the family cemetery which contains the Charles Irving Thornton tombstone with an
epitaph written by Charles Dickens (Figure 9).

Goshen (24-91) survives as an excellent example of a substantial Federal period house and dates 1o
the end of the stvle’s span in Cumberland County, ca. 1840 (Figure 10}, This house, set alop a
raised basement with an intezral kitchen, retaing its Federal period mantels, trim, and doors as well
as some of the surrounding outbuildings. Two other good examples of late-Federal period houses in

Cumberdand County are Union Hill (24-20) and Greenwood (24-39).

Twn houses located outside of Cartersville were executed in the Federal stvle with the
characteristics of those houses found within the Cartersville Historic District.  Both Woodlawn and
Viewmont date to ca. 1790 and echo the architecture of the Cartersville buildings (Figure 11). Both
have central-passage, single-pile plan type

Houses in Cartersville:

The majority of the houses and favemns in Cartersville were executed in the Federal style and date to
the last decade of the ciglteenth century and first decade of the vighteenth century. Characteristic
of the Federal architecture in Cartersville are the transoms above the entry door, the unusual four
bay facade, extertor end Flemish bond chimneys and side-gable roofs (Figure 12). Examples which
ilustrate this pattern are: Walton House (24-126-006), Pleasant House {24-126-014), and Harrison
House (24~126-010).

Antebellum Period (1830-13604

Vernacular Houses:

The central-passage, single-pile plan type thrived in Cumberland County during the Antebelium
Period. Two excellent examples of this plan tvpe are the Brown’s Church Manse (24-97) and the
Thaxston House (24-113). Both houses are ong-and-a-half’ storv dwellings. Thaxston House,
Jocated just north of the Appomatiox within the Farmville Town limits. is a frame dwelling with a
one-stary, one-bay front porch supported on octagonal columns. The Thaxston House {Figure 13} is
in excellent condition and retains most of its original nineteenth century interior. Brown’s Church
Manse, similar in plan, is esecuted in brick and has received a series of later additions. Much of
the original interior fabric of this house has been recently removed.

The most prevalent vemacular form in Camberland County is the Ihouse. Like the hall-partor
house, this carly Virginia house form evolved from the traditional British folk house, but grew to
include additions and sivlistic details. In Cumberdand County, the IHhouse first appeared during the
mid-1800°s and persisted for the next hundred years. The I-house can be characterized a8 a two-
story, two-room wide, one-room deep house. The rectangular structure has the primary entrance
located centrally on the opger axis and end chimneys located on each of the shorter sides. The
dlevations of Ihouses are symmetrcally organized into three bays with either a one or Twoe-story

E ]
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porch articalating the primary facade. A distinguishing cloment of the Thouses in Cumberland
County is the treatment of the comice. In combination with other factors, the type of comice found
on the Ihouses provided an indication of the general date of construction,

Examples of the vernacular Fhouse form can be found as eardy as 1840, Though some parts of
Tally Ho are thought to date 10 as carly as 1740, the current dwelling is a predominantly ca. 1840
house. It has a central-passage, single-pile plan and is two stories. The interior clements of the
house have just recently been lost to fire (June 1994). While Woodlawn (24-121) began as a hall-
parlor plan dwelling in the 18307s, it was incorporated into a basic I-house ca. 1860, as was often
the case with this earlier plan type (Figure 14). In addition to the main house, the property at
Woodlawn also contains an carty fumily comatery,

Academic Forms:

The Greek Revival Style, the first Romantic stvle, dominated the newly independent United Sates
through much of the first half of the ninctecnth contury. Architectural precedents associated with
Greek democracy were especially appropriate in the new republic as it rejected s ties to England.
The Greek Revival style is marked by porches supported by columns, usually of the Dorie order,
gable or hipped roofs, a wide comice reprosenting the classical entablature, and front door surrounds
with sidelights and a transom.  The Greek Revival stvle s, by far, one of the most frequently found
academic styles in Cumberdand County.

Three excellent examples of the stvle tn Cumberand County are found at Rochelle (24-49), Pleasant
Grave {24-3) and Melrose {24-83). Rochelle, is a frame dwelling with a central-passage, double-
pile plan (Figure 153 Typical of the Jreek Revival poriod are the sidelight and elegant transom, as
well as the pedimented window caps on the exterior.

Pleasant Grove is unusual in that it dates fo the period dwring the Civil War (Figure 16}, Pleasant
Grove features a typical Greek Revival interior and exterior. All the rooms have Doric pilaster
mantels, dog ear window and door surrounds, and four paned doors. The exterior has the typical
pedimented window caps and a the ghost of a one-story, one-bay front porch typical of the Greek
Revival,

The latest example of a fully Greek Revival stvle house in the county s Melrose, which dates to
just after the Civil War, ca. 1868 {Figure 17). Like Pleasant Grove, it is a brick dwelling.
Stretching five bays across the front this buposing two-story brick house features a one-story end
wall porch. Typical of the Greek Revival Stvle are the front door sidelights and transom, the
pedimented window and door surrounds, and the boxed cormes,

I addition to the many Dreck Revival stvle houses which exhibit characteristics on the exterior, the
are many houses belonging o other stvlstic traditions on the exterior which feature (ireek Revival
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fraifs on the interiors, Two good cxamples of this are Lancaster House {34«4’?} :md Morningsule
{24-14), Lancaster House features typical vermscolar-Foderal detailing on the exterior, and then has
claborate Greek Revival detailing on the mtenior (Figure 18}, Another {,xu,,iivni example of this 18
Momingside. Momingside has elegant NHalianate detailing on the extertor which contrasts with the
pattern-book academic Greek Revival detailing of the mterior {Figure 19). Typical of the Greek
Revival are the grand pedimented window and door surrounds with fret molding. The mantels, as
well, feature pedimented fire box openings and, in one instance, fret patteming.

Gothie Revival

The Gothic Revival style emerged in America in the carly 1840s ag g reaction against the symmetry,
balance and regularity associated with the classical style of architocture so popular in this country up
tor that time. The Gothic Revival actually began i England in 174% when Sir Horace Walpole
began remodeling his country house in the Medieval style. Over the next contury, othors borrowed
his ideas and the Picturesque country bouse became common in England. The first documented
fully domestic exanple in Amernica was de :ng,zz by Alexander Jackson Davis m 1832, Davis’
book entitle Rural Restdences was meplete with Gothic- -stvie examples, Although the book was not
widely published, his ideas were disseminated through publications by his friend. Alexander Jackson
Doswning, who promoted his own books through lectures,

Alexander Jackson Davis’ asscciation with nearhy Powhatan County for his commission of
Bellmeade, had a limited impact on the architecture of Cumberland County. Downing’s book, The
Architecture of Country Houses, influenced 3 single residence in Cumberland County. the Clinton
Manor House {24-2403, Typical of Downing's designs are the T-shape plan, the central four flue
chimney, and the lattice work on the front facing gable (Figures 20 and 21}

Highiangte

Like the Gothic Revival stvle, the talisnate stvle began in England as a part of the Picturesque
movement. This reaction sgainst formal classical ideals promoted the rambling, mfonmal Halian
farmhouse. Like the Gothic Revival style. the lalisnate style had almost completely replaced the
garlier Gothic Revival styvle.

While several houses from the turm-ofthe-contury feature Halianate detwling as in the case of
French’s House {24-80, see Figure 22), only one example of a completely Ialianate style dwelling
was focated. Momingside features many of the characteristics associated with the Halianate style
such as paired windows and a projecting bracketed comdee with pendants. In addition to the main
house, there are several contemporary outbuildings on the propery--a summer kitchen, g school
house, a smokehouse and a bam (Figure 233
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Curen Anne Stvie

The Queen Anne stvle was the dominant style of American architeoture from the peniod 1880-19H:
The stvie continued through the beginning of this century with decreasing popularity, The
expanding vatlroad network of the period helped to spread the style by conventently transporting the
pre-cut architectiral details associated with the style, such as comer brackets, gable omament,
towers, intricate wood shingle designs and gabled dormers,

Like the Halianate stvie, the Queen Anne stvle most freguently ocowrred in Cumberdand County in
the fomm of omamentation on the vernaculsr Fhouvse form, Only & handfl of examples of the stvle
were found as nsed for an entire house. The Hwmne House (24-126-4) iz a beick structure dating to
1910 (Figure 24). Tvpical of the Queen Anne style it has a comer turret and arched windows.
Perhaps the best esample of the stvle in the County s the hovse (24-168) located along Route 45
{Cumbertand Road). It features the comer turret, irregular massing, complex gable roof, and wrap-~
arpund porch associated with the style as well as the pre-cut architectural details (Figure 25},
Another house located along Route 45, near Hamilton (24-301) illustrates the Queen Anne stvle as it
i found in Comberland County. Typical of the Queen Anne stvle is the irregular massing, the
wrap-around front porch, and complex gable roof (Figure 26}

Reconstruction Period (186519243

The peried following the Civil War saw the rise of vernacular house forms such as the two-bay,
two-story houss and the Fhouse form and s variations the Leplan and T-plan forms,

The most frequent of all house tvpes found in Cumberdand County is the T-house ™ In Cumberland
County the -house form emerged in the 1840°s and flourished for many years well into the
twentieth century (Figure 273 Typical of this house form are the single-pile. central-passage plan,
two-story front elevations and side facing gable roof. Vanations in Cumberland County include
examples with inferior paired chimueys (Figure 28) versus the more commaon exterior end chimnevs
{Figure 293 some examples have hipped rocfs, and others have a chimney to only one end
Regional differences also occar. While the most frequent fonestration pattern included ong window
to either side of 9 central door, some examples included paired windows. In addition, in the area
near Cartersville, Palladian vents in a central facing front gable are featured (Figure 29} while in
the area near Farmville, diamond vents were the preference (Figure 20).

Abmost as common as the I-house is the L-plan variation of which forty-five examples were found
(Figure 31). Though less frequent, nineteen examples of the T-plan were also located in
Camberland County (Figure 32}

e exact nomber of Fhouses i3 nod available from the current edition of [P5S which does nit
mclude "Fhouse” as g butlding confizumbion option,
o2 s
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In addition to the vernacular Fhouse firm, the two-story, two-bay vernacular house form is
commonly found during this period in Cumberland County ™ Several houses were surveved in the
county which adhere to this building form. A good example of this house plan type is a house
found along Route 663 (24-274, see Figure 32}

World War 1 to Present

During this pertod, America became 2 predominantly urban nation and the number of operating
farms began to dechine. Transportation cornidors, which shifted from the railroad to interstate
highway svstems, directly affected the built environment.  Instead of the small towns and villages
that clustered arcund the station stops of the railroad and crossroads, development began to
concentrate along the principal awtomobile arteries, The carly to mud-twenticth century
transportation-related residential architecture in Cumberland County is most evident along Route 45
and Route b,

The most typical domestic forms found along transportation comidors are the bungalow and the
cottage. The bungalow is characterized by its low ovedianging roof form supported on tapered
wood posts set atop brick plors with exposed rafter ends and Craftsman-like detatling (Figure 33}
Thirty-two examples of the bungalow form were found 1o Cumberland County dating from the late
1920s through as late as 19500 A representative cxample of the bungalow house form as found in
Cumbertand County 15 a house located on Osbom Road (24-406, see Figure 33} A good example
of a typical vemnacular cottage is a house located along Route 45 (24-368, sex Figure 34). Another
form of house dating from this period is the shotgun house form which is characterized by 3 series
of single romns armanged front o back., These are one-story dwellings with a front facing gable
roof. Oualy a fow examples of this building form were located during the current survey in
Cumberland County.

SECONDARY DWELLINGS

Slave and Servant {Quarters:

Although once a prevalent building tvpe associated with the Virginia plantation house, very few
examples of slave quarters or servanis quarters were identified during the 1994 survey, Perhaps the
best example of a slaves quarters is located on the Walnut Hill property (24-417). Consisting of a
one-story, random patterned brick building, the slave quarters is divided fnto two distinet sections
with separate entrances (Figure 35}, The ounly other example of a servants guarters is located at
Oatland {Figure 36). Though the building 15 currently in a state of disrepalr, i was once a-story-
and-a-half frame structure. While a frame structure in ruins near the Lancaster House is thought by
the current owner to be the ruing of a slaves quariers, no physical evidence on the site corroborates
thiz theory, Evidence that domestic servants, most likely slaves, resided in the main house exists at

“The gxact number of two-bay, two-story frame dwellings is not available as the current version
of IPS dovs not make i possible 1o ron 2 report based on the numbsey of bays,
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Momingside and Mount Elba, two houses which have secondary servants’ stairways (Figures 37 and
-
38y
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SUTBUILDINGS AND DEPENDENCIES

Detached Ritchens:

Dietached kitchens are often associated with single-fanuly dwellings as well as farms. The kitchens
are generally one-story structures set away from the house to confine fire danger and 1o remove heat
from the dwelling, In Cuomberland County, the detached kitchens are generally frame with a large
end chimney, either brick or stone.

Though once associated with many of the properties surveved, only g fow examples of the detached
summer kitchen survive in Comberland County, Some of the best examples are the summer kitchen
at Melrose (24-83), the kitchen at Mormingside {24-14) and the kitchen found behind the Sunny Side
post office house {24-211). The kitchen at Melrose dates to the same period as the house, and
consists of a ong-room frame strocture with a hipped roof (Figure 39). Though the origimal kitchen
at Momingside burmed, the existing kitchen building on the site dates o the end of the nineteenth
century and serves as a good example of the kitchen buildings which used interior stoves instead of
fireplaces (Figure 40). The Sunay Side kitchen building is a good example of the typical one-room
kitohens which would have been found behind the many late ninsteenth century houses in the
cognty {Figure 413,

Spring Houses:

Spring houses are structures built at the source of water to ensure the protaction of the spring, to
profect the water from pollution, and to provide a cool, clean space for storing dairy products.
Spring houses were typieally constructed of brick or stone, which offercd the best insulation, and
were located at the base of a slope where the spring usually emerged from the ground. In some
cases, the water was channeled through troughs which were located in the floor or were shightly
raised from the floor of the spring houses. The water flowed continuously through the spring house,
supplyving a steady inflow of cocling water. In order to prevent mildew and mold, adequate
ventilation was needed, and was weuadly accomplished with the use of louvers or roof ventilation,
Very fow examples of the spring house survive in Comberdand Countv. Perhaps the best example
of this rapidly disappearing building tvpe are the spring houses at Pleasant Grove {24-3, see Figure
423 and Oakland (24-83, see Figure 43} Tyvpical of this bulding tvpe, both of these structures are

stone with gable wofs. Both examples scem to bave hnplemented the channeled trough system of
conling,
Smokehouses

Smokehouses were used for smoking meat, a process that preserved and enhanced the flavor of the
meat. In general, smokehouses are rather simple structures,  They consist of an airtight structure
with an earth floor. While an entry door is nesded, windows are usually not present, Some form of
ventilation is required to keep the fire buming, and often, this would occur in the form of small flue
openings beneath the eaves. While hickory was the preferred wood to be used, oak, cherry, apple.
sassafras, and coen cobs were also bumed,
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Thirty-three examples of smokchouses were located in Cumberland County during the corrent
survey, Typically these were one-room frame structures with steeply pitched gable roofs. Two
excellent examples of the smokehouse are the one located at the Muddy Creek house near
Tamworth (24-40, see Figure 44) and the one located behind the French House near Sunny Side

{24-90, see Figure 43},

Other Domestic Outbuildings:

in addition to the above mentioned domestic cutbuildings. other types were located during the
current survey (Figure 46} A few exarples of dairies were found near the main dwelling. In
addition, a handful of tce houses were also identified (Figore 47}
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Figure % Plan of Walour Hill (24-417)

Figure 4: Photograph of Willow Bunk (24-336)
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Figure 6; Plan Mount Eba (24-15)
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Figure % Photograph of Tombstone of Charles Irving Thomion

Figure 10: Photogmph af Goshen (24-91)
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Figure 13 Photograph of Thaxston House (24-113)
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Figure 142 Plan of Woodlawn (24-121}
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Figure 152 Photograph of Rochelle ( 24-49)

Figure 16: Photograph of Pleasant Grove (24-3)
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Figure 18: Interior Photograph of Lancaster House (24-47)
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Figure 19; Interior Photograph of Momingside (24-14}
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Figure 200 Photograph of Clinton {24-240}
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Figure 23: Photograph of Mormingside (24-14)
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Figure 24: Photograph of Hume House (24-126-4)

Figure 25: Photograph of House on Route 45 (24-168)
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Figure 26: Photoemph of House on Route 45 {24-105)

Figure 27: Photograph of House on Route 435 (24-236)
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Figure 32: Photograph of House on Route 663 {24-274)

of House on Osborn Road (24-406)

Figure 33: Photograph



siorte Resownes Sarvey of Cumberdand County, Virgiows

Gotober 17, 199

Figure 34: Photograph of House on Route 45 (24-368}
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Figure 35 Photograph of Slave Quarters at Walnut Hill (24-417)

aph of Servant’'s Quarters af Uatland {24-93}

Figure 36: Photogy
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Figure 37: Plan of Momingside (24-14)

Figure 38 Plan of Mount Elba {24-15)
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Figure 3%: Photograph of Kichen at Melross {24-85)

Figure 40: Photograph of Kitchen at Locust Crrove {24-104)
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Figure 43 Photograph
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Figure 44; Photograph of Smokehouse at Muddy Creek Mill House (24-4()
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Figure 46: Photograph of Dairy at Oakland (24-83}
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THEME: SUBBISTENCE/AGRICULTURE

RESOURCE TYPES: Farms; Bams and Other Agricultural Buildings

AGRICULTURAL BUILDINGS

Historieally, farming has been the most mportant industry in Cumberland County and has included
the raising of cattle and other livestock.  According to an article published in 1881 on tobacco
production in Virginia, Virginda ranked second in the United States in the production, acreage and
total value of tobacco ™

Cumberland County’s climatic conditions, as well as the ample ratufall, allow for a long growing
season fiom seven to eight months a vear. The soil vares from a red-clay soil suttable for mising
wheat, to a sand-clay soil for general faoming, to a rich soil along the rivers which proved superb
for tobacco cultivation. The 1850 Census Records indicate that 2,476,135 pounds of tobaccn,
118,616 bushels of wheat, and 220,535 bushels of com were produced i Cumberland County that
vear. In addition to these, peas and beans, Irish potatoes, and sweet potatoss were also grown.™

The farms in Cumberland County inchade & vanety of agricultural buildings, but fow serve their
original functions. The most common agricultural buildings swrveved in the county include hay
bams and tobacco barns. Although numerous sheds wore located during the swvey, the term was
used when the original funcbion of the building was not readily apparent. During the on-site survey
work, the survey team identified hay barns, gransries, tobaceo bams and livestock barms; if the
specific purpose of the barn was not obvious, it was referred to simply as a bamn.  Although
antebellum farm buildings are increasingly rare in Virginia, Cumberland has several good examples
scattered throughout the county. Begause of the rural quality of the county and the generally slow
mflox of development, Comberdand retains an excellent colloction of antebellum farm buildings.

Cormnenbs

The survey inchuded the identification of nine comeribs, a specialized form of a granary. Since the
general design of the comertb has not changed substantially over time. assigning a date to them was
difficult and was based on the types of nails and sawcuts. According 1o Allen Moble, the precise

origin of the comerib as a separate structure has not been clearly established. Oue theory i that the

¥ "Tobaceo Production in Virginia in 1879 The Virgniss, A Mining Industdial and Scientific
Joural (September 1881}, p. 140,

#1830 Census, Schedule of Productions of Agriculture in Cumberland County, Va.
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type is derived from a simple shelter built by American Indians.™  The form of the comerib is
based purely on function, and includes cortain basic design featurss.  First, the walls include a high
proportion of open space, usually accomplished by using widely spaced slats. This allowed for
adequate venttlation to aid in the drving process and prevented mildew. Second. comeribs are
narrow, again to ensure adeguate circulation of air. The proper width of a comerib depends on the
harvest date for the particular locality and the provailing weather conditions, including humidity,
temperature and the amount of sun and wind, The walls of some comeribs were constructed to slant
outward toward the top. This provided maximum protection from the weather and assisted in the
unloading of the corn. The openings to the comerib usually included a man-sized door located in
the eable end, as well as a series of smaller doors for unloading located at the base of the wall.
Finally, comenb designs usually included an overhanging skirt or other devices for reducing
pillaging by rodents. (Noble, p. 107y The deterrent tvpically used in Cumberland County was the

elevation of the structure on piers,

Typical examples of the comerib as found in Cumberland County were found at Clinton Manor
House {24-240, see Figure 48), and at the Puiney House (24-107, see Figure 49}

dobacco Bams

With tobaces being the cownty’s main cash crop during the ninctesnth century, Cumberland has an
excellent sampling of tobacen bams from that time. Tobacco barmn forms varied based on the three
distinet methods of drying the crop: fire-cured, air-cured and flug-cured.  In the fire-cured method,
an open fire is laid on the earth floor of the bam. The dense smoke from the buming wood
partially smothered with damp sawdust generates smoke which comes in direct contact with the
tobacco leaves. The wmoke turns the leaves g dark brown and results in a distinctive aroma and
taste. Fire-cured tobacco bams, therefore, are distinguished by thelr airtight construction and
absence of any tvpe of ventilation ™

The hams for air-curing, the oldest method of drving tobacco. tend to follow a standard form in
Virginia, A frame. gabled structwre with a vertical form and one or two ground-level portals was
used throughout Cumberland County.

The third method of dryving type, fhue-curing, came into use in the late ninsteenth and early
twentieth centuries. These structures consist of a tall building vswally flanked by open sheds. The
shed additions provide shelter for the workers as well as the firnace and fuel supply. The shed, the

“ Allen . Noble, Wood, Brick and Stone Yohune 2. Bams and Farm Structures. The
University of Massachusetts Press, 1984, p. 105

* Mobel, p. 49,

L3
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most distinetive feature of the flue-cured tobacco bam, appears in a variety of sizes and
configurations.™

The flue-curing process has several advantages over the flre-curing method, partioularty the fact that
the fire is contained in a fumace, thereby reducing the danger of fire. The flus-curing method also
consumes less fuel by a closed beating svstem. The heat is conducted through the bam in a series
of flues and is maintained wniform throughout the space.™ In the flue-curing process 80 percent of
the tobacen Jeal’s weight is water when it s first put in the bam and afler it is cured, only 20 10 25
percent of its weight is water, The flue curing process s basically a two-step process in which the
leaf is first vellowed at a modarate wmporature and high relative humidity, The web of the leaf and
the stem are then dried by gradeally incroasing the tomperature to 160 to 180 degrees and lowering
the humidity.”

Examples of all theee types of tobacco bams were located in Cumberland County. Two of the
oldest examples were found at the Hazelgrove Fuanm, located on Route 600, Dating to ca. 1826,
these frame tobacco bams are good examples of the wr-ouring method (Figure 303 Also on the
same farm 18 2 ca. 1892 fore-cured tobacce bam with trenches in which the fives were bl survive
i the ground (Figure 513 Across the road, on a farm also belonging to the Hazelgroves 1s a late-
ningteenth contury example of the fluc-cured method tobacco bam (Figure 532}

Dairy Bams and Hav Bams

Generally identified by their relatively large size and distinctive shapes, carly twenticth-contury
dairy bams are often long, two-story frame butldings with gambrel roof and hay hoods, Rows of
small window openings providing nstural interior Lighting can be found along the long slovations at
the first fHoor lovel, The interior spaces of the dairy bams are arranged to sccommodate rows of
catthe on the first floor, and a hay storage arca sbove, The Large Tofl. ereated by the gambrel roof]
provides maxamum storage area for hay and feed for the dairy herds, Hay bams are ofton identical
i extentor form, but may not provide the intertor partittioning for the dairy catthe on the first floor,
Other hay bams are smaller frame buildings constructed with less detail in an mferior fashion,

An excellent example of a dairy farm complex with notable dairy bams is the Duncan Dairy Farm
{24-803. The primary dadry barn, dating to 1932, is an impressive example. This massive brick
structure stretches three stories high and is capped by a gambrel roof. It is built emploving fireproof
construction, and is the only such bam located in the county (24-53), The only other substantial

“ Laura Scism, "Carolina Tobacco Bams: History and Function,” in Caroling Dwelling,
Raleigh, N.C.. North Caroling State University, 1978, p. 120,

¥ MNobel, @ 31

“ Scism, po 124
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datry farm complex surveyed in the county was the Cumva Dairy Farm. The Dairy Bam at Cumva
1z a large frame struchure also with a gambrel voof (Figure 54). Both examples have partitioned
mterior stalls for cattle.

Several exaraples of hay bam were surveved throughout the county. One notable example is located
at the Duncan Dairy o (24-80). Dating to ca. 1834, this mortize and tenon frame hay bam s set
upon a random stone foundation with a steeply pitched gable roof (Figure 38}

Other Bams

Other barns built for specific purposes were also surveved in the county. Two good examples are
the sheep Bam at Spring Hill (24-103)and a large com barn located along Route 615, The sheep
bam is a mortise and tenon frame structure which sits on a 3-course Amercan bond brick
foundation and dates to ca. 1848 (Figure 56}, Though clad in corrugated metal siding today, the
original structural members and foundation remain. The bamn along Route 6135 is an immense frame
structure with a through passage for tractors and wagons on the central bay of the first level (Figure
57y Com is stored in bins 1o either side of this passage.

Conclusion

Tobacco was the main cash crop in the county through the cighteenth contury, Com and wheat
were raised for local consumption from the seventeenth contury through the twenticth century, and
actually requived more acreage for its cultivation. By 1870, the production of tobacco began o
decline while the growth of com and wheat continued to increase.  This transition in the county’s
crops s evident in the agriculural architecture with the tobacco bams generally dating from the late-
cighteenth to early-nineteenth centuries, while the comceribs are more recent construction.  Today,
agriculture remains the primary industry in the county,
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Figure 52: Photograph of Tobacco Bam on Hazelgrove Property (24-3:
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Figure 53: Photograph of Duncan Datry Bam (24-80)

Figure &
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THEME: GOVERMMENT/LAW/POLITICAL

RESOURCE TYPES: Counthouse, Prisons, Post Offices. Law Office

Cumberland County was formed from Goochland County in 1749 and named in honor of Prince
William Auguostus, Dube of Comberdand and the third son of King George 1L The original
boundarizs of the county extended from what is now Buckingham County. on the cast to
Chesterfield County of the west thus including present day Powhatan County, With the advent of
George W accession to the throne, the Cumberland County Committor of Safity declared
themselves in favor of independence from the Batish, Following this the residents of the castern
half of the county began to take steps towards self-govermment leading to the division of the county
along the Muddy Creek which resulted in the formation of Powhatan County i 1777, This ling
corresponded to the division between the Littleton and Sowtham Parishes. With the division of the
county and the formation of Powhatan County, the courthouse fell within the boundaries of
Powhatan, thus necessitating the erection of 8 new courthouse and the establishment of g new
gounty seat ™

The first mecting of the Comberland court following the Muddy Creek division ocourred in 1777 at
the home of Maurice Langhome in the town of Effingham.” Effingham Tavem. as it was Iater
called, stood in Cumberand County uniil it was consumed by fire in 1933 (Figure 58} Another
local tavem which was demolished only recently {(June 1990) is Langhome Tavern {Figure 3937
The site finally selected for the new town of Cumberand was located on the Buckingham Road
{now Route 43). The original courthouse a log prison on the site were built by Lenghome himselt
in 1778 %

Today the site is ovcupied by the 1818 Courthouse which stands several vards form the onginal
courthouse site and the Cumberdand County Jail which dates to ca. 1823 (Figwre 60). Both
buildings are listed on the Mational Register of Historie Places, Reflecting the mfluence of
Jefforson, the courthouse has 3 tomple form with a Donic portice at the front. The jail, mcluded
within the courthouse property, is a three-bay, two-story brick structure with a frame entry portico.

“William H. Gaines, "Courthouses of Cumberdand and Powhatan Counties.” Viginia
Cavaleade, Vol 17, pp. 38-39.

* Gaines, p.39.

* Cumberland County Historical Society, Cumberland County Yireinia Historical Bulleting
August 1990 p 21

" CGatnes, p. 30,
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The clerk’s office near the Cumberand Courthouse also reflects an exceptional Jeffersonian

design ™

Neither structure was included within the scope of the wurrent survey project. The only govenument
refated buildings surveved were the Muddy Cresk Post Office (24- 017). the Sunny Side Post Office
{24-2113, the Cartersville Post Office (24-126-028), and two law offices. The Muddy Creek Post
Office sits adjacent to the Muddy Creek Mill which is a National Register property (Figure 61). Kt
is a Flemish bond hrick structure with a slate gable roof dating to the first half of the nincteenth
century. During its period of use, 11 served as a combination store and post office for the wmall
town of Tamwonth. Undike the post office at Tamworth, the Sunny Side Post Office is located in
the northeast room of the two-story frame Guthrie House, located on Route 13 (Figure 62). The
post office was in operation from the carly 1900°s until its consolidation with the Cumberland Post
Office in 1953, Of the two post offices in Cartersville, only one is in operation today. having
replaced the earlier one. Originally a church, the Cartersville Post (ffice is an early twentieth
century brick temple-form-plan building located at the south end of Church Street (Figure 63)

Although ouly a few extant examples of post offices remain, several have existed throughout
Cumberand County. The following list compiled from the Virginia Geologist and Census of 1860
iflustrates the many post offices which once existed. Those post offices existing in 1860 are
distinguished by an asterisk.

Angola (1870-1908)

Ashiby (1873-1910)

Boswell's (1880-1902--name changes to Pints, no longer on map)
*Ca bra (1797, 1801-1907--name changed 1o McRag)
*Cartersville {1796~ )
Clinton {1873-1915)

Colemanville (1876-86, no longer on map)

*Colambia
Cotton Town (1878-1890--name changed to Adriance)
Cromona {1882-1906)

*Cumberdand Court House (1795-1832, 1833 | name changed to Cumberland 1893}
Darifleg (1880-1880, name changed to Island, changed to Goochland Comty 18863
*Famville

Felizville (1813-1817/19, no longer on map)

Flanagan's Mill (1873-1907)

Fork of Willis (1887-68)

Gray’s Siding

Guinea Mills

Hamilton

*The designer, Willlam A. Howard, is an important courthouse designer in southside Virginia.
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Hateher

Hawk

Hillorest

Lakezide Village

Langhome’s Tavern (1B15-33, 1854-34;

MoRae (see Ca bm)

*(rak Forest (1840272, 1873-1909%)

Palmore (1827-27, name changed to Stony Point Mills)
Physick hpring (1823/28-1828/31, no longer on map)
Piney Forest (1856-84, no longer on map)

Point of Rock Mills (1860-06, no longer on map)
Raines Tavern (180945, 1847-55)

Raing (1883-84, no longer on map)

“Roval Oaks (184%-66)

Starry Creek (1834-66, moved location into Frankhn County 1856}
Stoddert {1887-1907)

*Stony Point Mills (see Palmore)

*Sunny Side (1856-1954)

Tally {1885-1910)

Trenton {1832-38)

Trenton Mills (1875-1913)

Walton Mills (18560-66)

Whiteville

Willis {1883-81 no longer on map)

Woodson (1837-59, no longer on map}

In addition to the post offices located during this survey, two law offices were also identified, the
Robert G, Woodson Law Office (24-137) and the James Pendleton Baber Law Office {24-199)
Located on Stony Point Road, the Woodson Office is an carly twentioth contury, Classical Revival
temple-form-plan brick structure.™  The building is notably high style as it incorporates engaged
Doric pilasters and a superimposed pediment at the front (Figure 643 By contrast, the Baber Law
Office dates o the late cighteenth century and is a 1-1/2 story frame structure with English bond
exterior end chimnpeys. Originally a side-passage. double-pile plan dwelling, the structure now
houses a law office (Figure 65).

Though not a part of the current survey dus to 113 stams on the National Register, Tavior (reed’s
Law Office at Meedham {24-30) contributes to the history of education in the county and iz
sigmnificant as one of the carliest law schools tn Virginial

It appears as though the vertieal sash was reworked towards the end of the century.
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Figure 39: Photograph of Langhome Tavem. cow
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Figure 63: Photograph of Cartersville Post Office  24-116-32)
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THEME: TRANSPORTATION/COMMUNICATION

RESQURCE TYPE: Forries, Roads

Water-related

The fames and Appomatiox Rivers provided the county with its primary means of transportation
during the seventeenth and eighteenth centuries. Accordingly, ferries wers essential for the transport
of the county’s products and people.

According to the Calendar of Virginia State Papers, the Ferry at Cartersville, priginally known as
Carter’s Ferrv, was in operation as a supply route during the Revolutionary War™ As the main
crossing point along the James River it served the counties of Louisa, Goochland, Powhatan,
Cumberiand, Buckingham, and Prince Edward.® The furry remained in operation until at least the
1970°s. {See Enginecering/ Technology section for information on bridge )

The first bridge to cross the Appomattox was allotted for in 1747 when the residents of Amelia
County began a crusade to build one. Though the endeavor seems 1o have encountered initial
resistance on the Goochland County side of the river, the project procesded. In 1748, Theodrick
Carter was appointed surveyor of the road from Guinea Road to the newly completed bridge over
the Appomatto.

A map dating to 1777 summarizes the bridges then existing in the newly founded County of
Cumberland. Grouped by Parish, the Upper Parish. Littleton contatved a total of sixt Groat Guinea,
one; Littde Guinea, two, Willis’ Creek, two, and Muddy Creek, one. The Lower Parish, Southam,
comtained a total of four bridges: Jomes™ Creek, one;, Deep Creek, two; and Muddy Creck, one.

One other bridge was noted as crossing the Appomattox over Butterwood {Refer back to Figure 2).

In 1796, Benjamin Henry Latrobe undertook a trip down the Appomatiox River for the purposes of
surveving its navigability, His daily reports reveal the need to remove their boat from the water and
go around the mill dam at Stony Point (Figure 66377

In 1864, Charles Cassell surveved and delineated all bridges and madways existing at the time in
Cumberdand.  Along the Appomatiox, he located the following bridges: 3 coverad bridge at

Famwville. the High Bridge. a fordable bridge at Jamestown, and a covered bridge at Stony Point,
OFf these only the High Bridge remains {See Technology and Engineering Thome). Traversing the

' atendar of Virginia State Papers, Vol. 2, p. 70
“Calendar of Virginta State Papers. Vol 2, p. 158,

“Benjamin Henry Latrobe, “An Essav of Landscape.” The Virginia Cavaleade, Vol 8, pp. 838
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James, Cassell indicated the following: at Muddy Ureek the dver was navigable to the mill, the river
is fordable on foot across an owtcropping of rocks near Ampthill farm, there is a ferry at Elk Island.
and Dareld’s Ford at Boatwright Istand.  Any bridges which may have existed within the county
crossing ifs many rivers ware not indicated by Cassell.

Though not eastly navigable, the Willis River was tmproved for navigation by the James River
Company in the earlv-nincteenth century. Stretching across Cumbsrland County o the James River
the Willis River’s main port was at Ca Ira, near Cumberfand Courthouse, which serves as a focal
Inading point for tobaceo bound for the James River” Unlike the other Rivers in the county, the
Willis River was maintained in the masner of the mwad system. Eleven precincts between Ca lra
and the James were maintained by particular people, cach section being approximately 2.4 miles
lang

The same map iflustrates the roads existing at the time in Cumberland as well as the route of the
railrmad, The South Side Railroad was the only one ruuning through the county in 1864 and
covered only a small section of the far southern portiom of the county near Farmville roming across
the High Bridge into the county and crossing back out of the county from the bridge at Farmville.

In November of 1884, the voters of Cumberland approved a referendum to have subscriptions to
build # railroad between Moseley’s Crossing and the Town of Farmville and joining the Powhatan~
Cumberdand line. By 1890 the narrow gauge railrond was completed * In foreclosure in 1903, the
Farmville and Powhatan system was sold to Jocal interests and renamed Tidewater and Westermn,
Though T. M.R. Talcott, the new vice-president of the railroad, increased the milroad’s efficiency. #
went into receivership on May 14, 1917, by which time it had apparently become known as the
“Tired and Weary” railroad (Figure 67). Later in the vear, an English fixm had offered to purchase
the rafls. and though their initial offer was refused. the railroad’s positinn was reversed on
Septeraber 20, 1917, Shortly after, the rails were pulled up and shipped 1o Furope to help repair
war-damaged tracks. ™

William W, Trout, The Slate and Willis” Rivers Atlas. Lexington, Virginia: The Virginia
Canals and MNavigations Society, 1894, p. 32

FTrout. p. 33,

¥Camberdand County Historical Society, pp. 2021

UEdward F. Heite, "Narrow Cauge to Farmville,” The Virginia Cavaleade, Vol 16, p. 4L
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I 1738-1739, the Virginia General Assembly passed a bill allowing for the erection of road signs
where two or more toads or highwavs met. Following this enactment, many roads and bridges were
affected in Cumberland County. During this perod surveyors (carctakers) were appotated to keep a
particular road clear and passable for the duration of a year In addition, the Gentleman Justices
would convens to decide on new road and bridges as well as alterations to existing ones.

As of 1791, many roads already existed fn Comberand County as reflected in a Court Order Book
of the period which delineated the new surveyors (varetakers) of these roads. The roads mentione
in this court order include ongs running from Little Guinea to Tarwallet, from Thompson’s Ordinary
to Hubbard’s gate, from Angela to the Red Hill, on Cannon’s Ferry Road from Hom Quarter Road
to Benjamin Wilson’s Line, on Cannon’s Ferry Road from the old line to Burton's Branch, from
Wilson's Line to Cannon’s Ferry Road, from Horn Comer Road to upper Groom’s Guartet Creek,
from James’ Mill to Caster’s Ferry Road, from the Buckingham County Line to Soak Arse Croek,
from the River Road to Carter’s Ferry Road. and from Dean’s Store to Tarwallet Creek,™

According to the 1864 map, the major thoroughfares in Cumbertand County were a road running
north-south from Cartersville to Farmville and two roads ruoning cast-west {corresponds to modem
day Route 43), Buckingham Road {ronghly Route 13) and Old Court House Read (roughly Route
50} both which ran into Powhatan County (Figure 68). Several other roads were indicated on
Cassell’s map as well, including Davenport Road which ran from the major north-south route east
wntil it intersected with Buckingham Road, Little Brown’s Road which van west from the north~
south corridor to the Willis River, Trenton Road, which paralleled the Willis River between Trenion
Mill and Trent Mill, and Guinea Road which ran parallel to Guinea Creek. Several other unnamed
roads branched off of the main north-south corridor connecting properties across the county.

“Cumbertand County Historical Society, Cumberland County Virginia Historical Bulletin, Sept.
1993, p. 2%
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Figure 66: Sketch of the Appomatto

<. Benjamin Henry Latrobe
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THEME: MILITARY

RESOURCE TYPES: Military Headgourtors and War-related buildings
The most significant military association to be found in Cumberand County’s history dates to the
Civil War and specifically, to the end of the Civil War and the defoat of General Robert E. Lew and
hiz troops. The route of Lee's retreat followed what is today Route 48, a route nmning north-south
through the middle of the county.  As such, all the military resources included in this syrvey except
ong relate divectly to the Civil War period.

Like many cmumties in Virginia, Cumberland County was the site of Civil Wars skirmishes. Unlike
other lncations scattersd acrozs the state, however, Cumberland County provided the site for Lee’s
final retreat. The first propenty associated with thiz retreat is the High Bridge, across which Les and
hiz troops travelled (Figure 69} Following their safe passage, Lee ordered the brndge (both the rail
bridge and the wagon bridge below it} bumed. The actual buming of the structures was delaved,
leading to the successful progress of the Union Troops, hot in pursuit of Lee. MNear the site of the
bridge ruins i a forfification (24-416) used by Confederate soldiers to watch the brnidge. The
forttfication. square i plan, consists of a maised carthen perimeter bisccted by another elevated
mound, with two recessed argas in between (Figure 703 On each comer is a earth projection used
for the stationing of artillary,

Located spproximately three miles doe west of the High Bridge, is Walnut Hill (24-417), site of 2
Civil War skirmish as indicated by a military map published in John Watts de Pevster’s The Crand
Hum of the Anuny_of the Potonag in 1872,

The Confederate Cemetery (24-413, ca. 1865) associated with the defeat during Lee’s final battles is
tocated a guarter mile southwest of Walnut Hill (Figure 713 The cometery consists of a mass burial
mound marked by a single obelisk commemorating the death of six hundred Confederate soldiers.

The carefully landscaped arca ix surromnded by wooded areas and is marked by large conorete piers.

Thaxston House, across Route 43 from the cemetery, is the location where Lee met with his War
Advisor. The meeting is thought o have taken place in the front vard of the house, Thanston
House 15 a mid-nineteenth century vernacular farmbouse (Figure 72, Typical of this building type,
it has a steeply pitched zable voof punciuated with gabled dormers and extertor end chimnpeys,

Another meeting, this time between Lee and his advisors, took place at Cumberdand Presbyterian
Chureh, located approximately two miles north of Thaxston Houss on Route 45 (Figure 73},
{Cumberland Presbyvterian Church, thought by Iocal residents to be a Colonial period meoting house,
is described in full in dee Religion section.)

The one military resource not assooiated with the Civil War period is the Jesse Thomas Plague (24~
1203, a Revolutionary War resource. Though the actuoal plague was ercoted in 1940, 1t
conpmemorates Josse Thomas, a Cuwwberand County plantation owner, who mounted his horse,

Fearnaught, on this spot to ride in pursuit of Major-General Baron von Steruben at Point of Fork
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arsenal (located outside of Charlotiesville) with the intention of warning bim of Licutenani-Colonel

Simeoe’s approach (Figure 74). Simcoe was under orders from Lord Cornwallis and intent on the
destruction of arsenals, Thomas” waming apparently warded off the impending destruction.™

“Yirginiz Department of Historic Resources, Survey Form,
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Figure 71: Photograph of Confederate Cemetery (24-413)



o Virginia

Owtober 17, 1994

-
3
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Figure 74: Photograph of Jesse Thomas Plague {24-121
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THEME: RELIGION

RESOURCE TYPES: Churches, Ceromonial Sites

Camberland County is rich in religious history from the davs prior to its founding until modem
times. In 1745, Southam Parish was created from St James Parish and was coterminous with
Cumberdand County founded four vears later,  Southam Parish was subdivided in 1772 along the
Muddy Creek on the James River to the Appomattox River, the area west becoming Littleton Parish.
With the formation of Powhatan County in 1777, Southam Parish became a part of the new
county.”

As the Church of England was the recognized roligion of the time, the earliest churches in both
Virginia and Cumberland County were Anglican, Though no actual examples of these were found,
Tar Wallet Church (24-102) stands on the site of such a church dating to 1732 {Figure 757
Cumberland Presbvterian Church is thought to be by local sources an 18th century meeting house.
As such it is the oldest church standing in the county. Though the building has undergone extensive
renovations over time, the girders and joists forming the ceiling could date to the 17307s, acoording
to historian, Calder Loth ™

In 1776 the Generad Assemhly began to dismantle the established church and three vears after the
American defeat of Great Britain fn 1781, the Church of England in America bad been completely
disestablished, {Cocke.15) After the Revolutionary War and the social, political, and religious
uprising which followed the war, many Episcopal church structures in Virginia were abandoned and
pillaged. In 1779, when Thomas Jefferson became the govemor of Virginia, he guickly proposed a
“Statute for Religious Freedom™, which declared that no person should be required to support or
attend a church or be punished or fined for his religious beliefs. He declared that:

Yall men shall be free to profess, and by argument to maintain, their opinions in matters of
religion. without their civil capacities being in any way affected”™

Thomas Jefferson and James Madison encouraged the legislature {0 repeal the laws requiring
attendance at the established church, and forbidding differcnt religious practices.  Repealing these
religious laws cncouraged the rise of Methodists, Baptists, Presbylerians, and other denominations in

Virginia Genealogy, volb. 8, no. 3, p. 125

“Dorothy Putnev, Unpubhished Manuscnpt. p. 4.
“Calder Loth, Memorandum Re: Comberland Presbyierian Chorch, Virginia Department of
Historic Resources, Decesmber 27, 1992

“Fouis D, Rubin, Jr. Virginia, A History, New York: W.W. Nerton and Company, Inc, p. 39
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Virginia, Each of these denominations appeared in Cumberland County during the late eighteenth
and early nincteenth century and eserted an influence on the religious composition of the county.

While no complete examples of cighteenth century religions architecture survive, six mid-ninetecnth
century churches and one chapel from the same period were found. These include the following:
Brown’s Presbyterian (24-23, Thomas Chapel United Methodist Church (24-29), Grace Episcopal
Church (249}, Center Presbvienian Church {24-23), Fork of Willis Church {2447 and Jenkin's
Church {24-93) Five of the churches are brick while cue is frame as is the chapel. Commem
charactenistics mark six of the seven buildings such as paired entries, a front facing gable and a
fongitudinal plan with raised galleres to either side of a central aisle nave. Brown’s Preshyterian
Churclr is a brick vemacular Greek Revival structure dating to 1838 (Figure 76}, as is Thomas
Chapel which dates to 1847 (Figure 77y, Grace Episcopal, dating to 1840-1843, 15 3 brick
vernaoular Oreck Revival building which is on the National Register of Historic Places {Figure 78).
Another brick tomple form chureh with Greek Revival detailing, Center Preshyviterian, dates to 1852
and is characterized by two columns in antis supporting 3 g)sﬁézzzz:&f'xiad lintel at the eutey (Figure 79}
Fork of Willis Church is the ondy frame church identified from this peried (Figuwe 80). Like the
other churches mentionsd, i too features Greek Revival detatling. The one structure which is not
Greek Revival 15 Jenkin’s Chusch, 2 frame vemacular church with condes retions and a double
entry {Figure #1). Lnlike the other buildings discussed, Jenkin's Church iz only one-story with a
central aisle nave. Though the sighteenth centmry church on the site burned, Saint Tames Episcopal
Charch was budlt in 1939 based on the cighteenth century Joffersonian design for Christ Church as
interpreted by architect Milton Grigg (Figure 82}

The end of the twentieth century and the beginming of the twentisth century saw the fonnation of
several churches theoughout the county, Several of these chnrch butldings still exist and were
surveved (Insert exact number after report). Of these, a notable example is Grove Methodist
Episcopal Church, a frame structure featuring a front facing gable with wood shingles and an
adjacent entry tower 1o the north, built in 1892 (24-92, see Figure 83). Three other examples of this
time period are included within the Cartersville Historic Dhstrct Cantersville Baptist Church (24~
126-020, see Figore 843, Saint Cathenne’s RO, Church (24-126-021, see Figure 85), and Maethodist
Episcopal Church South (24-126-013, sex Figure 88},

In addition to actual church buildings, a church manse and o baptist parsonage were also identified
in the county. Brown’s Church Manse (24-97) dates to ca. 1840, prodating the current church
building by sighteen vears. Thiz 1-1/72 story brick dwelling 15 g good example of 8 mid-nineteenth
centary church manse and features typical vernacular domaestic features of this period such as five-
course American brick honding, mterior end chitneys, and a side-facing slate shingle gable roof
{Figure 87}, The Baptist Parsonage (24-126-019) 13 looated in the Town of Cartersville and dates o
the late cightcenth contury (Figure 88). Originally o single family dwelling, the building 15 now
owned by the Cartersville Baptist Church Ta:"g;és:&% of the criginal Cartersville homes, this is an
waposing rwo-story frame structure on top of an English basoment with long narrow double-hung
windows and extericr end chimmeys.
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Figure 75: Photograph of Tar Wallet Church {(24-1013%

Figure 76: Photograph of Brown’s Presbyvterian Church (24-2)
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Figure 80: Photograph of Fork of Willis Church ( 24-6)
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Figure 81: Photograph of Jenkin's Church (24-95)
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Figure 83: Photograph of Grove Methodist Church (24-92)

Figure 84; Photograph of Carttersville Baptst Church (24-126-20)
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Figure 85: Photograph of Saint Catherine’s Catholic Church (24-126-21)

Figure 86: Photograph of Methodist-Episcopal Church South (24-126-133
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Figure 87: Photograph of Brown's Church Manse (24-97)

Figure 88: Photograph of Baptist Parsonage (24-126-19)
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THEME. COMMERCE/TRADE

RESOURCE TYPE: Stores, Tavems, Inns

Because of the rural nature of Cumberland County and the lack of significant public transportation,
small commercial ventures such as stores and tavemns grew up at cross-roads and along the major
corridors running through the county. Thess retail businesses served the needs of the immediate
surroundings and offered food and lodging to the traveler passing through the county.

Supplving local produce as well as imported goods, the small village store served most of the needs
of the local residents. Nine such small stores were identified in this survey, all of which are closely
associated with a residence:  Dwelling and Store, Flanagan’s Mill Road (24-363), store Route 622
{24-282), store Route 696 (24-286), a combination house and store on Route 45 {24-306}, Diny
Court Store (24-323). store Route 60, Clinton Store (24-118), Robertson’s Store (24-94), French's
Store (24-90), Ashby Store (24-248), and the stores at Cartersville (24-126-003, 24-126-007, and 24~
126-01 1%

Originally constructed as the Cartersville Bank (Figure 893, the Cartersville Drugstore and Bank
dates to 1900, Tt consists of a small, one-story, brick, temple-form building.  The store on Church
Street also dates to the sarly twentieth century, Unlike the original bauk building, ¥t is a large two-
story frame structure.  The carliest of the stores surveyed in Cartersville is Dickerson’s Store,
Though now a single family dwelling, Dickerson’s Store building opened for operation in 1913
(Figure 90}, The current building which appears to have been substantially rebuilt, mcorporales
parts of a late-cighteanth-century structure,

French's Store and house are located at the intersection of Route 13 and Route 654 (Figure 91}
The rear portion of both the house and the store date to the last part of the cighteenth century,
making this one of the oldest stores in the county. The dwelling has a substantial addition to the
front {1899) as does the store. Both are frame structures. The store s clad in board and batten a
features a front porch. The house presents a late nineteenth century facade to Route 13 with an
carlier portion to the rear.

The store at the small town of Clinton, Bruner’s Store (formerly known as Maxey's Store), dates to
the late cightesnth century. according to an article in a local newspaper (Figure %2} Upon
inspection of the property as it stands to day, the store appears to date to the late nineteeonth century.
It is a frame structure with a front facing gable roof. The immediate surroundings include the
Clinton Manor House and other resources al one time associated with the store.  Each property 8 m
separate ownership today,

Two unusual examples of the cowntry store can be seen at the store on Route 45 (24-94) and
Robertson’s Store (24-306, see Figure 93). The combination house/store on Route 45 comsists of a
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four-bay, two-story, frame structure with exterior end chimneys and a side facing gable voof dating
to the carly part of the twentieth century, According to the current owner, one side was used as a
store and the other a residence. Robertson’s Store also served zuch a dual purpose. but iz form s
unigue in Cumbertand County. The building foatures a large stepped parapet at the fromt with an
elaborate bracketed comice and ong-story front porch. In addition, there s a two-story recessed
porch on one side and another porch to the war. This property also includes two associated tenant
houses. Al three buildings on the property date to the period betwesn 18801850,

The more typical form of the cross roads country store &s exemplified by the Dinny Cowt Store or
the store along Route £96 (Figure 94). These are carly twentieth century frame stores with
bungalow type detailing such as the shed roof front porch supported on square columns, A variation
on this theme is found int the store at Route 622 which feature a false stepped parapet at the front. a
type more typical of the stores found near Cumberland Cowrthouse.

Commercial Strip

Near the Cumberland Courthouse, a row of commercial buildings was constructed in the end of the
nineteenth contury and the beginning of the twentieth century. These include the following:
Moore's Supenmarket (24-200), store Route 60 (24-201), World of Video (24-197), and Wooden-
Things Store {24-334). Each of these stores features a stepped parapet.  All are frame with the
exception of the store on Route 60 (24-201) which is brick (Figure 95}

Tavems

Taverns m Cumberland County seem to have finctioned as both public meeting places where
farmers could eat, drink, and conduct business as well as a plase to accommodate overnight visitors.
Effingham Tavem, now demolished, also served for a time as the local court building following the
formation of Powhatan County prior to the construction of the Cumbertand County Courthouse in
1318, Two taverns were found stil] standing in Cumberland County~-Hudgin’s Tavem at Duncan
Diairy Farm (24-80) and Irwin’s Taverm at the intersection of Route 45 and Route 650 {24106},

Hudgin's Tavern dates to 1815 and consists of a four-bay, two-and-one-half-story frama building on
a full basement (Figure 96). The property upon which the tavern sits corrently consists of a large
dairy operation which functioned until 1984, The tavers itself has a central-passage single-pile plan
with a fireplace in each room on three floors.

While Invin's Tavem appears to daie to the early twenticth century, an garhier building on the 3t
scems 1o have been renovated and incorporated into a substantial remodeling effort (Figure 97).
The sarly stone fireplace. dating to 1776, is still o part of the building.

In addition to purpose-built taverns, many houses doubled as taverns and inns. Cartersville, fonated

near the James River at a forry crossing, offered many such accommodations, two of which have
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been identified and surveved--Palmore {24-126-002, see Figure 98) and Hamison House (24-126-
010},

Inns
The only inn identified in the current survey is the Red Rose Inn (Figure 99). Though in

appearance a typical late nineteenth century Leshaped, frame dwelling, the Red Rose Inn has
provided rooms near the Cumberland County courthouse since its initial construction. ™

Y umberland County Historical Society, p 19
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Figure 8% Photograph of Cartersville HBank (24-126-3)

s

I of Dickerson’s Doy Store (24-126-7)

Figure 90: Photograp
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Virginia. Each of these denominations appeared in Cumberland County during the late cighteenth
and carly nineteenth certury and exerted an influcnce on the religious vompasition of the county.

While no complete exumples of eighteenth century seligious architecture survive, six mid-nineteenth
century churches and one chapel from the same period were found. These include the following:
Brown’s Presbyvterian (24-2), Thomas Chapel United Methodist Church (24-29). Grace Episcopal
Clurch {24-9), Center Preshyterian Church (24-23}, Fork of Willis Church {24-7) and Jenkin's
Church (24-98). Five of the churches are brick while one is frame as is the chapel, Common
characteristics mark six of the seven buildings such as paired entries, a front facing gable and a
tongitudinal plan with raised galleries to cither side of a contral aisle nave. Brown's Presbytenan
Church is 2 brick vemnacular Greek Revival structure dating to 1858 (Figure 76}, as is Thomas
Chapel which dates to 1847 (Figure 77). Grace Episcopal. dating to 1840-1843, is a brick
vemacular Greek Revival building which is on the National Register of Historic Places (Figure T8
Another brick temple form church with Gregk Revival detailing, Center Preshyterian, dates to 1832
and is characterized by two columns in antis supporting a pedimented lntel at the entry {Figure 79).
Fork of Willis Church is the only frame church identified from this period (Figure 80). Like the
other churches mentioned. it too features (reek Revival detailing. The one structure which is not
Groek Bevival is Jenkin's Church, s frame vernacular church with comice returns and a double
entry (Figure 81). Unlike the other buildings discussed, Jenkin's Church is only one-story with a
central aisle nave. Though the cighteenth century church on the site bumed, Saint James Episcopal
Church was built in 1939 based on the eighteenth century Jeffersonian design for Chrst Church as
interpreted by architeot Milton Grigg (Figure 82}

The end of the twentieth century and the beginning of the twentieth century saw the formation of
several churches throughout the county. Several of these church buildings still exist and were
surveyed (Insert exact number after report). Of these, s notable example iz Grove Methodist
Episcopal Church, a frame structure featuring a front facing gable with wood shingles and an
adjacent entry tower to the north, built m 1892 (24-92, see Figure §33. Three other examples of this
fime period are included within the Cartersville Historic District: Cartersville Baptist Church (24~
126-020, see Figure 84), Saint Catherine’s R.C. Church (24-126-021, see Figure §33, and Methodist
Episcopal Church South (24-126-013, sec Figure 86},

In addition to actual church buildings, a church manse and a baptist parsonage were also identified
in the county, Brown’s Church Manse (24-97) dates to ca. 1840, predating the current church
building by eighteen years. This 1-1/2 story brick dwelling is a good exarmple of a mid-nineteenth
cemury church manse and features typical vernacular domestic features of this peniod such as five-
cowrse American brick bonding, interior end chimmueys, and a side-facing slate shingle gable roof
{Figure 87). The Baptist Parsonage (24-126-019} is located in the Town of Cartersville and dates to
the late cighteenth century (Figure 88) Originally a single family dwelling, the building 15 now
owned by the Cartersville Baptist Church. Typical of the original Cartersville homes, this 15 an
imposing two-story frame structure on top of an English hasement with long narrow double-hung
windows and gxterior end chimneys.
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The study of religious architecture of Cumberland County was limited to the on-sile survey of these
churches and chapels and did not concentrate on individual church histories.
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Figure 75 Photograph of Tar Wallet Church {24-102)

Figure 76: Photograph of Brown’s Presbyterian Church (24-2}
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Figure 78 Photograph of Grace Episcopal Church (24-9)
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Figure 80: Photograph of Fork of Wills Church (24-6)
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Figure 81: Photograph of Jenkin's Church {24-93)
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Figure 85: Photograph of Saint Catherine’s Catholic Church {24-126-21)

Figure 86: Photograph of Methodist-Episcopal Church South {24-126-13)
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Figure 87: Photograph of Brown's Church Manse {24573

Figure 88: Photograph of Baptist Parsonage {24-126-19)
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THEME COMMERCE/TRADE

RESOURCE TYPE: Stres. Taverns, lnms

Recause of the rural nature of Cumberland County and the lack of significant public transportation,
amall commercial ventures such as stores and taverns grew up at cross-roads and along the major
corridors rumying through the county. These retail businesses served the needs of the immediate
surroundings and offered foud and lodging to the traveler passing through the county.

Siores

Supplving local produce as well as imported goods, the small village store served muost of the needs
of the local tesidents. Nine such small stores were identified in this survey, all of which are closely
associated with a residence:  Dwelling and Store, Flanagan™s Mill Road (24-363}, store Route 622
{24-282), store Route 696 {24-286), a combination house and store on Route 45 {24-3063, Dinny
Court Store (24-323), store Route 60, Clinton Store (24-118), Robertson’s Store {24-94). French's
Store (24-90), Ashby Store {24-248), and the stores at Cartersville {24-126-003, 24-126-007, and 24~
126011}

Originally constructed as the Cartersville Bank (Figure 39}, the Carntersville Drugstore and Bank
dates to 1900, It consists of a small, one-story, brick, temple-form building.  The store on Church
Street also dates to the early twenticth century. Unlike the orginal bank building, it 18 a large two-
story frame structure. The earliest of the stores surveved in Cartensville is Dickerson’s Store.
Though now a single family dwelling, Dickerson’s Store building opened for operation m 1913
{Figure 903, The current building which appears to have been substantially rebuilt, incorporates

French’s Store and house are Jocated at the intersection of Route 13 and Route 634 (Figure 91}
The rear portion of both the house and the stere date to the last part of the eighteenth century,
making this one of the oldest stores in the county, The dwelling has a substantial addition to the
front (1899} as does the store. Both are fame structures.  The store is clad 1n board and batten a
features a front porch. The house presents a late nineteenth century facade to Route 13 with an
garlier portion to the rear.

The stare at the small town of Clinton, Bruner’s Store (formedy known sz Maxey’s Store), dates to
the late eighteenth century, according to an article in a local newspaper (Figure 92}, Upon
inspection of the property as it stands to day, the store appears to date to the lae nineteenth century.
It is a frame structuze with a front facing gable roof The immediate surroundings inchude the
Clinton Manor House and other rosources at one time associated with the store. Each property is in
separate ownership today.

Two unusual examples of the country store <an be seen at the store on Route 43 {2494 and
Robertson’s Store (24306, see Figure 933 The combination house/store on Route 45 consists of a
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four-bay, two-story, frame structure with exterior end chimneys and a side facing gable roof dating
to the carly part of the twentieth century. According to the current owner, ong side was wied as a
store and the other a residence. Robertson's Store also served such a dual purpose, but itx form 18
wnigue in Cumberland County. The building foatores a large stepped parapet at the front with an
clahomte bracketed comice and one-story front porch. I addition, there is o two-story recissed
porch on one side and another porch 1o the rear. This propenty also includes two associated tenant
houses, Al three buildings on the property date o the period between 1REG-1890

The more typical form of the cross roads country store is exemplified by the Dinny Court Store or
the store along Route 696 (Figure 94). These are carly twentieth century frame stores with
bungalow type detailing such as the shed roof front porch supported on square colmmns. A wadation
on this theme is found int the store at Route 622 which feature a false stepped parapet at the front, a
type more typical of the stores found pear Cumberland Courthouse.

Commercial Suip

Near the Cunberiand Courthouse, a row of commercial buildings was constructed in the end of the
nineteenth century and the beginning of the twentieth century, These inchude the following:
Moore's Supermarket {24-200), store Route 60 (24-201), World of Video {24-197), and Wooden~
Things Store {24-354). Each of these stores features a stepped parspet.  All are frame with the
exception of the store on Route 60 (24-201) which is brick {Figure 93}

Taverns

“Taverns in Cumberland County seem to have functioned as both public meeting places where
farmors could eat, drink, and conduct business as well as a place to aceommodate ovemight visitors.
Effingham Tavern, now demolished, also served for a fime as the local court building following the
formation of Powhatan County prior to the construction of the Cumberland County Courthouse i
181%. Two taverns were found still standing in Cumberland County--Hudgin's Tavern at Duncan
Dairy Farm (24-80) and Irwin's Tavem at the imerscotion of Route 45 and Rowe 690 (24-106).

Hudgin's Tavem dates to 1815 and consists of a four-bay, two-and-one-half-story frame building on
a full basement (Figure 96). The property upon which the taverm sits currently consists of a large
dairy operation which functioned until 1984, The tavern itself has a central-passage single-pile plan
with a firgplace in each room on three floors,

While Irwin’s Tavern appears to date to the sarly twentieth century, an carlier butlding on the site
seems to have been renovated and incorporated into a substantial remodeling effort {Figure %7}
The early stone fireplace, dating to 1776, is still a part of the building.

in addition to purpose-built taverns, many houses doubled as tavems and inns. Careraville, located
near the James River at a ferry crossing, offered many such accommodations, two of which have
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been identified and surveved~-Palmore (24-126-002, see Figure 98) and Harrison House {24120~
010y,

Inng
The onlv inn identified in the current survey is the Red Rose Inn (Figure 99y, Though in

appearance a tvpical late ninetcenth century Leshapad, frame dwelling, the Red Rose Inn has
provided rooms near the Cumberland County courthouss since it inftial construction. ™

Ygmberand County Historical Society, p. 19
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Figure 89: Photograph of Cartersville Bank (24-126-3)
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Figare 90: Photograph of Dickerson’s Drug Store (24-126



Figure 91: Photograph of French’s Store {24-50)

Figure 92: Photograph of Bruner’s Store {24-118)
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THEME: INDUSTRY/PROCESSING

RESOGURCE TYPES: Mills

During the formation of Cumberland County #n the late-eighteenth century, the need for four and
com meal led to the erection of grist mills across the county. When a landowner wanted to
construet a mill, a meeting of twelve freeholders would take place to detenmine the damage such a
mill dam woudd incur ™ If the project was approved the mill would then go info production for
the miller's own use and possibly that of his adiacent neighbors.

Of all the mills intact, from this period, six properties remain: Trenton Mill {24-33), Flanagan’s

Mill (24-19), Trent Mill (24-30), Muddy Creek Mill {24-016, on the National Register of Historic
Places), Morton’s Mill House (24-186), and the mill located along Route 60 in Cumberand. Of
these all were surveved except for Muddy Creek Ml

Trenton Mill and miller’s bouse date to the late cighteenth century and are located near Sport’s Lake
on Randolph Creek at the intersection of Routes 608 and 613 (Figure 1003 The mall 15 sits on a
stone foundation with frame above, four stories high with pegged mortise and tenon joinis. I
remained in operation until 1935, when it was later converted to a store associated with a
“sportsman’s paradise.” The prv a‘ids owned complex catered to the needs of vanous sportsmen
using the mill and associated buildings for fishing at the nearby lake. The miller's house dating to
shortly after the Civil War, was at this time converted into a sporting lodge. Both buildingz are
currently abandoned and in a state of deterioration.

Flanagan’s Mill (also known as Trice’s Mill, Walton Mill, and Dixie Lee Flour Millsy was erected
ca. 1800 as the second mill on this location (Figure 101}, It sits at the intersection of Routes 714
and 612 on Trice's Lake near Lakeside Village  According £o focal anthoritics, Robert B Lee spent
the night at this rill following his surrender at Appomattox.™ The mill itself s a frame and brick
structure which sits atop a random stone foundation reaching four stordes high with a slate roof
Currently the mill is abandoned and deteriorating.  No other associated resources oxist.

Trent's Mill, dating to the mid-nineteenth century, sits by itself at the intersection of Routes 622 and
A58 along the Willis River (Figure 102). Onginally a four story frame structure, the mill now sits
on i deterforating random stone and rebuilt concrete pler foundation and is olad o brickiex. The
building is currently vacant.

One example of an early twentieth century mill and its accompanying mill workers” residences was
focated ip the town of Cumberland (Figure 103} The diesel gencrator powered mill s a three-story

#Cumberland County Historical Soclety, p. 31

Yirginia Departmem of Hiztorie Resources, Survey Form,
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frame structure with 6/6 double-hung sash. The four associated dwellings are all single-pile, central
passage, one-story frame buildings dating to the first decades of the twentieth century.

Of the propesty at Morton's Mill, only the house, dating to the early cighteenth century, and a
portion of the canal lock remain {Figure 104). Mo evidence of the mill dating to the early
cighteenth contary exists.
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Figure 100: Photograph of Trenton Mill (24-33)
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Figure 104: Photograph of Morton’s Mill House (24-186}
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THEME: EDUCATION
RESOURCE TYPE: Schools

The first general school low was passed in 1796, The law was a passive rather that compulsory law
and was intended solely to provide for poor children whose parsnts were unable to provide for the
children’s education. The educstion law of 1796 relied on the willingness of a county to accapt the
responsibility for free education, so there was httle progress under the act. Although the gentleman
justices of Cumberland County provided for free schools for the poor as carly as the 17907, hittle
information about these schools is known.™

With the passing of a Literary Fund "for the enlightenment of leamning” in 1810 and "An Act to
Provide for the Education of the Poor” in 1811, an air of change was folt in Virginia™  (Dabney.
p. 246} As a result, Cumberland County boasted nine school commissioners in 1832, and paid
$376.73 educating the poor (approximately 100 children out of the entire population of 11,690).7

Though Jefferson founded the University of Virginia shortly following these acts, little happened
with regard to slementary and secondary schooling until after the statewide convention in Richmaond
in 1841 during which legistation was introduced to establish an adequate school system across
Virginia. While passing the Senate with case, the bill was napowly defeated in the House., Finpally
in 1845, the State Fducation Convention met in Riclunond resulting in the passing of legislation i
1846 atbeit without the provision for a State Superintendent or State Board of Education ™

Though private academies for upper class Virginian's were found throughout the state, the 1830
Census reveals no such private academies in Cumberland County. A fow examples of private
schools weore identified such as the school room al Momingside (24-14), coincidentally built by the
first Buperintendent of Schools in Cumberland County,

During the Civil War the fight for an educational system as well as most privately held schools and
academios came to an abrupt halt. The fight for educating Virginians resumed in 1898 with the
Conference on Southern Eduecation held in Caton Springs, West Virginia. Although Virginia's
schools rated higher than many others in the southeast, they lagged behind the national average.
The average student who did atiend schonl--attendance was not mandatory--went an average of four

“Cumberiand County Historical Society. Cumberland County Virginia Historical Bulletin, July
1986, p. 16,

“Virgintus Dabney, Virgioia The New Dominion A History from 1607 1o the Present,
Charlotiesville, Va The University of Virginda Press, 1983 p 248,

“Cumberland County Historical Society, Cunberdand County Virginia Historieal Bulletin, July
1986, p. 16,

PDabney, pp. 244-249,
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months a vear. In addition, nearly all the schools were clomentary with the facihities for women and
blacks being far inferior to those of white males.™

On April 13, 1872, the Board of School Trustees of Cumberdand County organized the first county
school board and proposed a tax to be levied in support of a school svstem. A month later, a three
day Teacher’s Institute was arranged for August. during which theories on education were to be
discussid. Though several teachers missed the conforence due o illness, Reverend William H.
{iardon praised the present educational svstem and emphasized the necessity of both moral and
mental training of the students.™

A listing of teachers in the county for the school vear 1892-1843 indicates that at the time there
werg 32 white teachers and 16 black teachers, Additionally, the List revesls the existence of black
schools in many of the same locations as white schools.™

White Teachers

Miss Madan Brown - Cantersville

Mr. 11 Ballow - Flanagao Mill

Miss Fannte Blanton - Bush Park

Mr. TH. Woodson - Bush Park

Mr. W.G. Bigger - Ashby

Miss MNannie A, Sanderson - Penrith
Mr. Ino. E. Hams - Clinton

Mrs. BB, Taylor - Bush Park

Miss Nanoy V. Revnolds - Ashbw
Miss Mary H Willinson - Trenton Mills
Bhiss Mattie 8. Hooe - Cromona

Mrs, Sarah 1. Talley - Flanagen Mill
Miss Jonnie M. Hanes - Talley

Miss Dante Hanes - Comborland CH.
Miss Sallic E. Garrett - Osh Forest
Sy, MNannie Vaughan - Cumberdand CH
Mr. Hampden Wilson - bunny Side
Miss Flora V. Guthrie - McBae's

Mr. AW, Agee - McRae's

dr. William M. Corson ~ MoRaes”

“Dabney, p 447,

“Cumbedand County Historical Society, Cumberdand County Virginia Historical Bulletin, July
1986, p. 18,

“Cumberland Comnty Historical Society, Camberand County Historical Bulletin, July 1986, p.
26, Last alzo taken from Bolletin
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Miss Rena Foster - Guinea Mills

Miss Lou Armistead of Farmville - Guinea Mills
Mrs, CW. Crawlet - Adriance

Miss Kate 8. Crawley ~ Adriance

Miss Lucy T. Bidgood of Farmyville - Raines
MWiss Myrtle Bondurant ~ Famovills RE D

Mrs. HH. Brown -~ Hawk P.O.

Miss Mary Womack - Angola

Miss Mary Lo Blanton -~ Stoddert

Black Teachers

Mr. 8, H. Mavo - Boswells

Mr. Ino. B Mavo - Boswells

Mr. 8.B. Tavior - Ashby

Mr. Grant Dungee ~ Talley

Mr. (eorge H. Sanderson - Cumberland CH.

Mr. I R Johnson of Richmond ~ Cumberdand C. H
Mr. Frank €. Bolling of Richmond ~ Oak Forest
miss Martha E. Bolling - Raines

Misz Eliza W. Bolling - Raings

Mr. Jno. W. Henderson of Curdsville - Hawk

Misz Mary B, Wilson - MaRag’s

Mrs. Victora Wilson - MceRag’s My, CH MceDuniel - Famville
Misz Mary Branch - Farmville

Mr. fno. D Bolden - MeRae™s

Mizs Kate Moseley - Adriance

The earliest extant education buildings found in Cumberland County date to the second half of the
nineteenth century. One such one-room school dating between [880-1890 was found on Route 45
and consists of a one-story. frame room with a gable roof and 6/6 double-hung sash. It is currently
in a state of deferioration surmounded by overgrowth. (This may be Central Schooly The only other
nineteenth century educational building found is Oak Forest School, also a one mom frame structure
with a comer entry which would be incorporated into many carly twentieth contury schools found in
Cumberland County. This building is also in g state of disrepair and sits along Route 45,

The sixth of the Conferences on Southern Education begun in 1898 was held in Richmond Virginia
in 1903, followed by a two day Cooperative Education Commission the next vear. Finally, in May
1905, the May Campaign was held which led to a deluge of school bills and educational legislation
in the General Assembly of 1906

"Dabney, pp. 448-450.
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Az a result of the new state legislation, school buildings were built across Virginia, Cumberland
County included.  Examples in Cumberld County consist of early twentieth cenfury two-room
frame structures and ons-room frame structures which were affiliated with neighboring churches.
Three nearly wentical twieroom frame schools were surveved:  Flat Rock School (24-298), Turkey
Cock School (24-303, see Figure 103), and a school on Route 614, now used as a church (24-2753.
Al three of these schools feature hipped roofs with paired entries sbout a projecting central gabled
bay. Each entry has g hipped roof supported by a square post. The other duee schoods are St
Paul’s on Route 45, Fork of Willis School on Route 690, and Stoddent 5chool, now Iocated on the
High Bridge Farm. 5t Papl’s (founded in 1936} consists of a one-room, front facing gable frame
building with a hipped roof front porch supported by tumed posts (Figure 1063, It currently sits
along route 45 with its doors and windows boarded up. Fork of Willis School exists as a ruin,
though it once featured corer entrics about a central bay with decorative barge board detailing in
the pedimented gable. The Stoddert School has been roconstructed on a new sile,

Near the town of Cartersville, a population concentration within Cumberland County, a far more
subsstantial school building dating to 1911 was constructed.  The stte for Hamilton High School sits
at the comer of Route 45 and Route 690, and the building iself consists of 3 two-story frame
stracture, three bavs wide, with a projecting contral bay capped by a bell tower. There are four
rooms on either floor, with a total of eight classrooms (Figure 107} John Randolph School, which
is contemporary with Hamilton High School and located at the Farmville end of the county. 1s a
one-story frame structure with a hipped rof at the rear and fromt facing gable. Like Hamilton High
School it has banks of windows on the side clevations and in the tradition of schools across the
county, it has patred entries, one for bovs and the other for girls, The school is currently being used
for the storage of hay,

With the advent of the Depression and the formation of the Work Progress Administration (WPA)
and the Public Works Administration (PWA) across America and in Virginia, Cumberland High
School was built in 1934, Cumberland High School ocoupies a lot slong Route 43 spanning thiee
bays across the front and two bavs deep (Figure 108), The two-story brick butlding features a
stepped parapet on the front facade with engaged pilasters separating each of the three front bays.
In addition to the main school building, the WPA also constructed a log cabin exhibit behind the
house which 15 currently used as a part of the school complex.

The oldest extant fraining agricultural building is the former Cumberland Training Agricultural
Building which dates to 19391940, Now Cumbedand Elementary School, this one-story brick
building feattres a central entry portico with square posts surrounded by groupings of four windows,
12/12 double-hung sash, on either side of the center,

Of all of the school builldings surveved and mentioned shove, only Comberland High School and the
Cumberland Training Agricultural Butlding (cwrrently Cumberland Elementary School, also known
as fackson High School ot one time) are still in use today as educational buildings.
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Figure 107: Photograph of Hamilton High School (24-103]

Figure 108: ?iﬁééogz"@ﬁ of Cumberland High School (24-350)
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THEME: FUNERARY
RESOURCE TYPE: Cemuteries

Thi several examples of cemeteries located tn Cumberland County can be divided into three basic
types: family cometeries, church related cometeries, and public cemetenias,

Family Cemeteries

In Cumberland County, as in much of mral Virginia, family cemeteries were historically used by the
local residents during times of inclement weather, during which the neighboring church cemetenes
could not be readilv accessed. These family cemeteries often included several of the following
common characteristics,  boxwood plantings marking either the headstone or foot stone, large rough
stongs partiglly submaerged in the earth as a headstone or foot stong, granite markers, periwinkle
plantings, and a surrounding low wall with a gate. One example surveved which retains all of these
clements is the Putney Family Cemetery (24-059), a mid ninetventh contury cemetery lovated across
from Trenton Mill along Route #1323 The cemetery, once located behind the family home, now
demeolished, is surrounded by a low random stong wall with periwinkle all around the perimeter,
fnside the wall, both marked and wnmarked graves are found as are large boxwood. Those markers
which do exist are granite with engraved birth and death dates. One such stone features a hand with
the ndex finger dirccting D, Wilkinson (d. 1860} towards heaven,  Another good example of such a
family cemetery is the Moses Smith Cemetory located along Boute 631 Like the Pulney cemetery,
the Moses Smith Cemetery (24-128) is surrounded by o low fence {wire in this instance) within
which are located marked and vnmarked graves. There are engraved granite stoned laid in a row as
well as rock marker and cedar tree grave sites,

Prohably the most significant for its historic associations is the comstery located at Oak Hill which
containg the tombstone of Chades Irving Thomton (1834}, with an epitaph written by Chanles
Dickens (24-034). This is the only epitaph known fo have been written by Dickens while visiting
the United States and is listed on the National Register,
TTHIS IS THE GRAVE of a little Child whom (God

in his goodness called to o Bright Eternity when

he was very voung. Hard as i1 is For Human Affsction

Tor reconcile itsedf To Death In any shape (and most

of all, perhaps at First In this) HIS PARENTS can

even now heliove {sic) That it will be a Consolation ©

them Throughout their Tives and when they shall have

grown old and grey always to think of hire as a Child

IN HEAVEN And Jesus Called a little Child unto him,

and sef him i the midst of them. He was the son of

ANTHONY and M1 THORNTON Called CHARLES IRVING., He

was born on the 20 day of Jamsary 1841, and he died

on the 12th day of March 1842 Having lived only

13 months and 19 days”
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The cemetery features many of the typical characteristics of a family cometery. I is focated within
a wooded area with both marked and wimarked graves and boxwoed plantings.

Though i does not conform to many of the typical characteristics of a fanuly cometery, the family
cemetery located on the Northfield Property (24-293) includes the earlicst grave markers located in
the county as well as many high quality engraved marble and granite headstones (Figure 109}

Church Cemeteries

MNearly every church surveved within the county had an accompanying cometery. In some instances,
the tombsiones in the cemetery predate the actual church building and date 1o a previous church on
the site. Tvpically these church cometeries include sections which date to different pertods.
Oftentimes. the oldest sections are located furthest from the chorch, near a wooded area. The
cemetery at Thowmas Chapel is representative of this (24-29).

Public Cemsteries

The only public cemetery surveved was the Cartersville Cemetery (24-042), located along Route 45
near Cartersville. The cemetery is separated into family plots surrounded by low conerete
foundation-like walls. These in turn are contained within an overall grid which is acoessed from
Route 43 through a low brick wall. Gravel access road run betwesn the family plots. While a fow
of the sections fealure an occasional planting, the grounds are generally bare with only a well kept
fawn and the granite markers.
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Figure 109: Photograph of Family Cemetery at Northfield {24-293)
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THEME: SOCIAL

RESOURCE TYPE: Masonic Hall, Club House

Manyv community, social, fratemal and charitable organizations have prospered throughowt
Cumberland’s history. Of these various organizations, only two associated resources were identified
during the current survey: a masonic termple and a fishing club house

Freemasonry in Cumberland County dates to as early as 1792 when the Powhatan Amicable Lodge
#28, originally chartered in 1790, was moved to the Cumberland Courthouse and rechartered as the
Cumberland Lodge #28. By 1842, there were five lodges in the county: Lodges #70 and #141 in
Cartersville, Lodges #146 and #33 in Ca I, and Lodge #99 at Camberland Courthouse. Having
passed their hevday, only one lodge met regularly by the tum of the century-- Lodge #141, the
DeWitt Clinton Lodge. The Cumbedand Lodge #283 received its charter in 1903 and continues to
operate today.

During the survey, one masonic temple was identified, the DeWite Clinton Lodge #141 in
Cartersville (24-126-009). Originally used as a dwelling and a store, the frame structure dates 1o the
original platting of Cartersville and was constructed between 1750 and 1795,

Besides the Masomic Lodue, the only other building related to the Social theme identified is the Ca
Ira Fishing Club House (24-116), Though originally nsed as a single dwelling, the building dates 1o
the early 18007s and consists of a 1-1/2 story frame structure set upon an English basement {Figure
110). Initially associated with the prospering tobacco export town of Ca Ira, the club house building
originally housed a tavern and store. Mo examples of buildings relating to African American
organizations were located during the survey.

&l
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THEME: HEALTH CARE/ MEDICINE

RESOURCE TYPE. Springs

During the nincteenth and early twenticth centuries, visiting natural springs became a popular
pastime across Virginia. The springs were thought to have medicinal value and becamse the site of
recreational and healing-refated ventures., One sach site is that of Lithia Springs (24-396} in
Cumberland County, just outside of Farmville, The Lithia Springs were discovered n 1877 when
Flizabeth Rosa Houston drank from them during a walk behind ber house, Feeling better from
having taken the waters, Elizabeth apparently continued to visit the springs until she noted a
alteration in her health. By word of mouth, the curing power of the springs spread unti] they
became incorporated in 1884, At its hevday, there were sixteen springs on the site~two lithia,
others were magnesia (for dyspepsia), sulphur and iron (for bony formations between the joints),
iodine, iron and sulphur (for complicated blood troubles), aluminum (for intestinal problems).
arsenous chalybeate (for the nervous system), and iodine (for blood troubles).™  In addition 1o the
springs, a dance pavilion alsy shared the site. The pavilion, located on a hill overlooking the site,
1o longer exists. All that rerains ix part of the foundation and one framing picce marking the
division of the building into two--an alteration which occurred during a family argument while
owned by the Thaxstons.™ During this period, the popularity of the springs began o deorouse,
Today. only two springs can he found, both of which are covered by a cone shaped cement
structure.  In addition. a hottling house which dates i the early twentieth contury still stands on the
site. No examples of early doctor’s offices were located during the survey.

“Cumberland County Historical Socicty, pp. 35-56.

“According 1o local ore, two of the Thasstons got in a fight over the dance hall and divided the
property in two as a result, Following this, a wall was built down the middle of the buildings, cach
stde belonging 1o a different sibling. A framing member can be seen on the sile fo support this
fepend.

31
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THEME: TECHNOLOGY/ ENGINEERING

RESOURCE TYPE Brdges

Cumberland County’s focation bounded by the James River to the north and the Appomattox o the
south, necessitated the construction of multiple bridges to traverse the waterways, The oldest
surviving examples of these brdges are the Cartersville Bridge Ruins (24-U53) crossing the James
River and the High Bndge (24-056) spanning the Appomatiox.

The Cartersville Bridge s a rare surviving example of a composite bridge dating to 1822, It is the
last major timber bridge to span the James River. The wood structure is augmented by cast iron
connections and set upon a stone pier foundation, making # a landmark engingering structure.
Though partially destroved by flood in 1972, the bridge ruins are listed on the Nabonal Register.

High Bridue. originally a part of the South Side Ratlroad, dates to 1833, Spanmming the Appomatton,
the original structure consisted of twenty brick piers supporting a wooden superstructure. During
the Civil War, General Robert B, Lee ordered the bridge 1o be bumed to provent Union soldiers
from advancing. The action having been delaved, was unsuceessful and oreated serious problems
for the Confederate forces who would later be foreed to surrender,

i addition to these bridges which traverse the two major rivers bounding Cumberland County are ¢
serics of smaller bridges which span the numerous rivers throughout the county. While many of
these structures have heen replaced by modemn bridges, two historic bridges do survive and were
surveved, The first, Swinging Bridge (24-343) is a pedestrian bridge which crosses the Willis River
and dates to the carly-twentieth century, I is a suspension bridge with frame supports and metal
cables which allow for a series of wooden planks to cross the river. One other swinging pedestrian
bridge was brought to our attention during the survey but was destroyed by vandals when the cables
were cut causing the bridge to stuk.® The Willis River Bridge (24-71}, a road bridge dating
1934, consists of a Warren metal truss structure (Figure 111} While once a common bridge form in
Virginia, this s the only surviving example in Comberdand County., The other Cumberland County
enample of this bridge tvpe, the Boston Branch Bridge, no longer exists in ity original location, but
has been removed and set in an open field ™

“This bridge was also along the Willis River. according to local residents. The precise location
was not identified during this survey as the bridge no longer exists,

“The precise location of this field could not be determined,

&2
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SECTION IV SURVEY FINDINGS

A, Comberland County Database Holdings

The YDHR-Integrated Preservation Software Svstem (VDHRAIPS) is a computer systerm developed
by the National Park Service and customized to meet VDHR’s computer neads and desires. VDHR-
IPS contains an individual database for Cumberand County.  The Cumberland County database
includes a record for all of the properties surveved during the 1994 survey, as well as other,
previpusly identified properties. Currently, this includes 449 total records. Of these 449 properties,
415 represent surveved properties; ten represent propertics listed on the National Register of Historic
Places; 18 represent previously identified. and now-demolished properties; three represent properties
which were previously identified, but not located during this survey, and presumed demolished; two
represent nature areas, the Cumberland Stute Forest and the Bear Creek Lake State Park, which
were part of a state-owned properties survey, one represents a property which waz previously
wentified, but was not accessible and therefore not surveyed during this survey, and one ropresents
a previously wentified property that is actually outside of the county linits,

Statistical information based upon the survey findings can be produced by running computar-
generated reports. Some of this indtemation s factual, and is based upon numbers collected from
the survey, while other information is valuative, and is based vpon Tracedes” understanding and
evaluation of architectural and historical data collected during the survey. The computer-generated
reports represent both factual and valuative subjects and provide statistics on important trends and
aspects of the county’s architectural hevitage. The following summary and analysis has been
prepared by architectural historians at Traceries and is based wpon a professional understanding of
the resources surveved and takis into consideration the needs and desires of the county and the
concerns of DHR. (hher organizations or groups, such as the Jocal community, the historical
soctety, or the Hbrary may be interested tn other aspects of the county’s historic resources; relgvant
computer-generated reports can be prepared for them as appropriate.

B. Bummary and Analysis of Survey Findings

Mational Resister Resource Catesories

Each property record listed fn the computer includes a count of the number and category of Mational
Register resources lovated on the property. These resource categories are as follows: building,
structure, district, site, object. The resources were labsled based on the definitions included in
Mational Kegister Bulletin 15,

Building A building, such a5 a house, bam, church, hotel, or similar construction, is created
to sheller any form of human activity. "Building” may also be used to refer to a historically
and functionally related unit. such as o courthouse and jail or a house and barn.
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Distriet A district possesses a significant concentration, Hnkage, or continuity or sites,
buildings, structures, or objects united historically or acsthetivally by plan or physical
development.

Site A site is the location of g significant cvent, a prehistoric or historic ocoupation or
activity, or a building or structure, whother standing, ruined, or vanished, when the location
itself possesses historie, coltural, or archeological value regardless of the value of any
existing structure.

Structure The term “structure” 1s used to distinguish from buildings those functional
constructions made ususlly for purposes other than creating human shelter,

Object The term “object” is used to distinguish from buildings and struciures those
construntions that are primarily artistic in nature or are relatively swall in scade and simply
constructed.  Although it may be, by nature or design, movable, an object is associated with
a specific sotting or environment, such as statuary in a designed landscape,

The survey of Cumberland County was primarily an architectural survey. A total of 421 buldings
were surveved, comparad with 17 sites, 6 structures, 4 objects and | district {Cartersville Historic
District).  Although many additional historic sites, such as cemeteries were identified and surveyed.
only extant buildings were systematically documented to include all significant examples.

Resonrce Tvpes

Each property record includes a count of resource types, called "wuzits” These resource types
wmclude districts. butldings, structures and objects and range from single dwellings o cometenies. A
complete st of the tyvpes and number of "wuzits” surveved is compiled helow:

H4
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IPS FREQUENCY REPORT
FOR THE FIELD Wuzit Type for Resoure

# Wuzit lises

14 Bam

& Bridge

3% Comatery

2 Church

i Clubhouse
21 Commercial Building
3 Comuorib

3 Dairv

2 Daivy Bam
i Fortification
2 Garage

i {Fas Station
i Ciravestone
4 ice House

8 Kitchen

Mill

Mixed: Domes/lndust
Multiple Dwelling
Office/Office Bldg,
Oither

Post Office

Power Plant

L L Led b omes

3 Privy
1o School

Servant’s Cuarters
Shed

Smgle Dwelling
Smoke/Meat House
Spring/Spring House

s L2k
B sty AP e
feend

f Tavern/Ordinary
3 Tenant House
3 Tobacco Bam

Les
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YVDHR Themes

VDHR has defined eighteen cultural themes for Virginia's material cultural historv from prehistornic
times 1o the prosent.  Bach surveved property relates to one or move of the defined themes. The
following Hst shows the historic themes developed for the county and the number of surveved
resources associated with them.

IPS Frequency Report
For the field HISTORIC CONTEXT

# of Uses YIHE Histore Theme
31 Commerce/ Trade
{0 Community Planming
309 Domestic
i1 Education
{ Ethnicity/Immigration
] Government/Law/Politival
] Health Car/Medicing
3 Industry/Processing/Extraction
{ Landscape
3 Military/Defonse
1 Recrestion/Arts
36 Religion
0 Settlement Patterns
I Social
& Subsistence/Agnicultural
5 Technology/Enginecring
3 Trangportation/Communication

{ Criher

Identified and Surveved Resources

For each property surveved fn Cumberdand County, a complete st of the historic resources found
on the property was compiled. For properties surveved 1o the intensive level, vach of these historic
resources was surveved and documented separately.  For properties surveyed to the recomnaissance
level. only the primary resource on the property was surveyed and documented, while the other
historic resources were listed and described in a notes fiekd, Throughowt the entire survey process,
therefore, 1.074 historic ressurces were identified, and 532 were surveved and documented. Of the
identified resources, 330 were single dwellings, of which 324 were surveved; 86 were bams of
which 17 were surveved {seven of these harus were tobacco bams, three of which were surveyed),
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3% were smokehouses, of which 11 were actually surveved; 38 were garages, of which two were
surveved, and four were mills, of which all four were surve ved; and so on

Thregtened Proporties

Based upon the total of 332 wsources evaluated, 100 resources were das,zmzm;d to he threatened by
deterioration, vacancy, or neglect. This represents 20 percent of the county’s historic resources and
should he ssamined more closely for causes. In specifie, 25 of the properties are threatened by
deterioration, 15 by neglect, and 37 by vacancy. The high rate of vacancy indicates that historic
resources are being abandoned by property wners and left vacant and ripe for decay. In order to
help preserve the county’s historic resources, the reason for this high rate of vacancy should be
addressed.

Condition of Resources

In addition to whether a property is theeatened or not, its overall condition was evaluated as part of
this survey. Of the surveved propertics, 45 were in excellont condition; 51 in excellent-good
condition; 204 in good condition; 44 in good-fair condition; 99 in fair condition; 45 n poor
condition; seven in deteriorated condition; and three in ruinous condition. Based upon this evidenes,
it appears that the present overall condition of Cumbedand County’s historic resources 1s gond.
However, vacant resources are quick to deteriorate and should be paid particular attention 1o,

Physical Character of Generad Surmoundings and of Immediste Sotting

Of the 415 properties surveved, 333 were considered to be located fn a rural setting and 82 1n in-
town environs, This represenis the rural nature of the survey. OF the Targer rural 'ﬁgﬁ;iw, however,
% were considered fo be set on farms or agriculiural complexes, 232 on residential lots, and 38 on
transportation corridors. The large number of farms indicate the continued mportance af agriculture
in the county, while the even larger number of residential lots indicates the development of the
once-open landscapes.

Predominant Construstion Materials

The predominant construction material fn Cumberland County is brick, followed closely by stone.
OFf the surveyed buildings. 394 of them have brick walls, while 326 bave frame walls, and only four
have stone walls. OF those buildings with chimnevs, 389 are brick and 24 are stone. Of all of the
roofs on historic buildings in Cumberland, 116 are clad with slate, 256 with metal, 60 with asphalt
shingles, and three with wood shingles. The bigh percentage (247 of slate roofs in the county
reveals the relative availability of slate in the ares, due undoubtedly to the county’s proximity to
Buckingham County slate guarries.

&7
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Plan Types

A building’s plan rype can reveal much shout the use of space 1 the past and the social history of a
given area. Plan types were captured on all the resources surveved 1o the infensive level, A Hist of
the plan tvpes found in Comberand County 15 shown below:

iPS FREQUENCY REPORT
FOR THE FIELD Intedor Plan

# Uses Plan Tvpe

3 Central Passage, Double Pile
24 Central Passage, Single Pile
2 Double Pen (Farm Building)
2 Hall Parlor

1 Irregular

51 One-room

4 Cther

3 Side Passage, Single Pile

i Single Pen (Farm Building}
3 Two-Room. Single Pile

Architectural Stvle

Cumberland County includes a sampling of buildings designed in a vadety of architectural styles.
The majority of the buildings, reflecting local building traditions, are vemacular and have no style.
(Others, however, reflect more formal stylistic tendencies, as iHustrated in the List below:

IPS FREQUENCY REPORT
FOR THE FIELD Architectural stvle

# Llseg Stvle
33 Bungalow/Craftsman
4 {‘lassical Revival
2 {olonial
3 Colonial Revival
6 Commercial Stvle
] Early Republic
24 Federal
2 {eorgian
3 {Gothic Revival
17 {Greek Revival

ah
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2 fralianate
# Uses Style
i Mixed {(more than 3 styles from difforent periods)
i Modeme
2 Other
& Ccen Anne
30 Yernacular

Sigmficant Persons

In general, information on persons associated with a given property is collected during the survey
and included in the documentation. I a given proparty 15 associated with a nationally known and
significant person, this information is recorded under a category Hsted as "Significant Persons.” The
survey revealed that five properties in the county are associated with the nationally significant
persons, Thomas Jofferson and General Robert B, Lee.

&5
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SECTION V. SUBVEY RECOMMENDATIONS

A. Recommendations for Further Study

Archaeolooical Survey

The survey of Cumberland County was strictly an extant-resources survey. However, the history of
the county extends well beyond the standing structures and buildings. Arn achaeslogical survey
ndicating areas of potential archasological interest should be conducted as a subsequent phase to
this survey. The two surveys together will provide the county with a complete listing and
assessment of the grea’s historic resources.

Preservation Plan

Cumberland County has pow completed a comprehensive survey of its historie and architectuml
resources. Yo move toward protecting these identified resowrces, the county should pursue the
development of a preservation plan.  The preparation of a preservation plan and its rmplementation
is essential in preserving the county’s historic and architectural resources. The survey, identification
and documentation of these resources is the first, and critical step inn the process.

A praservation plan can be designed to allow for the preservation of the greater percentage of the
county’s architectural and archeclogical resources. The purpose of a plan 15 to address the unique
history and features of Cumberland County, to acknowledge the need for continued growth, and fo
outline methods and procedures that will mutually benefit and encowrage the preservation of
architectural and archeological resources while at the same time stimulating cvonomic growth, A
preservation plan will provide the methods of implementing necessary o make the protection of
historic resources a reality.



Fhstorie Rasourcss Survey of Cumberland Cownty, Virginma
Fraal Report
TRACERIES Oetober 17, 1994

B. Evaluation/Becommendstions for Designation

Standards for Evaluation:

The properties surveved i Cumberland County have been evalvated on a preliminary basis for their
historic significance at the local, state and national levels. As stated in the Secretary of the
Interior’s Standards for Evaluation. evaluation is the process of determining whether identified
propertics meet defined criteria of significance and whether they should, therefors, be included in an
mventory of historic propertics detenmined to meet the sstablished criteria.

In association with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Evaluaion arve the Seoretary of the
Interior’s Guidelinegs for Evaluation. These guidelines describe the principles and process for
evaluating the significance of the identified historic properties.  In cvaluating the historic resources
of Comberland County, both the Standards and Guidelines for evaluation were consulted.  As a first
step, the guidelines suggest that criferia used to develop an inventory of historic properties should be
coordinated with the MNational Register of Historic Places. In the case of Cumberdand County, the
evaluation process was conducted using the National Register of Historic Places critenia and the
Virginia Landmark Designation cnteria. The Natinnal Register of Historic Places 13 the official
national list of recogaized propertieos, and is maintained and expanded by the Mational Park Service
on hehalf of the Secretary of the Interior. The Virginia Landmarks Register designation criteria,
established in 1966, are conrdinated with those established fow the Mational Register,

The Mational Register of Historie Places Criteria states:

The quality of significancg in Ameriean history, architecture, archeology, and culture
is presemt i districgs, sites, buildings, and objects that possess integrity of location,
design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling. and aszodiation, and

A, that are associated with events that have made a significant contribution
1o the broad patterns of our history; or

B, that are asscciated with the lives of persons significant in our past; or

. that embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of
construction or that represent the work of a master, or that possess high
artistic values, or that represent a significant and distinguizshable cotity
whose components may lack individual distinction: or

D, that have vielded, or may be likely o vield, information important n
prehistory or history.
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Similarly, the Virginia Landmarks Register designation criteria are set forth in the legislation as
follows:

Mo structure or site shall be deemed 2 historic one unless 1t has been prominently
identified with, or best represents, some major aspect of the cultural, political,
gconomic, military, or social history of the State or nation, or has had a relationship
with the life of an historic personage or event representing some major aspect of, or
ideals related to, the historv of the State or nation.  In the case of structures which
are 1o be so designated, they shall embody the principal or unique features of an
architectaral stvle or demonstrate the style of a period of our history or method of
construction, or serve as an illustration of the work of a master builder, designer or
architect whose gendus influenced the penod in which he worked or has significance
in current times. In order for a site 1o qualifv as an archacological site, it shall be ¢
area from which it is reasonable to expect that artifacts, materials, and other
specimiens may be found which give insight to an understanding of abonginal man
ot the Colonial and early history and architecture of the State or nation.™

A second consideration cited by the guidelines suggests that the established criteria should be
applied within particedar historic contexts. In the case of Cumberland County, the criteria were
examined to detenmtne how they might apply to properties within the given context, The historic
contexts are svnonveous with the cighteen historic themes developed by the VDHR and listed as
follows:

mm Dotoestic Theme This theme relates broadly to the hwman need for shelter, a home place, and
commuunty dwellings.

mm Subsistonce/Agvculture. Theme: This theme most broadly secks explanations of the differsnt
strategies that culures develop to procure, process and store food.

me Covernment/Law/Political Theme: This theme relates primanly fo the enactment and
administration of laws by which a nation, state, or other political judsdiction s govemed; and
activities related to polities and government.

am calth Carg/Medicing Theme: This theme refers to the care of sick, elderly and the disabled,
and the promotion of health and hygiene.

mm Education Theme: This theme relates to the process of conveying or acquiring knowledge of
skills through systematic instruction, tratning, or study, whether through public or private efforts,

“ Calder Loth, editor, The Virginia Landmarks Reuister. poy.
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ma Military/Defense Theme: This theme relates to the system of defending the teritory and
soveraignty of 3 people and encompasses all military zetivities, battles, strategic locations, and
events important in mulitary hisiory,

me Roligion Theme This theme concerns the organtzed system of beliefs, practices, and traditions
rogarding the world view of various cultures and the material manifestation of spiritual beliefs.

mm sooial Theme This theme relates to social activities and institetions, the activities of
charitable, fratemal, or other community organizations and places associated with broad social
movements,

ma Recreation and the Ars Theme: This theme relates to the arts and cultural activities and
institutions related fo leisure time and reoreation,

mm | ransportation/Communication Theme: This theme relates to the process and technology of
conveving passengers, matenials, and information.

me Commerce/Trade Theme: This theme relates to the process of trading goods, services and
commodities.

mm [ndustry/Processing/Extraction. Theme: This thome explores the technology and process of
managing materials, labor and cguipment to produce goods and services,

mm Landscape Theme: This theme explores the historic, cultural, scenic, visual and design
quatities of cultural landscapes, emphasizing the reciprocal relationships sffecting the natural and
the buman-buill environmsent,

g Funerary Theme This theme concems the mmvestigation of grave sites for demographic data to
study population, composition, heslth and mortality within prehistorte and histone societies.

s Dthoicity/Inmigration Theme: This theme explores the matenial mamfestations of ethnic
diversity and the movement and interaction of people of different ethnic heritages through thne
and space in Virginia

am oottiement Patterns Theme: Studies related to this theme involve the analysis of different
strategics available for the utilization of an arca in response to subsistence, demographic, socio-
political, and religious aspects of 3 cultural system,

mm Architeoture/Londscape _Architecture/Community Planning Theme: This theme explores the
design values and practical arts of planning, designing. armnging, constructing and developing
buildings, structures, landscapes, towns and cities for human use and enjoyment.

s oohnology/Engincening Theme While the technological aspects of g oulture form the primary
basts of iterpretation of all themes, this theme relates primaridy to the utilization of and

o~
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svoluticsary changes in material culture as a society adapts o the physical, biological, and
cultural environment.

After determining how criteria apply, the Secretary of Interior’s Guidelines for Fvaluation suggest
that the integrity of a property should be accessed.  In evaluating the integrity, factors such as
structural problems, deterioration, and abandonment should be considered if they have affected the
significance of the property.  In surveving the properties of Cumberland County, the integrity of the
resource was evaluated using six of the seven aspects as defined in Nattonal Register Bulletin 15,
The six gspects include lovation, dosign, sotting, materials, workmanship, and feeling. The seventh
aspect, assogiation, was not always evalusted while conducting on-sife survey work, and requires
turther archival research,

Based upon the state and national gutdelines and oritena, all of the properties in Cumberdand County
were svaluated for potential nomination to the Mational Register and Vuginin Landmark Register,

Bocause this survey project concentrated on on-site investigation and devoted less time to archival
research on individaal properties, the following recommaendations for nominations are based on the
property’s apparent architectunal significance, snd are, in some cases, supplemented by himited
historical data. In order to complets the necessary documentation for listing on the Virgima
Landmarks Register and the Mational Register of Historic Places, additional archival rescarch should
be pursued.

Summary_of Evaluation Progess:

Cumberland County currently contains 8 properties listed on the Mational Register of Historie

Places, including the Cartersville Historic District as one property,  The survey indicated that at least
13 other properties in Combedand County are potentially eligible for individual lsting on the
Mational Register of Historic Places as follows ™

Recommendations for RBe-evaluation of Previously Listed Mational Register Properlics

At least one of the existing historic propertics in Cumberdand County was listed in the Mational
Register of Historie Places in 1972, Since then, the methods of evaluation and standards for
designation have changed and, in this case, bring to question the issue of non-contiguous, but related
resources.  As listed on the National Registor the proparty. Ampthill includes the main dwelling and
the domestic Qu‘{buiiciiﬂg,s mmmediately on the property. Mot included in the property, however, s
the Ampthill Overseer’s House {24-73), located north of, and across the mad from Ampthill. This

g\

“ Only those 47 properties surveved 1o the tutensive level were evaluated for potential Histing on
the Natinonal Register. Ap additional 14 properties which were not surveved to the intensive lovel
for reasons of access, Bave been recommended for fusther study. These properties should, at that
thme, alsoe be ;mmdcmd for listing on the National Register.
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house, built at the same time as the orginal scction of Ampthill, ca. 1750, histoncally served as the
Ampthill Caretaker’s house. Because of its direet association with Ampthill, it is recommended that

the National Register Form for Ampthill be rovised to mclude the Caretaker's House

Recommendations for Desienation of Historic Proveriies o the Matonal Rewmster of Histonie Places:

In evaluating new properties to be constdercd for listing on the National Register, Traceries
developed two categories for potentially cligible properties.  The properties were placed in the
appropriate category based on the examination of the property’s architectural and historical
significance and the infommation available on the property. Category 1 lists all of those properties
determined potentially eligible to the National Register based on this prebiminary review. Category
2 refers to those propertics which have architectural or historical merits, but require further research
to determiine if they meet the criteria of the MNational Register of Historic Places. I a property is
listed in either Category 1 or Category 2 and is currently threatened, the type of threat to the
property iz thus indicated. Threatened propertics listed below should be comsidered as a priority.
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CATEGORY 1 Potentially Eligible
Maorpingside {24-0014)
Assoviated VDHR Theme(s)y  Domestic, Education, Subsistence/Agnculture

Criterion € Momingside property. with its main dwelling, school house, farm buildings and
domestic structures, is an excellent example of 3 mid-1%th-century famm complex
in Cumberland County. The main dwelling, designed in a transitional Greek
Revival/ltalianate stvie, has clegant interior proportions and details including a
spiral stair in the front hall. The dwelling appears to have been designed by an
architect who may well bave been from Richmond and familiar with
sophisticated interiors.

Meouant Elba (24-0015)
Associgted VDHR Themelsy Domestic

Criterion €. Built ca. 1750, Mount Elba survives as the only example of formal Georgan
architecture in Cumberland County, I3 overall massing and exterior and interioy
detailing is tvpical of the finest Virginia Georglan bouses of the penod.

High Bridge (24-0056)
Associated VDHR Theme(sy Military, Transportation

Crterion A. Towards the end of the Civil War, General Robert E. Lee crossed High Bndge
on his retreat from Petersburg and ordered # bumed bebind him. The order was
delaved and the Union troops traversed the Appomattox River, hastening Lew's
finad surrender at Appomattox.

Criteriom € The surviving ruins of High Brdge are of the fow remaining examples of o pra-

Civil War era bridges in Virginia. 1t is notable as one of the most significant m

SLEC,

pexd

Duncan’s Dairy Farm (24-0080)
Associated VDHR Theme(s) Commerce/Trade
Criterion € Duncan’s Dairy Farm conuists of an carly [9th-contury tavern at one time known

a5 Hudgin's Tavern false known as Looust Grove) as well as a significant
grouping of 20th-century dairy barms and related agricnlrgral buildings, The
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tavern is located on the former "River Road” which ran behind the tavern and
was a stopping place for cosches travelling between Cartersville and
Buckingbam. It is one of only two taverns dentified i Comberland County.

Goshen (24-0091)
Agsociated VDHR Thema(s) Domestic

Criterion € Built ca. 1840, the main dwelling at Goshen is an clogant example of a brick
Federl house. Although representative of a Federal-style house, Goshen is the
only example of its kind in Cumberland County and survives in excellent
wondition.

Thaxston House (24-113)
Associated VDHR Theme(sy: Domaestic, Military

Crterion A On April 7, 1865, at the tail end of the Civil War, Thaxston House served as a
meeting place for General Robert E. Lee and his Secretary of War, General
Breckenridge to discuss the current state of military affadrs. Local history
contends that it was af Thaxston house that Lee, whe had not been informed that
the Union Army has crossed the Appomatox, informed Breckenyidge of his plans
13 continue south to North Carolina.

Jamesview {34-131)
Associated VDHR Theme(sy Domestic

Criterion B, Originally owned by Robert Carter, Jamesview was purchased in 1720 by James
Skelton and later inherited by descendent Martha Skelton Wavles and her
husband, Thowmas Jefferson. Although owner of the property, it is not known
whether Jefferson ever spent time at Jamesview,

Criterion € Originally built n the cardy 18th contury and significantly enlarged and expanded
during the nineteenth century, Jamesview survives as a good esample of a modest
plantation howuse overlooking the James River tn this part of Viginia.

~%
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Walnut Hill (24-0417)

Associated VDHR Theme(s): Domestic, Military

Criterion A

Critenion

Walnut Hill was the site of a Crvil War skirmish, as identificd on a military map
ansd prublished in John Watts de Peyster’s The Grand Hunt of the Ampy of the
Potomae, 1872

oS veaererriedd

Walnut Hill, including the primary residence, the slaves quarters, the office,
smokehouse, 0o house, agricoliural and other buildings, is an excellent example
of an 13th and 1%th contury farm complex. The original house, built ca. 1730,
was added onto in a serios of phases that attest fo the evolving social and
architectoral tastes over tme, The brick slaves quarters house is an excellent
example of its building tvpe and 19 the only surviving brick quartors in
Cumberand County,

CATEGORY 2Z: Potentially Eligible {requires further study)

Locust Level (24-0013)

Associated VDHR Theme{sy,  Domestic

Criterion €

Built ca. 1790, Locust Level is survives as an excellent local example of a
Foederal-stvle farmhbouse. Though additions have been made to the two-story,
central-passage. single-pile plan house, much of the original exterior and interior
fabric remains intact.

Union Hill (Rock Coftage) (24-00203

Associated VDHE Theme(s): Domestic

CUritenion €

Originally built ca. 1730 and Iater enlarged ca. 1830, the dwelling known as
Enion Hill or Rock Cottage provides an excellent example of the evolution of
the architectural and social needs of the Virgimia resident. The oldest section. a
1-172-storv, side-passage plan dwelling tvpical of 18th-contury rural Virginia,
became, in the-nid-19th century as stability in the region mcreased, a rear wing
to a larger and mor substantial, two-story Federal -house.
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West Hill (24-0021)
Associated VDHR Themo(s): Domestic
Criterion € West Hill property is an excellent, intact example of an early 19th-century
domestic complex including a main dwelling, a smokehouse, a daivy, and a

summer kitchen. The main dwelling, bl ca. 1807, is a good example of a
five-bay. central-passage plan dwelling with Federal exterior and interior details.

Center Presbyterian Church (24-0023)

Associated VDHR Theme(sy: Religion

Criterion C: Built in 1852, Center Presbyienian Church survives as an excellent example of a
Greek Revival church.

Trentoen Mill {24-0033;
Aszociated YVIHR Theme(s)h Industry/Processing

Criteriont € Built ¢a. 1750 and originally known as the Randolph Creck Mill, Trenton Mill
survives an excellent gxample of a late 18th-century mill and its associated
resourges.  The mill building s currently, however. threatened with demolition
due to neglect and reguires tmmediate attention to save it from stmctural failure.
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024-0001 Brick Houss Historic 1815
Trenton Houss Hignoric
Virginia Forestry SBuperintendant Common
Bagidance

3!
el
pXe]
o
[
LS
b
-
)
[

W House Higtoric 19G0

D24-0126-D25

DEa~00u7 - Brown's Church Manss Histo!
Thompson House Current

Craroh Currvent 1888
Church Historic

G24-0C02~

(124-011% Current 180G

Juldwell House

(24-0126-018 { Higtori
Lot #18 Hizsoori



Historin Hesooroes Survey of Cumberland County, Virghua
Final Beport
TRACERIHS/ Ontober 17, 1994

Figure 111: Photograph of Willis River Bridge (24-71)
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APPENDIX D
List of Properties Surveyed to the Intensive Level
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